Wiltshire Council

—————

AGENDA

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board

Place: Kennet Committee Room, County Hall, Trowbridge
Date: Thursday 25 May 2023

Time: 10.00 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Ben Fielding - Senior Democratic
Services Officer of Democratic and Members’ Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road,
Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718221 or email benjamin.fieldingi@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct line (01225) 713114/713115.

This agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Voting Membership:

Alan Mitchell Chair of Healthwatch Wiltshire

ClIr Richard Clewer (Chairman) Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Climate Change, MCI,
Economic Development, Heritage,
Arts, Tourism and Health & Wellbeing

Gina Sergeant Healthcare Clinical Professional
Director (NHS BSW ICB)

TBC GP clinical lead (Wiltshire Integrated
Care Alliance)

Dr Sam Dominey Wiltshire Locality Healthcare

Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Cllr Laura Mayes Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member
for Children's Services, Education
and Skills

Dr Nick Ware Wiltshire Locality Healthcare

Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Dr Catrinel Wright

Philip Wilkinson

Non-Voting Membership:

Kate Blackburn
Dr Edd Rendell

Dr Andy Purbrick

Terence Herbert
Stacey Hunter

Stephen Ladyman
Douglas Blair

Kevin Mcnamara
Clare Thompson
Clare O'Farrell
Catherine Roper
Alison Ryan

Val Scrase

Lucy Townsend
Emma Legg
Marc House

Sarah Cardy

Clir Gordon King
ClIr lan Blair-Pilling

Cllr Jane Davies

Fiona Slevin-Brown

Marc House

Page 2

Wiltshire Locality Healthcare
Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)
Police and Crime Commissioner

Director - Public Health (DPS)
Wessex Local Medical Committee —
Medical Director

Wessex Local Medical Committee —
Medical Director

Chief Executive Wiltshire Council
Chief Executive NHS Salisbury
Foundation Trust

Wiltshire Health and Care - Chair
Wiltshire Health and Care — Chief
Executive

Chief Executive or Chairman Great
Western Hospital

Director of Improvement &
Partnerships - GWH

Interim Director of Commissioning
Wiltshire Police Chief Constable

RUH Bath NHS Foundation Trust -
Chair

Regional Director B&NES, Devon and
Wiltshire Community Services
Corporate Director of People (DCS)
Director of Adult Social Services
Dorset and Wiltshire Fire & Rescue
Service - Area Manager Swindon and
Wiltshire

VCSE Leadership Alliance
Representative

Opposition Group Representative
Cabinet Member for Public Health
and Public Protection, Leisure,
Libraries, Facilities Management and
Operational Assets

Cabinet Member for Adult Social
Care, SEND, Transition and Inclusion
Place Director — Wiltshire, NHS Bath
and North East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board
(ICB)

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue



TBC

James Fortune
Maggie Arnold

Stephen Otter
Laura Nicholas

Page 3

Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health
Partnership

Oxford Health (CAMHS)

South West Ambulance Service -
Non-Executive Director

South West Ambulance Service
NHSE, SW Director of Strategic
Transformation / Locality Director



Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes
within the Council.

By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
guestions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.
Our privacy policy is found here.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 4


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Democracy%20Privacy%20Policy&ID=5980&RPID=33929105

AGENDA

Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements (Pages 7 - 8)
The Chairman will welcome those present to the meeting.

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

Minutes (Pages 9 - 26)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2023.
Declarations of Interest

To declare any personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations granted by the
Standards Committee.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3
speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further
clarification.

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on Thursday 18 May 2023 in order to be guaranteed of a written response.
In order to receive a verbal response, questions must be submitted no later than
5pm on Monday 22 May 2023.Please contact the officer named on the front of
this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Public Health Nursing Services — Update (Pages 27 - 32)

To receive an update on Public Health Nursing Services.

Healthwatch Wiltshire Priorities (Pages 33 - 34)

To receive an update on the priorities of Healthwatch Wiltshire.

Page 5



10

11

12

Better Care Fund (Pages 35 - 50)

To consider the Better Care Fund End of Year submission and sign off of the
Plan for 2023.

Draft BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan (Pages 51 - 248)

To consider the draft BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan and alignment with
the Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Break Out Groups

To partake in informal break out groups to discuss the implementation of the
JLHWS.

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting is being held on 20 July 2023, starting at 10.00am.
Urgent Items

Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter
of urgency.

Page 6



Wiltshire Council
T ———

Wiltshire Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

Service: Public Health

Further Enquiries to: Sammer Tang, Public Health Registrar
Date Prepared: May 2023

Email: Sammer.Tang@Wiltshire.gov.uk

Background
e The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory responsibility to develop and update
pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA) as mandated by the Health and Social Care Act
2012. The current Wiltshire PNA was approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 8"
September 2022.

e The PNA is a key tool for identifying what is needed at a local level to support the
commissioning intentions for pharmaceutical services and the basis for determining market
entry to the local NHS England pharmaceutical list.

e The regulation required the Health and Wellbeing Board to identify any changes to the
availability of pharmaceutical services and then determine whether or not it needs to issue a
supplementary statement.

o A supplementary statement is to be published to explain changes to the availability of
pharmaceutical services where:

e (a) the changes are relevant to the granting of an application or applications for
inclusion in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the health and wellbeing
board’s area; and

o (b) the health and wellbeing board is satisfied that producing a new pharmaceutical
needs assessment would be a disproportionate response to those changes or it is
already producing its next pharmaceutical needs assessment but is satisfied that it
needs to immediately modify the existing document in order to prevent significant
detriment to the provision of pharmaceutical services

Market exit notification from Lloyd’s in Sainsbury pharmacy

e Lloyds Pharmacy announced in January 2023, it was closing all 237 of its pharmacy sites
located in Sainsbury's supermarkets across the country.

¢ NHS England had received the official market exit notification from Lloyd’s Pharmacy for
closure of all their pharmacy in Sainsbury Supermarkets across the South West in March
2023.

e There was only one Lloyd’s pharmacy in Sainsbury (Bath Road, Chippenham, SN14 0BJ)
within Wiltshire had given notice for permanent closure and it had ceased trading since the
end of business on the 18™ April 2023.

e Public health team has completed the initial impact assessment of the closure and key
summaries of the review are as follows:

e The closed pharmacy dispenses around 4000 items a month and there are three

Page 7


mailto:Sammer.Tang@Wiltshire.gov.uk

Wiltshire Council
T ————

alternative pharmacies within 2 miles from the location. There are two pharmacies (within
5 mins drive time) which provide similar/long opening hours than the Lloyd’s pharmacy is
now closed.

¢ Provided that alternative providers have capacity to absorb additional prescriptions which
were fulfilled by the Lloyd’s pharmacy in Sainsbury, there are sufficient alternative local
providers to support the closure.

Further communications were sent to our local pharmaceutical committee (Community
Pharmacy Swindon and Wiltshire). Their response indicated that following the closure of the
Lloyd’s Pharmacy in Sainsbury Chippenham, there is no report of any issues in neighbouring
pharmacies and support our initial impact assessment that there is no gap in provision as a
result of this closure.

Recommendations to Health and Wellbeing Board:

To acknowledge the closure of the Lloyd’s Pharmacy in Sainsbury in Chippenham from 18™
April 2023.

To review the initial impact assessment for the closure of the Lloyd’s pharmacy in Sainsbury,
Chippenham and support the finding that this closure does not create a gap that could be met
by an application offering to meet a need for, or secure improvements or better access to,
pharmaceutical service.

To support the decision that a supplementary statement is not required to be issued as
sufficient alternative local providers are available locally.

To continue to monitor any future changes in pharmaceutical services within Wiltshire.

Page 8



Wiltshire Council

—————

Health and Wellbeing Board

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 30
MARCH 2023 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD,
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN.

Present:

Cllr Laura Mayes (Chair), Alan Mitchell, Cllr Jane Davies, Cllr Gordon King, Marc
House (DWFRS), Gina Sargeant (ICB), Alison Ryan (RUH), Clare O’Farrell (RUH),
Stephen Ladyman (WHC), and Sarah Cardy (VCS).

Also Present:

Rachel Kent (WC), David Bowater (WC), Emma Legg (WC), ClIr Tony Jackson, Cate
Mullen (WC), Kai Muxlow (WC), Rhys Schell (WC), William Pett (BSW ICB), David
Jobbins (BSW ICB), and Colonel Ricky Bhabutta (DPH).

14 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements

Clir Laura Mayes, acting Chair of the Board, welcomed all attendees to the
meeting.

Before the meeting began, each Member of the Board, other Councillors and
officers who would be contributing to the meeting were given the opportunity to
introduce themselves.

Clir Mayes provided the following Chairman’s Announcement; that the roles of
Healthcare Clinical Professional Director, Deputy Chief Operating Officer for the
Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership, and a new representative for
Wiltshire Health and Care had been filled by Gina Sargeant, Sarah Branton,
and Shirley-Ann Carvill respectively. Additionally, Colonel Ricky Bhabutta OBE,
the Regional Clinical Director for Central and Wessex Region — Defence
Primary Healthcare, was also in attendance. Clir Mayes welcomed them to the
Board and looked forward to working with them in the future.

15 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from:

e Clir Richard Clewer

e Kevin McNamara - GWH
e Clare Thompson - GWH
e Dr Edd Rendell - WLMC
e Dr Andy Purbick - WLMC

Page 9



16

17

18

e Maggie Arnold — SWAC

e Kate Blackburn - Wiltshire Council
e Terence Herbert - Wiltshire Council
e PCC Philip Wilkinson - OPCC

e Naji Darwish - OPCC

¢ Fiona Slevin-Brown — BSW ICB

e Sarah Branton - AWMHP

e Val Scrase — (HCRG)

e Stacey Hunter - NHS

e ClIr lan Blair-Pilling

Minutes

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Board held on 26 January 2023
were presented for considered. After which, it was:

Decision - The Board approved and signed the minutes of the previous

meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 26 January 2023 as a
true and correct record.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Public Participation

The Chair announced that two questions had been submitted in time for verbal
responses at the meeting and had been circulated within Agenda Supplement
1.

As apologies from Fiona Slevin-Brown had been received, David Bowater,
Senior Corporate Manager, provided verbal answers for both questions and it
was confirmed that full written responses would be provided to the questioners
within 5 working days after the meeting.

Q23-01 — It was explained that the Integrated Care Alliance had committed to
identifying opportunities to link with all local Health and Wellbeing Groups to
identify further hyper local opportunities. Furthermore, Alan Mitchell, Chair of
Healthwatch Wiltshire, agreed to attend the Warminster Health and Wellbeing
Fair on 22 April 2023, as a representative from the Board.

Q23-02 — It was explained that an update on the Primary Care Network Estate
Strategy would be provided at a future meeting of the Board and that a written
response would be provided for the Calne Town Council within the week
following the meeting.

Page 10



19

Final Integrated Care Strategy

William Pett, Associate Director of Policy & Strategy for the Bath and North East
Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) Integrated Care Board (ICB),
presented the final Integrated Care Strategy (ICS) to the Board. The item
covered the following matters:

It was confirmed that the document included within the Agenda Pack had
been slightly amended and subsequently approved and published by the
ICB on the day of the meeting. However, it was emphasised that the
structure and fundamentals of the ICS remained the same.

An overview of the ICS was given, reminding Members of the details of
the vision, 3 objectives and Care Model. It was emphasised that the ICS
would not go into specific details, those would instead be covered in the
ICS implementation plan which officers were intending on publishing in
June 2023.

It was explained that the ICS was not prescriptive and did not dictate how
each of the populations in BSW should deliver the strategy over the next
5 years, but instead provided a guide for how partners should work
together and the ICB’s expectations.

It was explained that the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) would
monitor the ICS over time and would respond and make improvements
or changes where necessary to ensure the delivery of a high quality
service that targeted action and resources on those most vulnerable.
The aim was to provide more integrated services, responsive local
specialist services, and would prioritise mental health support as much
as physical health.

It was reiterated that the ICP first met in October 2022, and as such the
ICS had been developed in a relatively short time frame. However, the
ICB had mitigated such a constraint by engaging with the public and
partners such as the BSW Health and Wellbeing Boards and Integrated
Care Alliance (ICA), as much as possible during that time.

Members were informed that the intention of the ICS was that it would
evolve each year based on feedback and performance monitoring and as
such, it was not a finalised document.

During the discussion, points included:

The scope of the ICS was highlighted, and Members asked how people
with complex disabilities would be supported within the strategy. It was
emphasised that the ICS was broad in nature to reduce the complexity
and length of the document and that the specificities would be addressed
in the implementation plan. However, Members were reassured that
across the BSW there would be particular focus areas targeting those in
excluded groups, and that over time, feedback and updates on specific
groups could be given at future meetings.

Page 11



20

e The importance of prevention and intervention was highlighted, and it
was noted that the shift around funding was a challenging but crucial
area of focus.

e The proposed publication date of June 2023 for the implementation plan
was raised alongside the aspirational and logistical challenges in
delivering both the ICS and implementation plan documents in the short
time frame.

e The importance of continued and innovative engagement methods and
making the documents as accessible and clear as possible was
emphasised, to ensure that the public and partners understood the plan,
how it will affect them and what it will look like on a community level.

e Members were informed that the ICS would have 4 different forms: the
full document, an easy-to-read version, an executive summary version,
and a one-page document with just the basic overview graphic. All of
which were expected to be used extensively across the partner system.
Furthermore, the record of engagement would be published to show
progress to date alongside a broader, more interactive communications
approach.

e |t was noted that the ICS would promote positive language and
encouragements to support individuals in taking responsibility for their
own health.

e |t was further reiterated that performance measures would be included in
the implementation plan.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Board discussed the report, noting its implications.

ii) The Board considered the report’s alignment with the Wiltshire
Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan Update

David Jobbins, Interim Deputy Director of Planning and Programmes for the
BSW ICB, presented an update on the BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward
Implementation Plan to the Board. The item covered the following matters:

¢ An introduction and brief explanation of the plan was provided to
Members whereby it was noted that the plan would help to address
guestions and present a guide for partners.

¢ It was further explained that although there was a relative focus on how
NHS organisations implement the ICS, the ICB were striving towards
further setting out details for how all local partners would work
collaboratively.

Page 12



The three principles under which the plan was being developed in line
with were described, which would work together to clarify and
differentiate between place and system levels, the relationships between
the levels, and outline the responsibilities of both.

It was reiterated that it would be a working document and would be
refreshed annually, with this iteration predominantly focussing on
2023/24.

The short timescale until the proposed publication date in June 2023 was
raised, and it was emphasised that the level of detail and specificity
would change/grow as the document evolved year-on-year.

The structure of the plan was explored, and Members were encouraged
to provide feedback, as other partners had been. It was explained that
the structure was aligned to the 3 strategic objectives within the ICS.
The importance of place and people were emphasised, as they were the
key to delivering a successful plan and strategy.

Appendices to the plan were noted as providing further detail as to its
proposed delivery.

The topic of engagement was explored, and it was noted that
engagement undertaken with partners would align together to ensure
that there was no duplication and would be one of the main drivers of
growth and change within the plan across the 5 years.

Members were informed of the Statement of Compliance process which
needed to be completed by June 2023 by each of the Health and
Wellbeing Boards across BSW to meet national timescales and
requirements.

A table outlining the timeline of the plan to publication was displayed.

During the discussion, points included:

Further information was sought as to the ICB’s plans for resource
allocation once the ICS and plan came into force, to which it was
reiterated that further work was needed to finalise details and that these
would become clearer and more specific as the ICS was internalised and
developed in each annual review and refresh.

The short timeframe ahead of the proposed publication date.

Questions were asked as to how the plan would be driven as some
areas/departments worked well alongside the ICB and ICA, and some
were less integrated. It was further noted that conversations about how
areas would deliver the aspirations of the ICS were important and
needed to be focussed on, particularly on how to best utilise relationships
with the ICA.

It was noted that although the plan wasn’t completely fleshed out, it did
raise the immediate questions of how it would be delivered and by who,
thus lending weight to having more effective conversations between
partners.

Page 13



21

It was confirmed that regular updates would be brought to the Board who
would have the opportunity to give feedback.

The date of the next meeting was raised, and it was noted that in the
context of the timescale for the plan, a delegated sign off for the
Statement of Compliance may be required, but that officers would liaise
with Members outside of the meeting.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposal:

i) The Board noted the update provided.

Final Wiltshire JLHWS

David Bowater, Senior Corporate Manager, presented the final Wiltshire Joint
Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JLHWS) to the Board. The item covered
the following matters:

Members were reminded of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment,
which was published in Autumn 2022 and followed by a workshop in
December 2022, the results of which were taken through the steering
group to aid in the development of the JLHWS which Members agreed to
put out for consultation in the previous meeting.

The responses gleaned during the consultation period were summarised
in Appendix 1 of the report and provided useful feedback which officers
used to make minor adjustments to the JLHWS. However, Members
were informed that the structure of the strategy with regard to the 4
themes remained unchanged, and it was highlighted that they aligned
well with Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan and the ICS’ objectives and
vision.

It was explained that the JLHWS would inform commissioning plans for
partners. Furthermore, the Statement of Compliance, as aforementioned
for the ICS, and the ICA’s Work Programme, would be linked to and
informed by this document and the commitments set out within it.

It was noted that the document would provide a further safeguard in
ensuring accountability across the system, with the opportunity to
incorporate the ICB Annual Report and to receive ICA progress reports
against the commitments.

Members were informed that it was a medium-term strategy and allowed
for the ability to respond to any changes made to the ICS, with the
metrics being outcomes based. Furthermore, reviews and subsequent
changes were being made across the system and processes which
meant that there was a lot of flux at present, but with time they would
settle and become embedded.

Page 14



22

e Thanks were given to those Members who had provided feedback and
had aided in the development of the strategy.

During the discussion, points included:

e The complexity of simultaneously running multiple strategies which were
all interlinked. Members therefore noted the importance of ensuring that
all progress reports/updates were as accessible as possible to ensure full
understanding and engagement with the information.

e It was suggested that the JLHWS was referenced within the ICS
implementation plan to show the integration between the two.

e The challenges of external political pressures on the ability to achieve the
visions of the ICS, its implementation plan, and the JLHWS were noted,
and the importance of focussing on the integration between services
themselves as opposed to the strategy and related documents was
emphasised.

e The importance of supporting partners in having those conversations
around changing cultures and implementing the strategies was stressed.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposal:

i) The Board noted the feedback summarised in Appendix 1 and

thanked all Boards, organisations, and individual respondents
for their input.

ii) The Board approved the Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategy at Appendix 2 for publication.

Wiltshire ICA Work Programme Update

Clare O’Farrell, Deputy Chief Operating Officer at Royal United Hospitals Bath
(RUH), gave an update on the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance (ICA) Work
Programme. The update focussed on 2 key workstreams, namely:
Neighbourhood Collaboratives, and Connecting with Our Communities. It was
noted that these would both be refreshed to ensure that they aligned with the
ICS, its implementation plan, and the JLHWS upon their publications. The
following matters were then covered:

Neighbourhood Collaboratives:

e The model of the workstream including its vision, purpose and
membership, was briefly discussed and it was emphasised that there

Page 15



was a focus on using as little medical jargon as possible to increase
engagement and understanding.

e |t was explained that the aim of the collaboratives was to help deliver the
work of the ICA and other strategies to bring positive change, in order to
develop and build vibrant neighbourhoods through strong engagement.

e The features of a Neighbourhood Collaborative were then discussed,
with emphasis placed on the importance of creating an inclusive and
data driven approach that listened and responded to local and diverse
voices and ensured continuity across services.

e An update on the March 2023 steering group meeting was given, and it
was highlighted that the group allowed for good and productive
conversations.

e |t was noted that the ICA were striving to initiate conversations, and
where possible, creating collaboratives across Wiltshire by the end of
2023, using existing sites/teams’ feedback to outline a more general
approach that could be applied across the County.

e Progress against the objectives was shown, with 3 highlighted for
improvement/actions needed. It was highlighted that the ICA were at a
point in which communications and an engagement plan could be started
to help residents understand the strategies and see examples of existing
collaboratives.

Connecting with Our Communities (CWOC)

e The purpose of the CWOC group was outlined, namely, developing a
‘helicopter view’ of a good, strong approach and framework for
supporting ICA staff in engagement with local communities and
determining implementation details.

e |t was emphasised that the groups were not about starting afresh, but
rather a more asset-based approach, listening and learning to local
voices and building on what already exists.

e It was noted that a large-scale workshop had been undertaken alongside
a membership refresh, and the challenge of ensuring the right partners
were included was highlighted.

e A progress overview was given and the Engagement Advice Framework,
colloquially called the ‘Otter’s Den’, was discussed and it was noted that
it was a challenging forum that provided constructive feedback and
support.

e The next steps of the group were then outlined, and it was explained that
it was a parallel programme of work that would underpin the collaborative
programme of work, and was a place where partners could go to further
understand any specifics and provide feedback where appropriate.

Page 16



23

During the discussion, points included:

Members highlighted the importance of the group in improving residents’
quality of life, and it was noted that it would be the right place to discuss
piloting different ideas and how to engage with different cohorts of
people.

It was explained that the ICA were aiming to keep each group focussed
on 1-2 areas of work from inception to review, to glean actions and
lessons for future projects to create a more sustainable model that would
introduce small changes at a local neighbourhood level to then feed into
the overarching ICS and JLHWS.

Questions around resource allocation and capacity were asked, with
Members noting that the current system relied on members of staff going
above and beyond their duties to deliver and fulfil the purpose of the
CWOC groups and strategies in general.

It was explained that the ICA were keeping the groups relatively closed
to allow them the space to establish themselves, grow, evolve, and
demonstrate their worth before being fully rolled out across the County,
as it was a new and different way of working.

It was emphasised that as the ICS was working to a 5-year vision, major
changes were not to be expected immediately as it was an incremental
process of reviewing, change and growth.

It was noted that conversations were being had with the ICP to consider
if further pressure was needed to be applied to budget holders with
regard to future funding.

It was suggested that the Defence Primary Healthcare be involved in any
conversations/groups due to the different challenges and logistical details
inherent within the community they support.

The importance of including broad and diverse voices and ensuring the
groups were as inclusive as possible was emphasised.

Further importance was given on the need to focus on prevention and
intervention with local communities.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposal:

i) The Board noted the update provided.

Children's Community Health Services Update

The Chair informed attendees that since the publication of the agenda, officers
had stated that they were unable to feasibly give a full update, therefore the
agenda item would be brought forward to a future meeting of the Board.

Page 17



24

SEND Strategy Update

Cate Mullen, Head of SEND and Inclusion, and Kai Muxlow, Commissioning
Manager — Specialist Services, provided an update on the Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and Inclusion Strategy. It was explained that the
update would cover the progress made against the 6 priority areas and the
plans for the next iteration of the strategy. The following matters were then
discussed:

e The vision of the strategy was outlined, and Members were informed that
it was a local area strategy, not just a Council led strategy, therefore
partners and stakeholder services were involved in its development.

e |t was explained that feedback had been gathered from young people,
families and other interested parties in Wiltshire such as schools, and the
Public Health Department, with particular emphasis on the Wiltshire
Parent Carer Council (WPCC) who were noted as having the ability to
share and gather information from a large reach of families.

e The 6 priorities that were coproduced for the existing strategy were then
outlined and explained and officers provided further details and progress
updates on each.

e It was noted that progress against each of the priorities was discussed
within each bimonthly SEND Board meeting.

e The development of the ‘Growing Up and Moving On’ guides were
particularly highlighted as a big piece of work under Priority 6: Well
Planned Transitions, whereby feedback was gained through a variety of
methods, such as an event held in October 2022 for young people aged
approximately 14+, alongside a planned employment engagement event
for Spring 2023.

e The different areas for development were then outlined, with Members
informed that each priority was subject to both internal officer and SEND
Board level scrutiny.

e |t was highlighted that there was a very broad scope and level of need
across children and young people with SEND and therefore, it was a
constant challenge to understand how to seek and capture all of their
voices.

e Members were informed that a waiting list initiative was underway in
Wiltshire with regard to the high demand experienced nationally for
neurodivergent assessment processes. Furthermore, it was highlighted
that the continued monitoring and support for parents and children/young
people during the Education Health Care Plan (EHCP) process was a
significant amount of work which presented resource challenges.

e [t was explained that as SEND was a complex area, the strategy would
help to guide and build the confidence of all schools across Wiltshire in
understanding local and national drivers and expectations.

e It was further explained that it was important for the strategy to align with
other plans across the Council, such as ensuring that officers built and
maintained solid relationships with housing developers when considering

Page 18



new housing estates to ensure that there were adequate SEND
provisions in place.

As the strategy was initially launched on the brink of the first national
lockdown in Spring 2020, inevitable delays impacted on the ability for
officers to drive forward certain areas of work.

It was explained that significant progress had been made with regard to
Central Government SEND plans, such as the recent announcement on
the Local Inclusion Plan Initiative, and therefore in order to understand
new requirements and meet some of the expectations fed down, officers
had decided to revisit the existing strategy. Furthermore, it allowed
officers to ensure that the development of the new strategy had the
ability to address delayed progress due to COVID, report on all
performance areas, and be in line with other Council and Central
Government plans.

A timeline of the SEND Inclusion Strategy Planning was displayed, and it
was confirmed that a finalised draft would be presented to the SEND and
Health and Wellbeing Boards before sign-off.

During the discussion, points included:

It was noted that officers were unsure as to whether the strategy would
be working to a 3 or 5 year vision but that it would form part of the
consultation work to understand what would best meet people’s needs.
Further details as to the types of transitions children and young people
would encounter within their childhood to adolescence and then
adulthood were explained.

It was confirmed that the ‘Military Schools Network’ as detailed under
Priority 6 referred to schools that had high numbers of children from
military families on roll, thus additional resources were provided to
support them.

It was suggested that officers consult with the voluntary sector capture
their voices, and to ensure that any volunteers engaging with
children/young people with SEND understood and could support their
needs.

A more accessible version of the document upon finalisation that could
be promoted to Members, officers, and the public alike, was suggested.
The importance of focussing on the transition into adulthood of those
children/young people with SEND was emphasised, as their needs would
still need to be met within the wider healthcare system and it was asked
whether additional training for partners such as police, fire services, and
housing officers, could be provided to help support and understand
adults with additional needs.

Officers were commended on liaising with the Leisure and Libraries
Department on supporting children/young people with SEND but it was
highlighted that although there were lots of interactive videos produced

Page 19



25

26

by the teams during the lockdown periods, they were relatively loud and
visually busy, which could be overstimulating for those with SEND.

e |t was confirmed that new roles focussing on supporting the EHCP
process were being recruited for, but national challenges in recruiting
and retaining other professionals within the industry was highlighted,
such as speech and language, and occupational health therapists,
educational psychologists and paediatricians. Members were reassured
that officers were creating and developing roles to attract the right
people, such as amending job descriptions, thinking creatively about how
to retain staff, and allowing for on-the-job training/shadowing while in
further education.

e The reforms as proposed within the recently published SEND and
Alternative Provision Improvement Plan from Central Government were
highlighted, and it was confirmed by officers that they were being
discussed within the SEND Board and an Executive Board Member lead
accountable for SEND had been nominated.

e Alternative schooling provisions were explained in response to a
guestion, and it was noted that personalised alternative settings could be
implemented to each child/young person depending on their needs and
strengths.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the

following recommended proposal:

i) The Board noted the update provided.

Date of Next Meeting

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 25 May 2023, starting at
10.00am.

The likely agenda items for the next meeting were detailed and Members were
informed that as part of the next, or a future meeting’s agenda, officers were
intending to bring workshop items to the Board. Members were asked to contact
David Bowater with any comments or suggestions for topics that Members
would find helpful.

Urgent ltems

There were no urgent items.

Page 20



(Duration of meeting: 9.30 - 11.50 am)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Ellen Ghey - Democratic Services
Officer of Democratic Services, direct line 01225 718221, e-mail
benjamin.fieldingi@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 21


mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Minute Item 18

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

30 March 2023

Agenda Item 5 — Public Participation
Question from: David Reeves - Warminster Area Health and Wellbeing Forum

Question (23-01)

Recognising the strategic focus of the Health and Wellbeing Board, it would be good
if, occasionally, Board members engaged and communicated with organisations in
the community that make vital contributions towards its aims. As volunteer Secretary
of the Warminster Area Health and Wellbeing Forum, | am disappointed to discover
the seemingly little interest in how - and by whom - your objectives will be delivered. |
invite Board members to our Health and Wellbeing Fair on 22nd April and to
acknowledge the excellent work being carried out by us, our Forum members and
many other umbrella bodies including the Children and Families Voluntary Sector
Forum.

Response

The Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance has this week committed to identifying
opportunities for its members to link with all health and wellbeing groups that report
to community area boards, to identify further hyper local opportunities for working. At
the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 30 March, Alan Mitchell from
Healthwatch Wiltshire committed to attending the Warminster Forum meeting on
behalf of the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board.

Page 28



Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

30 March 2023

Agenda Item 5 — Public Participation
Question from: Mark Edwards — Calne Town Council

Question (23-02)

We have received contact from residents about a requirement for a new Primary
Care Network Estate strategy. Please can information be shared as to the timetable
and progress of the development of the strategy for the Calne area.

Response

The Primary Care Network (PCN) Service and Estate Toolkit has been developed
nationally to inform the primary care section of the ICS Infrastructure Plan, so that a
costed analysis of the primary care estates requirements and ambitions over the
next 10 years can be submitted to inform and support future Spending Review
submissions to the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) and His Majesty’s
Treasury (HMT). The outcome of the programme will enable a shared understanding
of the clinical strategy and workforce plans with each PCN and the ICB, and
subsequent estates needs moving forward.

To date, the BSW ICB has secured engagement with 66% of its 27 PCNs and will
continue to work with the remaining practices to achieve 100% engagement. Whilst
the aim was to complete this work buy end of March 2023, the current programme
has been extended till end of May/June 2023 to accommodate various PCNs who
have requested the extra time and support, and those that are still to engage. Once
this phase of the programme has been completed, we will consider how the PCN
estate strategies are prioritised as part of the ICS Infrastructure plan.

The Calne and Yatton Keynell PCN and Patford House Surgery tool kit has not
progressed as much as we would have hoped at this stage however both the PCN
and Patford House are committed to taking forward discussions about the Integrated
Neighbourhood Team / Neighbourhood Collaborative work in the area and what
services should be provided across the locality to meet the needs of the population.
The outputs of these discussions are critical to enabling the future estates
requirements to be better defined.

Page 28



The ICB is also working with the three Local Authorities to establish their premises
plans including use of existing estate where possible which will help support some
PCNs with estate solutions to help deliver their visions.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 6

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

25 May 2023

Subject: Public Health Nursing Contract

Executive Summary

A future delivery model for Public Health Nursing Contract from 1 April 2024 has
been agreed.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board notes the future delivery model for Public
Health Nursing Services.

Reason for Proposal

The contract with HCRG Care Group to deliver the Wiltshire Children’s
Community Healthcare Service expires on 31 March 2024 following completion
of an exceptional 1-year contract agreed at Cabinet on 29 March 2022.
Circumstances related to the agreement at Cabinet in June 2022 to undertake a
joint procurement for the service with Bath and North-East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (BSW ICB), have recently changed and
required a subsequent decision to be made about the future provision of Public
Health Nursing Services from 1 April 2024.

Kate Blackburn
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 27



Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

25 May 2023

Subject: Public Health Nursing Contract

Purpose of Report

1.

The purpose of this report is to provide Health and Wellbeing Board with
an update on the future delivery model for Wiltshire’s Public Health
Nursing (PHN) Services beyond April 2024. These services are currently
delivered by HCRG Care Group (previously Virgin Care Services) as part
of Wiltshire Children’s Community Healthcare Services (WCCHS)
contract.

Relevance to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2.

Children’s community health services have an important role to play in
tackling inequalities, improving social mobility and prevention and early
intervention.

Background

3.

The contract with HCRG Care Group to deliver the Wiltshire Children’s
Community Healthcare Service expires on 31 March 2024 following
completion of an exceptional 1-year contract agreed at Cabinet on 29
March 2022. Circumstances related to the agreement at Cabinet in June
2022 to undertake a joint procurement for the service with Bath and North-
East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (BSW ICB),
have recently changed and required a subsequent decision to be made
about the provision of Public Health Nursing Services from 1 April 2024.

In June 2022, Cabinet was presented with options for the service beyond
April 2024 and agreed for PHNS to be part of a single procurement of a
combined universal and specialist children’s community health service for
Wiltshire with separate terms and conditions for the respective Council
and ICB/ICA elements.

Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) were formally established in July 2022 and
BSW ICB began a review of community health services across Bath and
North-East Somerset, Swindon, and Wiltshire. Wiltshire Council has been
an active participant in the review, whilst maintaining its intention to
progress with arrangements as agreed by Cabinet in June 2022. The
community health service review continues and the ICB has recently
clarified it is not able to progress a joint procurement process with the
Local Authority at this time. The Local Authority cannot extend the current
contract any further under procurement legislation and the options

Page 28



10.

available to us for the future delivery of PHNS are, therefore, different to
those presented to Cabinet in June.

Prior to 2016, children’s community services had been provided across six
separate organisations; some of the specialist services were sitting
outside of Wiltshire-county borders and required parents / carers to travel
outside of Wiltshire for appointments. This also limited the extent to which
community services could provide services embedded within education
and respite settings. Parents / carers of children with Special Educational
Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND) reported this to be a confusing and
disjointed healthcare provision. For this reason, and to create a more
pathway-based, less medicalised approach to care, it was decided to bring
the services together as one overarching children’s community health
service. There is every intention to maintain as much integration as
possible between universal and specialist children’s community health
services despite this change in direction. Service users are not expected
to experience any significant difference in service delivery from any
change in provider that may arise.

The total contract value for WCCHS for 2022/23 was £14,122,700, of
which 48% (£6,741,769) was provided by Wiltshire Council to fund Public
Health Nursing Services from the Public Health Grant. BSW ICB fund
Children’s Specialist Community Health Services and the Children Looked
After Service.

Wiltshire Council is responsible for PHNS in Wiltshire. PHNS is a service
directly funded by the Public Health Grant which the local authority
receives from the Department of Health and Social Care. The service
forms part of the Director of Public Health’s responsibilities for ‘any of the
Secretary of State’s public health protection or health improvement
functions that they delegate to local authorities, either by arrangement or
under regulations — these include services mandated by regulations made
under section 6C of the NHS 2006 Act, inserted by section 18 of the 2012
Act’.

The PHNS is required to deliver against the requirements set out in the
Health & Social Care Act 2012 to provide a universal service for all
expectant parents, children, and young people, with an emphasis on
prevention and support. This includes leading on the delivery and co-
ordination of the Healthy Child Programme 0-19, a national public health
programme based on the best available evidence to achieve good
outcomes for children. The mandated elements of the PHNS are five
universal reviews delivered by the health visiting service from pregnancy
through to two and a half years of age, and the National Child
Measurement Programme.

The PHNS service is made up of the following key elements:

e Health Visiting - 0-4 years old

e School Nursing - 5-19 years old

e Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) — a strengths-based programme to
support young parents. In Wiltshire this is targeted on young women
who conceive at or below the age of nineteen. It a licenced programme

Page 29



11.

14.

that provides intensive support from pregnancy until the child’s second
birthday. It is not mandated.

e The National Child Measurement Programme - delivered through the
School Nursing Service provides robust public health surveillance data
on child weight status to inform national and local planning to reduce
obesity.

BSW ICB is responsible for commissioning the following services:

e Community Paediatrics

e Speech & Language Therapy

¢ Integrated Therapies (Physiotherapy & Occupational Therapy)

e Children’s Community Nursing Services

e Children’s Continuing Care

e Learning Disability Nursing Services

e Children’s Safeguarding Services (named nurses & specialist
safeguarding nurses)

e Paediatric Audiology (West Wiltshire only)

e Children’s Continence Service

e Children Looked After Service

The Children Looked After (CLA) Service provides specialist health
assessments, personal health planning and intervention, advice and
support to children and young people who are looked after and their
parent/carers. It also provides specialist advice to partner agencies on the
health needs of children looked after and actively participates in care
planning and review meetings. These services are delivered in conjunction
with universal services. Currently review health checks and assessments
for children looked after are undertaken by health visitors (up to age 5)
and school nurses (over the age of 5).

Main Considerations

15.

Cabinet noted that the Integrated Care Board (ICB) began a review of
community health services across Bath and North-East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire, with Wiltshire being an active participant in the
review, whilst maintaining its intention to progress with arrangements as
agreed by Cabinet in in June 2022 for PHNS to be part of a single
procurement of a combined universal and specialist children’s community
health service for Wiltshire with separate terms and conditions for the
respective Council and ICB elements. The ICB has recently clarified it is
not able to progress a joint procurement process with Wiltshire Council at
this time and the Council is not able to extend the current contract any
further under procurement legislation. The options available since June
2022 have therefore evolved to

0] single procurement of Wiltshire PHNS by Wiltshire Council or
(i) Local Authority in-house PHNS.

Page 30



16.

Both options have been thoroughly appraised against the same set of
strategic objectives set out in the June 2022 Cabinet report. There was
disappointment that the Council were unable to procure the service with
the ICB, however, the spirit of integration remains, and Cabinet agreed to
the recommendation for a single procurement of Wiltshire PHNS. Effective
integration and partnership with interfacing services is critical to the
delivery of Public Health Nursing Services and there is commitment from
both the Local Authority and BSW ICB to continue to work closely together
to align Wiltshire’s universal and specialist service specifications, and
monitoring processes, to ensure services continue to be joined up and
seamless. We do not foresee any impact on children, young people, and
families. The Local Authority will also ensure an emphasis on
strengthening partnership and integration with local authority and non-
health services, including the voluntary and charitable sector in the best
interests of children, young people and families.

Next Steps

17.

The Director of Public Health will be agreeing the award of the contract
following the tendering process in consultation with the relevant Directors,
Corporate Directors and Cabinet members.

Kate Blackburn
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Report Authors:
Sally Johnson, Public Health Strategist, Public Health

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

25 May 2023

Subject: Healthwatch Wiltshire priorities

Executive Summary

Following our priority setting process, involving volunteers and a short survey
open to Wiltshire residents to give their views, we have identified the following
as priority areas for Healthwatch Wiltshire to focus on over this next year.

Hospital Discharge and Care at Home/virtual wards
Children and Young People’s Wellbeing

Mental Health and Autism

Access to GP services — continue follow up work

PwpndPE

It was also agreed that we should monitor dentistry and how the BSW ICS
manages implementation of any changes now that it is taking on responsibility
for dentistry. This could be a future project to understand people’s experiences
of the new dental regime. Our focus will continue to be on addressing health
inequalities and listening to patient and public voice.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board notes Healthwatch Wiltshire’s priorities for
the year ahead.

Reason for Proposal

As an independent statutory body, Healthwatch Wiltshire has the power to
make sure NHS leaders and other decision makers listen to the feedback of
patients and users to improve standards of care.

Catharine Symington
Interim Manager
Healthwatch Wiltshire

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

25" May 2023

Subject: BCF End of Year Submission Short Summary

Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) with an
executive briefing of the end of year submission for the Better Care Fund
(BCF) for the Wiltshire locality.

1.2 The template must be submitted to the BCF National Team on May 23,
2023, and it is a requirement of BCF governance arrangements that this is
formally presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. This is to provide
accountability for the funding, information and input into national datasets,
on behalf of Health and Wellbeing Boards.

1.3 The submission was populated by the financial out-turn position statement
of the Better Care Fund (BCF) for 2022/23:

Income Expenditure Balance
Total Pooled Fund £71,009,905 £64,957,645 £6,052,260

2022-23 underspend from across iBCF, BCF and Disabled Facilities Grant
has been appropriately treated and carried forward to spend in 2023-24.

Page 35



1.4 National conditions set out below were all met:

National Condition Confirmation
1) A Plan has been agreed for the Health and
Wellbeing Board area that includes all
mandatory funding and this is included in a
pooled fund governed under section 75 of the
NHS Act 2006?

(This should include engagement with district
councils on use of Disabled Facilities Grant in two
tier areas)

2) Planned contribution to social care from the
CCG minimum contribution is agreed in line with
the BCF policy?

3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out
of hospital services?

4) Plan for improving outcomes for people being
discharged from hospital

1.5 The end of year statements confirmed use of the BCF as an enabler of
integrated working:

The governance structure is embedded
1. The overall delivery of the BCF has following the creation of the Integrated
Il Jg=le BT AW I X I-F SN IMEENGIER Care Alliance and working well.

social care in our locality

All schemes implemented as planned,
including the additional schemes developed
PRI 16 Y TN FRWVIT R T EI Tl - ECMl 2t pace to meet ASCDF guidance. These had
planned in 2022-23 a positive impact on hospital discharge
rates.

Joint commissioning of is evident in some
services such as brokerage and joint
commissioning of the new PW2 bed model
was successful.

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2022-23
had a positive impact on the integration of
health and social care in our locality

1.6 The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) and the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) have published a Policy
Framework for the implementation of the Better Care Fund (BCF) from 2023-
24 to 2024-25. The BCF programme underpins key priorities in the NHS
Long Term Plan by joining up services in the community and the
Government’s plan for recovering urgent and emergency care (UEC)
services! , as well as supporting the delivery of the Next Steps to Put People
at the Heart of Care?

Page 36

1 NHS England » Delivery plan for recovering urgent and emergency care services
2 Adult social care system reform: next steps to put People at the Heart of Care - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)



https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivery-plan-for-recovering-urgent-and-emergency-care-services/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-social-care-system-reform-next-steps-to-put-people-at-the-heart-of-care

1.7 The use of BCF mandatory funding streams must be jointly agreed by
Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) and Local Authorities to reflect local health and
care priorities. Plans must be signed off by Health and Wellbeing Boards.

1.8 The planning guidance was issued on 4" April 2023 with a final submission
date for the plan of 28" June 2023. This timeline will miss the deadline for
submission to the Health and Wellbeing Board. As there are no planned Health
and Wellbeing Board meetings in June it is therefore proposed that sign-off for the
BCF Plan 2023-2025 is delegated to the Chair, in consultation with lead officers
from Wilshire Council and the Integrated Care Board. Note that this is the first time
BCF plans cover a two-year period.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board:
i) Notes the end of year BCF submission 2022-23,
i) Approves the delegated sign-off of the Better Care Fund Plan to the
Chair.

Helen Mullinger
Better Care Fund Programme Lead
Wiltshire ICA

Page 37




This page is intentionally left blank



6E abed

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

1. Guidance

Overview

The Better Care Fund (BCF) reporting requirements are set out in the BCF Planning Requirements document for 2022-23, which supports the aims of the
BCF Policy Framework and the BCF programme; jointly led and developed by the national partners Department of Health (DHSC), Department for Levelling
Up, Housing and Communities, NHS England (NHSE), Local Government Association (LGA), working with the Association of Directors of Adult Social
Services (ADASS).

The key purposes of BCF reporting are:

1) To confirm the status of continued compliance against the requirements of the fund (BCF)

2) To confirm actual income and expenditure in BCF plans at the end of the financial year

3) To provide information from local areas on challenges, achievements and support needs in progressing the delivery of BCF plans
4) To enable the use of this information for national partners to inform future direction and for local areas to inform improvements

BCF reporting is likely to be used by local areas, alongside any other information to help inform HWBs on progress on integration and the BCF. Itis also
intended to inform BCF national partners as well as those responsible for delivering the BCF plans at a local level (including ICB's, local authorities and

service providers) for the purposes noted above.

BCF reports submitted by local areas are required to be signed off by HWBs as the accountable governance body for the BCF locally. Aggregated reporting
information will be published on the NHS England website in due course.

MNote on entering information into this template
Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-populated have a grey background, as below:

Data needs inputting in the cell

Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally

To more optimally view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on screen, please change the zoom level between 90% - 100%.
Most drop downs are also available to view as lists within the relevant sheet or in the guidance tab for readability if required.

The row heights and column widths can be adjusted to fit and view text more comfortably for the cells that require narrative information.

Please DO NOT directly copy/cut & paste to populate the fields when completing the template as this can cause issues during the aggregation process. If

you must 'copy & paste', please use the 'Paste Special' operation and paste Values only.

The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.




o abed

ASC Discharge Fund-due 2nd May

This is the last tab in the workbook and must be submitted by 2nd May 2023 as this will flow to DHSC. It can be submitted with the rest of workbook empty
as long as all the details are complete within this tab, as well as the cover sheet although we are not expecting this to be signed off by HWB at this point.
The rest of the template can then be later resubmitted with the remaining sections completed.

After selecting a HWB from the dropdown please check that the planned expenditure for each scheme type submitted in your ASC Discharge Fund plan are
populated.
Please then enter the actual packages of care that matches the unit of measure pre-specified where applicable.

If there are any new scheme types not previously entered, please enter these in the bottom section indicated by a new header. At the very bottom there is
a totals summary for expenditure which we'd like you to add a breakdown by LA and ICB.

Please also include summary narrative on:

1. Scheme impact

2. Narrative describing any changes to planned spending — e.g. did plans get changed in response to pressures or demand? Please also detail any
underspend.

3. Assessment of the impact the funding delivered and any learning. Where relevant to this assessment, please include details such as: number of packages
purchased, number of hours of care, number of weeks (duration of support), number of individuals supported, unit costs, staff hours purchased and
increase in pay etc

4. Any shared learning

Checklist ( 2. Cover)

1. This section helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear as incomplete should be complete before sending to the BCF
Team.

2. The checker column, which can be found on the individual sheets, updates automatically as questions are completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the
word 'No' if the information has not been completed. Once completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and contain the word "Yes'

3. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all 'checker' values for the sheet are green containing the word 'Yes'.

4. Once the checker column contains all cells marked "Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will change to 'Template Complete’.
5. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

2cover . .
1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contacts and sign off.

2. HWB sign off will be subject to your own governance arrangements which may include a delegated authority.

3. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in each section of the template have been
completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to:

england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net

(please also copy in your respective Better Care Manager)

4. Please note that in line with fair processing of personal data we request email addresses for individuals completing the reporting template in order to
communicate with and resolve any issues arising during the reporting cycle. We remove these addresses from the supplied templates when they are

collated and delete them when they are no longer needed.



T obed

3. National Conditions

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the four national conditions detailed in the Better Care Fund planning requirements
for 2022-23 (link below) continue to be met through the delivery of your plan. Please confirm as at the time of completion.
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2022-23/

This sheet sets out the four conditions and requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm 'Yes' or 'No' that these continue to be met. Should 'No' be
selected, please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met for the year and how this is being addressed. Please note that where a
National Condition is not being met, the HWB is expected to contact their Better Care Manager in the first instance.

In summary, the four national conditions are as below:

National condition 1: Plans to be jointly agreed

Mational condition 2: NHS contribution to adult social care is maintained in line with the uplift to NHS Minimum Contribution

Mational condition 3: Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services

National condition 4: Plan for improving outcomes for people being discharged from hospital

4. Metrics

The BCF plan includes the following metrics: Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions, Proportion of discharges to a
person's usual place of residence, Residential Admissions and Reablement. Plans for these metrics were agreed as part of the BCF planning process.
This section captures a confidence assessment on achieving the plans for each of the BCF metrics.

A brief commentary is requested for each metric outlining the challenges faced in achieving the metric plans, any support needs and successes that have
been achieved.

The BCF Team publish data from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) dataset for Dischaege to usual place of residence and avoidable admissions at a local
authority level to assist systems in understanding performance at local authority level.

The metrics worksheet seeks a best estimate of confidence on progress against the achievement of BCF metric plans and the related narrative information
and it is advised that:

- In making the confidence assessment on progress, please utilise the available metric data along with any available proxy data.

- In providing the narrative on Challenges and Support needs, and Achievements, most areas have a sufficiently good perspective on these themes and the
unavailability of published metric data for one/two of the three months of the quarter is not expected to hinder the ability to provide this useful
information. Please also reflect on the metric performance trend when compared to the quarter from the previous year - emphasising any improvement
or deterioration observed or anticipated and any associated comments to explain.

Please note that the metrics themselves will be referenced (and reported as required) as per the standard national published datasets.



2t obed

5. Income and Expenditure

The Better Care Fund 2022-23 pool constitutes mandatory funding sources and any voluntary additional pooling from LAs (Local Authorities) and NHS. The
mandatory funding sources are the DFG (Disabled Facilities Grant), the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) grant, minimum NHS contribution and additional
contributions from LA and NHS. This year we include final spend from the Adult Social Care discharge fund.

Income section:

- Please confirm the total HWE level actual BCF pooled income for 2022-23 by reporting any changes to the planned additional contributions by LAs and
NHS as was reported on the BCF planning template.

- In addition to BCF funding, please also confirm the total amount received from the ASC discharge fund via LA and |CB if this has changed.

- The template will automatically pre populate the planned expenditure in 2022-23 from BCF plans, including additional contributions.

- If the amount of additional pooled funding placed intothe area's section 75 agreement is different to the amount in the plan, you should select 'Yes'. You
will then be able to enter a revised figure. Please enter the actual income from additional NHS or LA contributions in 2022-23 in the yellow boxes
provided, NOT the difference between the planned and actual income.

- Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual income in 2022-23.

Expenditure section:
- Please select from the drop down box to indicate whether the actual expenditure in your BCF section 75 is different to the planned amount.
- If you select "Yes', the boxes to record actual spend, and explanatory comments will unlock.

- You can then enter the total, HWB level, actual BCF expenditure for 2022-23 in the yellow box provided and also enter a short commentary on the
reasons for the change.

- Please include actual expenditure from the ASC discharge fund.

- Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual expenditure in 2022-23.

6. Year End Feedback
This section provides an opportunity to provide feedback on delivering the BCF in 2022-23 through a set of survey questions
These questions are kept consistent from year to year to provide a time series.

The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider the impact of BCF and to provide the BCF national partners a view on
the impact across the country. There are a total of 5 questions. These are set out below.

Part 1 - Delivery of the Better Care Fund

There are a total of 3 questions in this section. Each is set out as a statement, for which you are asked to select one of the following responses:
- Strongly Agree

- Agree

- Meither Agree Nor Disagree
- Disagree

- Strongly Disagree

The questions are:
1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between health and social care in our locality
2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2022-23

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2022-23 had a positive impact on the integration of health and social care in our locality




oy abed

Part 2 - Successes and Challenges
This part of the survey utilises the SCIE (Social Care Institue for Excellence) Integration Logic Model published on this link below to capture two key
challenges and successes against the 'Enablers for integration' expressed in the Logic Model.

Please highlight:
4. Two key successes observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logic model) in 2022-23.
5. Two key challenges observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logic model) in 2022-237

For each success and challenge, please select the most relevant enabler from the SCIE logic model and provide a narrative describing the issues, and how
you have made progress locally.
SCIE - Integrated care Logic Maodel

. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rurual factors)

. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership

. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users

. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared decision making and co-production
. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce

. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand

. Joined-up regulatory approach

. Pooled or aligned resources

0 00 o~ U B W R e

. Joint commissioning of health and social care




vt abed

w0 |m Loca {1

of h Department for Levelling Up, Government
Housing & Communities Association E N g I an d

:

g

¢
g

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

2. Cover

|Version 1.0 |

Please Note:
- The BCF end of year reports are categorised as 'Management Information' and dato from them will published in an aggregated form on the NHSE website. This

will include any narrative section. Also a reminder that as is usually the case with public body information, all BCF information collected here is subject to

Freedom of Information requests.

- At a local level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and transparency requirements.

Until BCF information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information (including recipients who access any information placed on the BCE) are prohibited

from making this information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of journalism or research without prior consent from

the HWB (where it concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national partners for the aggregated information.

- All information will be supplied to BCF partners to inform policy development.

- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is Checklist

breached.
Complete:

caith and Welbeing Board: [ |
Completed by: [y |
N - - .7z v |

Has this report been signed off by (or on behalf of) the HWB at the
time of submission? Yes

If no, please indicate when the report is expected to be signed off: Tue 02/05/2023

send the template to england.bettercarefundteam@®nhs.net saving the file as '"Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'. This
does not apply to the ASC Discharge Fund tab.

Please see the Checklist on each sheet for further details on incomplete fields

2. Cover

3. National Conditions

4. Metrics

5. Income and Expenditure actual
6. Year-End Feedback

<< Link to the Guidance sheet




Gy abed

Confirmation of Nation Conditions

National Condition Confirmation
1) A Plan has been agreed for the Health and Wellbeing R

Board area that includes all mandatory funding and this

is included in a pooled fund governed under section 75

of the NHS Act 20067

(This should include engagement with district councils on

use of Disabled Facilities Grant in two tier areas)

If the answer is "No" please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met in
2022-23:

2) Planned contribution to social care from the NHS
minimum contribution is agreed in line with the BCF
policy?

3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of
hospital services?

4) Plan for improving outcomes for people being

discharged from hospital

Checklist

Complete:




9t abed

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

4. Metrics

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Wiltshire

National data may be unavailable at the time of reporting. As such, please utilise data that may only be available system-wide and other local intelligence.

Challengesand  Please describe any challenges faced in meeting the planned target, and please highlight any support that may facilitate or ease the achievements of metric plans
Support Needs

Achievements Please describe any achievements, impact observed or lessons learnt when considering improvements being pursued for the respective metrics Checklist

Complete:
Definition For information - Your planned Assessment of progress Challenges and any Support Needs Achievements

performance as reported in 2022-23 against the metric plan for
planning the reporting period

Unplanned hospitalisation for Not on track to meet target |Actual figure 3,207

Rapid Response and Overnight Nursing

) chronic ambulatory care sensitive services continue to be rolled out across
Avoidable . I .
conditions 2,261.0 Wiltshire. We are starting to lock at
admissions L . ..
(NHS Outcome Framework indicator avoidable admissions per acute trust and
2.3i) have found significant differences between
Not on track to meet target |Actual figure 91.5% Close to planned performance. We will
Discharge to Percentage of people who are continue to focus on rehabilitation and
normal place of  discharged from acute hospital to 92.7% services promoting independence and
residence their normal place of residence expect to to see a positive impact from this
in 2023-24.
On track to meet target Actual figure was 374 permanent admissions|Reducing trend since 2021-22 with a
e Rate of permanent admissions to maintained improvement of 2%. This is due
esidential . . .
P residential care per 100,000 383 to increaing our focus on helping people to
missions population (65+) stay in their own homes and improving
therapy available on hospital discharge.
. On track to meet target Actual average was 78.5% March 2023 figure was 95.7%. Underlying
Proportion of older people (65 and . .
; issues around recording outcomes have
over) who were still at home 91 days
Reablement 65.5% been resolved.

after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services




/v obed

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

5. Income and Expenditure actual

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: ‘Wiltshire ‘

M B S LA
dB a d £10,242,097
d £36,129,791
b Tota £50,085,752
Pla d Actual
Do you wish to change your
Add 3 ding £2,102,000 additional actual NHS funding? £4,602,209
Do you wish to change your
A Add a ding £15,081,483 additional actual LA funding? £16,321,944
Additiona b Tota | £17,183,483 | £20,924,153
Planned 22-23 Actual 22-23
Total BCF Pooled Fund £67,269,235 £71,009,905

Planned

Do you wish to change your

additional actual LA funding? Yes £1,519,220

Do you wish to change your

additional actual ICB funding? No

ICB Plan Spend £2,746,000

ASC Discharge Fund Total £4,242,000| £4,265,220
Planned 22-23 Actual 22-23
BCF + Discharge Fund £71,511,235 £75,275,125

RN G ST R s N E CR G E A EVA TR (| R el d e Tec | Nete L E=Pedll 2021-22 carried forward under-spend from BCF and DFG and additional in-year contributions explains the difference

where there is a difference between planned and actual income  [NEUNES N IETA T R ele) 1 T8
for 2022-23

2022-23
Plan

Do you wish to change your actual BCF expenditure?

Checklist

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes




g obed

Plan

Do you wish to change your actual BCF expenditure?

Actual £4,242,000

R (oM S T 1 T (= el VA T i1 B fs Tl oot Rtely =2 ol The actual spend in 2022/23 for discharge was £1,582,339m. However commitments and arrangements have been
where there is a differe between the planned and actual entered into totalling £2,659,661 resulting in a total spend of £4,242,000

expenditure for 2022-23

Yes

=

Yes




61 abed

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

6. Year-End Feedback

The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider and give feedback on the impact of the BCF.
There is a total of 5 questions. These are set out below.

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Wi|tshire ‘

elivery of the Better Care Fund

the below form to indicate to what with the following statements and then detail any further supp i ; n the corresponding comment boxes.

Checklist
Complete:

Statement: Response: Comments: Please detail any further supporting information for each response
The governance structure is embedded following the creation of the Integrated Care
1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working Alliance and working well.

Yes
between health and social care in our locality

Strongly Agree

All schemes implemented as planned, including the additional schemes developed at
pace to meet ASCDF guidance. These had a positive impact on hospital discharge
rates.

Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2022-

2
. Strongly Agree

Joint commissioning is evident in some services such as brokerage and joint

3. i in 2022-23 he iti
£ Wi iy S @ EEF Ehm fn 20 Shadllneete commissioning of the new PW2 bed model was successful.

impact on the integration of health and social care in our Strongly Agree
locality

Part 2: Successes and Challenges
Please select two Enablers from the SCIE Logic model which you have observed demonstrable success in progressing and two Enablers which you have experienced a relatively greater

degree of challenge in progressing.
Please provide a brief description alongside.

4. Outline two key successes observed toward driving the
enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in  SCIE Logic Model Enablers,
2022-23 Response category: Response - Please detail your greatest successes
Wiltshire Support at Home has been commissioned and will be at full operational capacity by June 2023 this has
6. Good quality and sustainable provided additional resource specifically for hospital discharges and to prevent unnecessary admissions. New
Success 1 provider market that can meet provider in the market with specialist rehabilitation training to enhance the dom care provision.

demand

Boards: Wiltshire ICA Partnership Committee; Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership; BSW Palliative Care and
2. Strong, system-wide EOLC Alliance; Urgent Care and Flow Board; Wiltshire Public Service Board. There is evidence of strong leadership
Success 2 governance and systems across the system and robust oversight and governance. Wiltshire has a strong ethos of learning and takes
leadership opportunities to review and reflect to identify areas for improvment at all levels.

5. Outline two key challenges observed toward driving the

enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in  SCIE Logic Model Enablers,
2022-23 Response category: Response - Please detail your greatest challenges
Graph net role out may address some of the difficulties, however there are existing challenges on accessing records
3. Integrated electronic records and data sharing

Challenge 1 and sharing across the system
with service users

4. Empowering users to have Resources specific to geographic areas - Wiltshire Council part of transformation needs to be taken forward to an
choice and control through an integrated approach across BSW. Need to develop process for joint funding and personal health budgets.
Challenge 2 asset based approach, shared
decision making and co-
production

Footnotes:

Question 4 and 5 are should be assigned to one of the following categories:

1. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rural factors)

2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership

3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users

4. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared decision making and co-production
5. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce

6. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand

7. Joined-up regulatory approach

8. Pooled or aliened resources



0G abed

Better Care Fund 2022-23 End of Year Template

ASC Discharge Fund

Selected Health and 'wellbeing Board

whiltshire

Pleass complete and submit this section (slong with Cover sheet contained within this workbook] by 2nd May

Fare3ch scheme type pléase canfitm the impact of the scheme in relatian to the relevant units asked for and actusl expenditure. Pleass then provide narrative around

spend. At the very bottom of this sheet there is atotals summary, please also include aggregate spend by L and ICB which should match actual total prepapulation.

The o

1)Far’ *and ‘bed based

from the fund. T

this achieve 120 weeks of bed based care].

2)For home care or

3)For reablement in a person's own home, p

X the number of

the number of

41For improuement retention of existing Workiorce', please state the number of staff this relates to.
5] For ‘Additional or redeployed capacity From ourrent care workers', please state the number of additional hours worked purchased through the Fund purchased.

6] For Assistive

FIFor ‘Losal Recritment Initiatives', please state

If there are any additional scheme types invested in since the submitted plan, please enter these into the bottom section found by serolling further down,

Additional social care
practitioners in Feablement
team

Local recruitrnent initi stives

A 9 the
the additional number of staff this has helped recruit through the Fund

was wilized, the

it provided and and

for each sheme and sub type and the unit For this metric has been pre-populated. This will align with metrics reported in Fortnightly retums for scheme types.
cate services’ please state the nUMber of beds purchased through the fund. (i,

101beds 3re made availsble for 12 weeks, please put 10in column H and please sdd inyaur column K szplanation that

rurnber of
additional
staff

3 additional staff recruited For Tyear.

carers support

mealtcheck has released operational reablement staff
to support additional discharges.

hospital discharge. From January to March 2023, 717
meals were delivered, fresing up significant capacity

Care Act Assessment Local recruitrment initiatives £378000 [E375000 |230 wurnber of Mo 230 care act azsessments (Jan - Mar 2023] carried out | Yes January - March 2023 222 assessments completed by [Main learning point is
backlog additional via agency staff has ensured existing social work Liguid Personnel [Agency). Each assessment that qualified social
staff resource could be diverted to support additional rermoved from the backlog is adding capacity to workers are difficult to
Care Market Provider Home Care or Domiciliary | Domiciliary care packages |£500,000 | £500,000 Hours of  |Yes 85 providers were given grants to support recruitment | Yes These were small grants paid to 85 Dorniciliary Care | This improved
Suppart Care care and retention. This was a change from the original providers in Wiltshire who could dermonstrate that | relationisips with
Plan to use the funds to supplerent complex or hard- they would spend the grant on recruitment and providers at atime
Complex needs SPOT Residential Placements Cither £1323,000° 81,322,000 96 Nurnber of Mo J4E Weeks of Bed Based care. This rumber will Yes Being able to fund additional capacity For the most Scherne spending
beds and assaociated beds increase as patients are being discharged. complex of patients has resulted in 96 more needs careful
equipment [physical and discharges than would otherwise have been the case | monitoring due to the
Council front line staff Irnprove retention of Incentive payments 778,000 |£778.000 MA Mo k3 staff payments to date with Further pavments Yes January applications across all three services the response in terms
winter incentive scheme existing workFarce pending, [Wiltshire Support at Home, Reablernert and of aplications and
Outrgach and Intensive Enablement Service was 25 | recruitrent was
Dorathw House bed Residential Placements Mursing horne £89,000 2 MNurnber of [T 24 weeks of bed based care Tes The additional capacity has resulted in better The lead-in ime to sat
provision beds utilisation across their whole bed base. Ithas meant | beds up was longer
am additional B discharges in the period from January |than estimated. There
Increass Intensive Local recruitrnent initi atives £53.000 £59,000 2 rurnber of (Mo 2 additonal staff recruited for 1year. Yes The recruitrnent of 2 officers has resulted in 4
Enablernent Support (MH additional additional discharges January-March 2023, These are
and LD] staff wery complex cases and require significant resource
Mental Health flaw Additional ar redeploved  |Costs of agency staff ET7B.000  [£172.000 hours Yes . - = |es Please see Swindon return
; e ency W 2 Wi g s Aot 0 W
coordination sspacity from current care worked :
workers ke migeital el s Catcomes wil b raparted
Project Coordination Adrministration £45,000 £45,000 MNA Yes Assisted with the additional work of administering and
PO bring Schemes
Shared Lives Placements  [Home Care or Domiciliary £75,000 £75,000 Hours of 4 additional placernents: These are long-term 'live-in' |Yes Assisted with the additional work of adrministering and
Care care placements For vulnerable people with mental health monitoring schemes,
issues.
Wiltshire Council in-reach [Local recruitment initiatives | <Please Select> 23240007 (£324000 |k MA b additional staff recruted for Tyear. This resulted in | Yes
to acute and cornmunity 342 additional dizcharges across 3 acute hospitals
sattings serving Wiltshire residents.
“wiiltshire Health and Care  (Local recruitment initiatives EE 00 EE N0 e nurnber of b additional staff recruited For Tuear. This resulted ine |Yes
in-reach plan to acute additional 192 additional discharges across 4 staff. 2 roles are
hospitals staff pending start dates
Wiltshire VLS offer and Cither 8 it 285,000 MA 1613 meals provided slongside welfare checks. Each [Yes Meals can be provided daily for up to 28 days post Referrals not as high

a5 expected in the early
weeks but this has




Agenda Item 9

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

25 May 2023

Subject: Draft BSW ICS Implementation Plan 2023/24

Executive Summary

l. Every Integrated Care Board (ICB) in England is required to produce
a Joint Forward Plan (JFP) setting out how the ICB and NHS
partners in each system will implement their Integrated Care
Strategy (we are calling our strategy the BSW Strategy) and also
meet their legal duties to the local population in 2023/24;

Il. As part of this requirement ICBs and partner trusts are subject to a
general legal duty in involve each Health and Wellbeing Board
(HWB) in the geographical area with particular reference as to how
the ICB proposes to implement the relevant Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategies (JLHWS);

Il. In the BaNES, Swindon & Wiltshire system partners have agreed to
call the JFP the Implementation Plan for the BSW Strategy and
present the work across all partners rather than solely the NHS
partners;

V. In fulfilling this requirement the ICB is informally consulting with
Wiltshire HWB to seek an opinion on whether the draft takes proper
account of the Wiltshire JLHWS;

V. The draft Implementation Plan is being shared with all HWB
members and the discussion at the meeting is part of this process;

VI. The HWB is required to respond to the ICB with that opinion telling
the ICB;

VIl.  The HWB may also share this opinion with NHS England, telling the
ICB and partner trusts that it has done so; and

VIIl.  As appropriate, the Implementation Plan will be amended following
this engagement process and shared with the HWB prior to final
publication on 30" June 2023.

Proposal

The draft Implementation plan 023/24 will be shared with HWB members in
advance of the meeting which you are asked in consider alongside the BSW
Strategy. For ease of reference the link to the BSW Strategy and Executive
Summary is provided here:

Our Integrated Care strategy - BSW Together

The item at the HWB meeting will be organised as a workshop to support as
full discussion as possible. Whilst it is important for members to consider the

Page 51


https://bswtogether.org.uk/about-us/our-integrated-care-strategy/

plan as a whole it is recognised that the majority of the time will be spent in
considering the Wiltshire specific sections.

The session will start with a brief overview of the plan followed by group
discussion including seeking answers to a small group of questions to inform
the completion of the plan prior to publication.

It is recommended that the Board:

)] Considers the content of the Implementation Plan and provides
feedback including responses to the Engagement Process questions
made available at the meeting; and

1)) Contributes to the opinion the HWB will provide on whether the plan
takes proper account of the Wiltshire JLHWS.

It is also recommended that the Health & Wellbeing Board delegates provision
of the final opinion to the Chair, in consultation with the Corporate Director of
People (Wiltshire Council) and the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance Director
(BSW ICB), given that there is not another Health & Wellbeing Board prior to
publication on June 30%.

Reason for Proposal

In preparing or revising our Implementation Plan, we are subject to a general
legal duty to involve each HWB whose area coincides with that of the ICB,
wholly or in part.

The plan itself must describe how the ICB proposes to implement relevant
JLHWSs. As part of this process the ICB, on behalf of the ICP, is consulting
Wiltshire HWB on whether the draft takes proper account of the Wiltshire
JLHWS as described earlier in this paper. It should be noted that the final plan
must include a statement of the final opinion of each HWB consulted.

As part of the annual refresh process we will work with partners to review the
plan before the start of each financial year, by updating or confirming that it is
being maintained for the next financial year. It is important to recognise that
2022/23 is a transition year for the ICS and that it will require time and
extensive engagement to fully develop integrated care strategies. The annual
refresh of the plan will allow us to update and provides the opportunity for
further engagement and collaboration, as well as the opportunity to continue to
reflect the most appropriate delivery mechanisms and additional and new
partner actions to support delivery of the BSW Strategy. As part of this refresh
process the same requirements regarding engagement and consultation apply.

The key components of the Implementation Plan are as follows:

e Introduction including purpose of the plan and links to the BSW Strategy
and our system working arrangements

e Headline information on the makeup of the BSW population

e Headlines from the local implementation plans from each of BaNES,
Swindon and Wiltshire

e Our progress in developing outcome measures provide assurance on
delivery of the Strategy

Page 52




o Key elements of plans to Strategic Objective 1; Focus on Prevention
and Early Intervention in 2023/24

e Key elements of plans to Strategic Objective 2; Fairer Health and
Wellbeing Outcomes in 2023/24

o Key elements of plans to Strategic Objective 3; Excellent Health and
Care Services in 2023/24

e Headlines of the enabling workstreams to support delivery of the
Strategy for 2023/24

¢ Monitoring performance and delivery of the plan in 2023/24

e Ongoing engagement and involvement in the plan and Strategy

e Appendices describing a range of statutory duties the ICB is required to
meet

It is recognised that this is a long and detailed document due to the range of
activities undertaken. It is likely that the plan will primarily be a resource for
system partners to use during the year however we also want it to be a
document that our local population can use to refer to on the work being taken
forward. Therefore any considerations on language and presentation would be
welcomed. It should be noted that we will be working on format during the
engagement process and the final plan will be published on the BSW Together
website.

David Jobbins
Interim Deputy Director — Planning & Programmes
BSW ICB

Page 53




Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

25 May 2023

Subject: Draft BSW ICS Implementation Plan 2023/24

Purpose of Report

1. To present and discuss the key elements of the Implementation Plan
2023/24 as part of the engagement process on the plan with a particular
focus on seeking the opinion of the HWB on whether the draft takes
proper account of the Wiltshire JLHWS.

Relevance to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2. The Implementation Plan sets out how Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)
members will work together through 2023/24 to support the delivery of the
JLHWS.

Background

1. Our ICP (BSW Together) has produced a five year Integrated Care
Strategy covering 2023 — 2028 called the BSW Strategy that brings
together all system partners. This strategy will be refreshed annually.

2. Every Integrated Care Board (ICB) in England is required to produce a
Joint Forward Plan (JFP) setting out how the ICB and NHS partners in
each system will implement the strategy and also meet their legal duties to
the local population. This Plan will also be refreshed on an annual basis
through the life of the strategy.

3. In the BaNES, Swindon & Wiltshire system partners have agreed to call
the JFP the Implementation Plan for the BSW Strategy and present the
work across all partners rather than solely the NHS partners.

4. The Plan being presented to the Board is the draft 2023/24 iteration.

5. As part of this requirement ICBs and partner trusts are subject to a
general legal duty in involve each Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in
the geographical area with particular reference as to how the ICB
proposes to implement the relevant Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategies (JLHWS).

6. In fulfilling this requirement the ICB is informally consulting with Wiltshire
HWB to seek an opinion on whether the draft takes proper account of the
Wiltshire JLHWS.

7. The draft Implementation Plan is being shared with all HWB members and
the discussion at the meeting is part of this process.

8. The HWB is required to respond to the ICB with that opinion telling the
ICB.

9. The HWB may also share this opinion with NHS England, telling the ICB
and partner trusts that it has done so.

Page 54



10.  As appropriate, the Implementation Plan will be amended following this
engagement process and shared with the HWB prior to final publication on
30" June 2023.

Main Considerations

1. HWB members are asked to consider the Plan as a whole with particular
reference on whether it takes proper account of the Wiltshire JLHWS.
2. It is important to note that this consideration should be in the context of the

BSW Strategy that has taken the priorities of the three local JLHWS in
setting out three Strategic Objectives which have been agreed by the ICP.

3. It should be noted that the Plan will be refreshed annually which will
provide the opportunity to reflect our growing partnership approach to
implementing the Strategy. We are at the beginning of this process which
means that, in some areas, the focus for Year 1 (2023/24) will be setting
place the arrangements to support integrated delivery and this progress
will be reflected in the 2024/25 refresh and beyond.

4. Comments from the HWB will be built into the final version of the Plan
alongside the responses from other HWBs and other partner engagement.
5. As we take forward both the Strategy and the Plan we will continue to

engage with partners and also with the local population over the 2023 —
2028 life of the Strategy.

Next Steps

1. The ICB, on behalf of system partners, will incorporate comments and
feedback in to the final version of the 2023/24 Plan.

2. The HWB is asked to provide an opinion on the plan, which can also be
shared with NHS England, before publication of the plan.

3. The Health & Wellbeing Board to delegate provision of the final opinion to

the Chair, in consultation with the Corporate Director of People (Wiltshire
Council) and the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance Director (BSW ICB),
given that there is not another Health & Wellbeing Board prior to
publication on June 30%.

4, The final 2023/24 Plan will be published and made available on the BSW
Together website following 30 June 2023.

5. We will be commencing the refresh process on both the Strategy and the
Plan for 2024/25 in the coming months.

David Jobbins Emma Higgins

Interim Deputy Director — Associate Director — Wiltshire
Planning & Programmes ICA Programme & Delivery Lead
BSWICB BSWICB

Report Author:

David Jobbins, Interim Deputy Director — Planning & Programmes, BSWICB

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire

Integrated Care Board

Engagement Draft
BSW Implementation Plan -
V01

Page 57

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 1 of 192



1. INtrodUCLION N PUIMPOSE: ... . eeeeieiiiie e e ettt e e e e e et e e et e e e e e e e e eeeeabnn e e e e eeeeeeenees 4
Purpose of the Implementation Plan: ... 4
(@ TN G (=1 (=T ) V20 = B o= Vo = 5
Our partnership ViSioN and StratEQY . ....... ... uuuuuuuumiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie e 5
2. Working together to deliver OUr Strat@gy ............uuuueurrrruuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeees 8
(@ 0] [ = PO PPRPPRR 8
BSW ICB ..ottt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e bt e e e e e e e e e e nnnr e raeaaeas 8
AcUte HOSPItAl AllIBNCE:......ceiieii et e e e et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e aaeeeenne 9
SYStEM-WiIde PrOQIraMIMES .....coeiiiiiiiiii e e e e ee ettt e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e n e e e e e e e e e eeaannannas 10
Ongoing engagement and INVOIVEMENT...........cooiiiieiiiiiiiiee e e 11
(@ 11 g oo 11 ] = £ [0 1 12
1T 0] 11 V7= 11 [0 o USSP 15
[ o | PSPPSR 18
5. Our local Implementation PIANS: ..........uuuuuuuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiii 20
BaAN S .o e e e —t e e e e e e a e —aaaaeeaeaaaaananaes 20
Y17/ T [0 o 28
L AT 1L T = SRR 34
6.  OUI OULCOMES MEASUIES: ... iieiitieeeeette e e eetta e e e e eat e e e eetaa e e aeesa e e aeeaba e eeeessaaeeeesnnnaaaeees 50
What We WIll MEASUIE: ... e e e s e e e e e e e e eeaaana s e e e e e e eeeennes 50
Strategic Objective 1: Focus on prevention and early intervention................ccceeevvvvvnnnnn. 50
Strategic Objective 2: Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes...........ccccccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiininnnnn. 54
Strategic Objective 3: Excellent health and care ServiCes...........cccccvvviiiiiiiieeeceeeeiiiinnn. 59
7. Strategic Objective 1: Focus on Prevention and Early Intervention................cccc......... 63
INEFOAUCTION ... 63
Physical wellbeing -Tackling obesity in adults and increasing the proportion of children
and young people who are healthy weight: ..o 65
SMOKING CESSATION ...ttt 70
Smoking cessation — B&NES, Swindon and WIltShire............ccoovvviiiiiieeeiieeeceeeee e 72
Mental Wellbeing - PreVeNTION .........oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 76
Long term conditions: Cardiovascular disease (CVD) and Diabetes.........ccccccccvvvvrennnnn. 81
Cancer and Screening (cervical, breast and bowel): ... 83
Long term conditioNS: RESPIFALOIY .......cccuvuuiieeiiiie e 85
Long term conditions: CVD €VENE FECOVEIY .......uuiiiiiiiiie et 88
Children and Young People Focus on Prevention and Early Intervention:...................... 92
8. Strategic Objective 2: Fairer Health and Wellbeing OQutcomes ............ccovviiviiviiiinnenenns 100
Fairer Health and Wellbeing Outcomes — AN OVEIVIEW ........cccuevevieeieeiiiveeeeeeiieeeeeiieenens 100
Page 58

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 2 of 192



An increased focus on children and young people;........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 106

9. Strategic Objective 3: Excellent Health and Care Services..........ccccccceeiiiieeeieeeeiinnnnnnn. 111
Excellent Health and Care Services — AN OVEIVIEW............coevvvvviiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeee 111
(O 1T o]0 0] 41110 1= 1 5SS PR 111
STo V(=10 B =T o 10 TP TRTTRRRTN 112
PersONaliSEA Care:.......ooiiiiiiiiie et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaaee 114
Joined up local teams / Neighbourhood teams ............ccooiiieiiiiiiiiiiii e 116
[ T =TV - = USSP 116
Urgent and EMErgenCy Care:........oouuuuuiiiieeeiieeeeiiiiii e e e e e e e et s e e e e e e e e eeasaan s e e e e e eeennnes 119
VIFTUBL WATTS: ... 123
Community DiagnoStiC faCiliti@S: ........oiiie e 126
Mental HEAIIN: ........ooiiiiiiee e 130
Learning Disability and AULISIM ...........uuiiiii e e e e e e e e eeeens 137
=T YT O USRS 140
(O o (o7 oo PSP 142
Y E= LT € 11RO PPPPPPPPP 145
10. ENabliNg WOIKSIIEaAIMS: ... ..o 151
Delivering AgainSst OUr STratE@gIES: .......coviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt 151
Financial sustainability and Shifting funding to Prevention:...........cccccccvviviiiiiiiiiiinennnn. 153
VO IO G .. 154
Technology and Data: .............uuiiiii i e 158
EStates Of the FULUME: .....ooiiieieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 165
Environmental Sustainability: ..............ooiiii i 168
Our role as Anchor Institutions & supporting wider social and economic development:
..................................................................................................................................... 170
Duty to have regard to wider effects of deCiSIONS: ............ooovvveiiiiiiiiiiieccee e, 173
11.Monitoring performance and deliVery ... 179
12, APPENAICES ... 180
Duty to obtain APPropriate AGVICE: .........eevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeee ettt 180
Duty t0 Promote INNOVALION: .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee ettt 181
Duty in Respect Of RESEAICN:..........u i 183
Addressing the particular needs of victims of abuse (including Serious Violence Duty)
..................................................................................................................................... 186
Duty to enable Patient ChoICE: ..........cooiiiiiii e 188
Procurement/Supply Chain: ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 191

Page 59

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 3 of 192



1. Introduction and purpose:

Purpose of the Implementation Plan:

The purpose of this plan is to enable our local populations, our partners and our
stakeholders to have a clear picture of the programmes and plans that will be delivered in
support of our partnership strategy.

This Implementation Plan sets out how we and our partners working together at system
level and in our places, Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire, will deliver
our Integrated Care Strategy over the period 2023 — 2028. This is our version of the Joint
Forward Plan that all Integrated Care Boards (ICB’s) across England are required to
produce for their respective systems.

This is the first time we are publishing an implementation plan, and this document focuses
on plans for 2023/24 with a high-level vision for where we plan to be in 2028. The plan will
be refreshed annually, and more detail will be added in future publications as to our plans
and milestones for future years.

It is our expectation that both the plan and the process will mature through the five-year
period of the Strategy so that the document becomes an increasingly comprehensive
delivery plan which partner organisations and our local communities can use to
understand and track our progress as a system.

Our system is made up of three distinct local areas — or Places — and a wide range of
organisations which may operate at one or more of Neighbourhood, Place or System level.
The name we have given to our Integrated Care Partnership is BSW Together. The BSW
Strategy, from which this Implementation Plan is derived, sets out what BSW Together
aims to achieve for our population in the next five years and is informed by strategies and
plans, including the three Health and Wellbeing Strategies, produced by partners singly
and collectively. The aim is that when these strategies and plans are seen together, they
provide a coherent whole of what we aim to do and achieve. Whilst this plan, and its
subsequent refreshes, seeks to set out the key elements of how we will implement the
strategy the detail of particular transformation programmes and Place based strategies
and plans will set out the specifics and detail of what is needed in each area. We
recognise that as part of our engagement and communication with partners and local
people that we will need to set out the roadmap of how everything comes together as the
aligned and constituent parts of BSW Together.

The structure of the document reflects our intention for the plan to be a working document
setting out our plan for the year in an easily digestible form as well as providing a summary
of how the ICB will meet each of its legislative duties. The structure gives a particular focus
on how we are delivering our BSW priorities together through system activities, and also
our Place level priorities through our Place based local implementation plans. Both of
these activities are supported by our enabling plans and our engagement work with our
local communities.

Page 60

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 4 of 192



Assurance on delivery will be shared with our ICB Board on a quarterly basis and
published in our public meeting papers.

Our strategy-on-a-page:

l Bath and North East Somerset,
9 Our Infegrufed Care Sfrategy oh a page ‘{ Swindon and Wiltshire Together

Bath & North East Somerset Swindon Wiltshire
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint
Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy

The BSW Vision

We listen and work effectively together fo improve health and wellbeing and reduce inequalities.

What we
will deliver We will deliver this vision by prioritising three clear objectives:

together
1. Focus on prevention CQ
and early intervention

2. Fairer health and 3. Excellent health @

wellbeing outcomes and care services
1

The BSW Care Model:

Healthier Communities Personalised Care Joined-up Local Teams Local Specialist Services Specialist Centres

Enablers to help make it happen:

e i & 3

How we will
deliver it

Shifting funding
fo prevention

Developing Technology Estates of Environmental Our rolg @
our workforce and data the future sustainability Anchor Institutions

Figure 1: Our Integrated Care Strategy on a page

Our partnership vision and strategy

The Integrated Care Strategy, from which this Plan is informed, has built on the emerging
priorities outlined in the following individual strategies:

Place Based Strategies
e BaNES Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
e Swindon Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
e Wiltshire Joint local Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Organisational Strategies

These include:

NHS organisations (e.g., Trust strategies)

Local Authorities (e.g., Local Plans, Air Quality Strategies)
VCSE organisations

Wider public sector (e.g., fire and police)

Universities

Page 61

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 5 of 192



Thematic Strategies
These include:

Health Inequalities Strategy
Primary Care Strategy

Mental Health & Wellbeing Strategy
Children & Young People Strategy
Children Looked After Strategy
Elective Care Strategy

Urgent Care & Flow Strategy

Acute Services Clinical Strategy
End of Life Strategy

Enabling Strategies
These include:

BSW Green Plan

Financial Sustainability Strategy
People Strategy

Digital Strategy

Infrastructure Strategy

Quiality Strategy

In our BSW strategy, we set out our vision that our partners across health and care are

“Listening and working effectively to improve health and wellbeing and reduce

inequalities”. It sets out that partners across our Integrated Care Partnership are united in
a belief that our future must be based on meaningful, ongoing engagement with local
people.

Our strategy has three primary objectives:

Focus on prevention and early intervention

Areas of Focus

1
2.
3

4.

Focusing funding and resources on prevention rather than treatment
Intervening before ill-health occurs (primary prevention)

Identifying ill-health early (secondary prevention)

Slowing or stopping disease progression (tertiary prevention)

5. Wider determinants of health
6.

Support babies, children, and young people to Start Well recognising an increased
focus on children and young people, this is prevention in action for our future

population.

Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes
Areas of Focus
1. Adopting CORE20PLUS5 and Children & Young People CORE20PLUS5

2. A system wide focus on reducing health inequalities

Page 62

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 6 of 192



Excellent health and care services
Areas of Focus

1. Personalised care
Joined up local teams
Responsive local specialist services
High quality specialist centres
Mental health and parity of esteem

vk wNnN

The strategy also describes our key enabling pieces of work that will help make this
happen:

e Shifting funding to prevention

e Developing our workforce

e Technology and Data

e Estates of the Future

e Environmental sustainability

e Our role as Anchor institutions

This Implementation Plan describes how we are going to fulfil these objectives through our
work at system, place and through our enabling programmes. It describes the key goals
and milestones that will help us track progress and deliver these three objectives and the
associated commitments set out in the strategy.

How this plan is structured

The BSW Strategy and this Implementation Plan bring together the key elements of what
we aim to deliver and change through the three Strategic Objectives though the lens of the
whole array of place based, organisational, thematic and enabling strategies we have
agreed in the BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire system. Whilst undoubtedly complex, we
have structured the plan to present the work being driven forward at a place level in
support of the respective Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategies and then moved on
to examine thematic and organisational strategies in the context of the three Strategic
Objectives. We have separated out the enabling workstreams which support work against
some or all of the local plans and delivery of the three Strategic Objectives as it would
probably be repetitive to list the enabling workstreams as part of each of the other delivery
chapters.

Page 63

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 7 of 192



2. Working together to deliver our strategy

Over the last seven years our ways of working together have been evolving as we have
transitioned from our Sustainability and Transformation Partnership into an Integrated care
System. Our Integrated Care System is made of a number of statutory organisations, and
partnership collaboratives, system-wide programmes that together help us achieve the
aims set out for ICSs in legislation.

DIAGRAM - to be added

During 2023/24 we will be reviewing the effectiveness of both our governance and
programme management arrangements with the aim of identifying where refinements
should be made in order to drive both our partnership and transformation work forwards.
This process will draw on our experiences of the last twelve months and will help us to
refine how we align the authority to lead with the responsibility and accountability for
delivery across our system. This may result in delegation of resources and responsibilities
to designated parts of our system (e.g., ICA, Provider Collaboratives).

Our ICP

The ICP is the statutory committee that sits within the local integrated care system,
and brings together a broad alliance of partners concerned with improving the care,
health and overall wellbeing of the population. It is responsible for preparing the ICP
strategy and is chaired by CllIr Richard Clewer, leader of Wiltshire Council.

There has been active participation in the ICP from a range of statutory and non-statutory
organisations across BSW, however it is still a relatively small forum, and we need to
further develop both the ICP’s role within our integrated care system and the involvement
opportunities that it can offer to stakeholders across BSW. The development of our ICP
needs to take due account of, and bring additional value to the engagement and
involvement activities that are already underway in each of our three Place’s.

To achieve this the ICP will use its meetings throughout 2023/24 to bring together
colleagues from our three places to focus on areas of common interest, and how we can
evidence our progress towards a greater focus on prevention and early intervention. In
doing this we will take opportunities for wider engagement activities with our local
population and other stakeholders to co-develop both the outcomes we are working
towards and the initiatives that will enable us to deliver them. The approach will be
underpinned by the use of population health information.

List lead and email address for further information
Richard Smale, ICB Director of Strategy and Transformation — r.smale@nhs.net

BSW ICB

The Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) is
a statutory body which brings together NHS organisations with local authorities and other
partners to work to improve population health and establish shared strategic priorities.

Page 64

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 8 of 192



The ICB oversees how money is spent and makes sure that health services work well and
are of high quality. It brings together hospitals, primary care, local councils, hospices,
voluntary community, and social enterprise (VCSE) organisations and Healthwatch
partners in our local places: Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire.

As an ICB, we have taken on the functions and broader strategic responsibility for
overseeing healthcare strategies for the system from Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group, which has now been dissolved

[Placeholder for inclusion of description of other statutory organisations]
Acute Hospital Alliance:

The BSW Acute Hospital Alliance (AHA) is a provider collaborative, made up of Salisbury
NHS Foundation Trust, Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Foundation Trust, and Great
Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.

The AHA aims to maximise delivery of benefits to the people of BSW helping them to live
happier and healthier for longer. The collaborating Trusts will enable the delivery of
excellent health and care services working closely with the UEC and Elective Care
programmes to deliver the BSW Care Model and ICP Strategy. As a provider collaborative,
the AHA is committed to financial sustainability in BSW.

Our AHA Clinical Strategy sets the ambition to deliver the highest quality care for the
population of BSW. We want to set a clear aim for services to achieve excellent (upper-
guartile) performance against relevant measures, compared nationally. We will work
together to deliver our elective strategy, maximising the benefit of elective cold site, Sulis,
for the BSW system and SW partners.

A Corporate Services Excellence Programme is in development with scoping taking
place on; digital, people, estates, financial services, communications and legal.

In February 2023, BSW AHA was selected to be part of the first cohort of the NHS
England Provider Collaborative Innovation Scheme. Membership of this scheme will drive
delivery with tailored support and the opportunity to network and share learning and
innovation with peers.

A Clinical Strategy Programme Board, chaired by the SFT CMO, is in place overseeing
emergent clinical priorities (linked to UEC and elective care strategy delivery) as well as
the programme of specialty deep dives. An EPR Programme Board oversees delivery of
the EPR programme and delivery of associated benefits. Our programme delivery is
underpinned by our continuous quality improvement approach, Improving Together.

Leads for further information
e AHA SRO -Stacey Hunter. stacey.hunter@nhs.net
e Programme Director — Ben Irvine. ben.irvine@nhs.net

Page 65

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 9 of 192


mailto:stacey.hunter@nhs.net
mailto:ben.irvine@nhs.net

System-wide Programmes
[placeholder for description of system-wide programmes]

Page 66

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 10 of 192



3. Ongoing engagement and involvement

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (BSW ICB)
has a duty to involve patients and the public. ICBs are subject to the new ‘triple aim’ duty
in the Health and Care Act 2022 (sections 13NA, 14743, 26A and 63A respectively)
requiring the ICB to have regard to ‘all likely effects’ of their decisions in relation to three
areas:

e Health and wellbeing for people, including its effects in relation to inequalities.

e Quality of health services for all individuals, including the effects of inequalities in
relation to the benefits that people can obtain from those services.

e The sustainable use of NHS resources.

Our Integrated Care Strategy is the first chapter in an iterative process which will continue
to develop with input from stakeholders across BSW.

We have engaged with key stakeholders to help inform the development of this draft,
including a well-attended stakeholder engagement event in December 2022. We collated
feedback from attendees at this event and used this to inform the focus and structure of
the strategy.

Since developing a full first draft of the strategy in January 2023, we have engaged with
members of the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector Alliance groups
across Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire.

The strategy has also been presented to Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees,
Health and Wellbeing Boards and Integrated Care Alliances in each locality at both the
draft and final version stages.

Ongoing engagement with our people and communities will be guided by our people and
communities' engagement strategy and based around the 10 principles for engagement.
Our Public and Community Engagement Committee provide assurance to the board that
that the ICB discharges its statutory duties and functions re public involvement and
engagement. The committee provides assurance that ICB and its system partners have
effective public and community engagement processes, at system and place level.

We are engaging with partners and local Health and Wellbeing Boards on the draft
Implementation Plan, and this will include receiving opinions from the three Health and
Wellbeing Boards that the Plan is aligned with their respective Health and Wellbeing
Strategies and their associated priorities. The strategy and implementation plan will be
refreshed annually and this will provide a framework for ongoing engagement with partners
and also our local communities. The detail of how we will undertake this work in a way that
is closely linked with engagement on other strategies and developments is currently being
worked through and will be further set out in the final version of the 2023/24
Implementation Plan.

Page 67

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 11 of 192



4. Our population:

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire has a combined population of
around 923,000 people (BSW System Intelligence Report, 2021). Life expectancy across
the three areas varies from 73 years to 91 years according to sex and geographical
location.

Figure 2 Map of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire taken from ‘Our plan for health and care
2020-2024’, BSW Partnership (2020)

Figure 3/Figure 4/Figure 5 (from BSW system Intelligence Report; BSW, 2021; updated
2023 with permission) highlights population sizes, breakdown by age group, life
expectancy, healthy life expectancy, and inequality in life expectancy.

Inequality in life expectancy is represented by the slope index of inequality (SIlI), which is
based on statistical analysis of how much life expectancy varies with area deprivation. The
Sl represents the range in years of life expectancy across the social gradient from most to
least deprived.

Page 68

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 12 of 192


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-profile-for-england-2018/methods-data-and-definitions#slope-index-of-inequality-sii

Demographics

Bath and North East Somerset

Population Life expectancy
& lifeexpectancy847years
(X X ?
m 193,400 Healthy life expectancy 65.5 years

M Lfeewectancy808vears
IHI Healthy life expectancy 65.7 years

0-19 Years 23% of the population
are aged 19 or under

Inequality in life expectancy

_ 59% of the population
20-64 Years are aged between 20 4
and 64 years * 10 years
65+ Years 19% of the population -
are aged 65 and over 'n\ 9 years

Figure 3: Demographics BANES (BSW Partnership, 2021). Figures updated with permission from Bath and North
East Somerset Council Strategic Evidence Base (Bath and North East Somerset Council, 2022).

Demographics

Swindon

(1) )

Life expectancy “
g lifeexpectancy835years
(X XK | ﬁ

m 222,881

0-19 Years 25% of the population
are aged 19 or under

Population

Healthy life expectancy 62.3 years

M Lifeexpectancy802years
ln‘ Healthy life expectancy 62.8 years

. . . (3
Inequality in life expectancy

20-64 Years 59% of the population
are aged between 20

—
and 64 years * 7.0years
li‘

65+ Years 17% of the population

are aged 65 and over 5.7 years

Figure 4: Demographics Swindon (BSW Partnership, 2021

Page 69

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 13 of 192



Demographics

Wiltshire

)

Population . Life expectancy @

o0 O #_

m 510,400

0-19 Years 22% of the population
are aged 19 or under

Healthy life expectancy 65.2 years
N lifeexectancy809years
'n\ Healthy life expectancy 66.5 years

e @)
Inequality in life expectancy

_ 56% of the population
20-64 Years are aged between 20 4
and 64 years * 5.5 years
®
4k 22% of the population
65+ Years are aged 65 and over ’n‘ 7.2 years

Figure 5: Demographics Wiltshire (BSW Partnership, 2021). Figures updated with permission from Wiltshire JSNA
2022 (Wiltshire Council, 2022).

In BANES and Wiltshire, and nationally, the social gradient in life expectancy is steeper for
males. In Swindon, however, the social gradient in life expectancy is steeper for females.

There are further variations in life expectancy between neighbourhoods in BSW. For
example, a female in Bathavon South, BANES, can expect to live for 91 years, whereas a
male from Trowbridge Central, Wiltshire, can expect to live for 73 years (BSW Partnership,
2021).

Although women in the UK on average live longer than men, women spend a significantly
greater proportion of their lives in ill health and disability when compared with men
(Department of Health and Social Care, 2022). Women in inclusion health groups often
experience severely poor health outcomes. For example, women sleeping rough, on
average, die almost 40 years earlier than women in the general population (ONS, 2019),
and Gypsy, Roma and Traveller women are 20 times more likely than the wider population
to have experienced the death of a child (Women and Equalities Committee, 2019). The
Women’s Health Strateqy for England acknowledges that It is vital that we address these
stark disparities and improve health outcomes for women in these groups.

Page 70

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 14 of 192


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsofhomelesspeopleinenglandandwales/2019registrations
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsofhomelesspeopleinenglandandwales/2019registrations
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmwomeq/360/full-report.html
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmwomeq/360/full-report.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/womens-health-strategy-for-england

Children

BSW

In BSW, approximately._.

i i do not achieve a good level of
1in 3 children education at the end of reception:

1in 10 children are living in poverty:

1in 200 children areincare:

Figure 6: Children in BSW (BSW Partnership, 2021). Values updated in 2023 with permission: 1Public health
profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk); 2Local Health - Small Area Public Health Data - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk); 3Public
health profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk)

Figure 6 illustrates that, although many childhood indicators are better than the national
average in BSW, there are still many children that have difficult living circumstances.

Table 2 (BSW Partnership, 2021) shows measures of child health and wellbeing (rates of
child poverty, children in care, school readiness, teenage motherhood, and child mortality).

Deprivation

People living in deprived areas on average have poorer health and shorter lives. Research
shows that socioeconomic inequalities result in increased morbidity and decreased life
expectancy. The UCL Institute of Health Equity estimates 1.3 to 2.5 million potential years
of life lost annually due to inequalities (Marmot, 2010). Males living in the most deprived
tenth of areas can expect to live 9 fewer years compared with the least deprived tenth, and
females can expect to live 7 fewer years (Public Health England, 2017).

What defines whether an area is a deprived area is based on a number of characteristics
included in the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) — Income Deprivation, Employment
Deprivation; Education, Skills and Training Deprivation; Health Deprivation and Disability;
Crime; Barriers to Housing and Services; Living Environment Deprivation.

According to the IMD (2019), Bath, North East Somerset, Swindon, and Wiltshire remains
one of the least deprived parts in the country. However, this overall average masks
pockets of deep deprivation and inequality within each area, including 14 neighbourhoods
within the most deprived 10% nationally (2 in BANES, 1 in Wiltshire, and 11 in Swindon).
Swindon has a higher level of deprivation compared to Wiltshire and Bath and North East

Page 71

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 15 of 192


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019

Somerset. See appendix one for detailed breakdown of deprivation by neighbourhood
across BSW.

Table 1: Office for Health Improvement & Disparities (2022). Deprivation score for BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire
is highlighted.

Quintiles: | Best L ] Worst | Not applicable
Recent frends: = Couldnot be  wi No significant Increasing ‘ Decreasing
calculated change
Deprivation score (IMD 2019) 2019 Score
Area R;:::t Count Value Logu:f ¢l UpgpS:rn cl
England - - 21.7 -
South West region - - 18.2
Torbay - . 281 I
Plymouth - : 26 I
Bristol - - 26+
Cornwall - - 231 I
Swindon - . 186 |
Somerset - - 186
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole - - 18.2
Devon - - 16.6
North Somerset - - 15.8
Dorset - - 15.7
Gloucestershire = - 14.9
| Wiltshire - - 134 I
Isles of Scilly = - 12.0
I Bath and North East Somerset - - 1.7 - - I
South Gloucestershire - - 1.7

As there is variation in deprivation across the South West region, there is also variation
within the local authorities as exemplified here across the wards in Swindon.

Page 72

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 16 of 192



B Countofincome deprived = Percent income deprived (%)

4000

3000

2000

Count (based on
2017 population)

1000

Eastcott
Shaw

Rodbourne Cheney
Chiseldon and Lawn

Lydiard and Freshbrook
Covingham and Dorcan

o
17}
2
S
=
7]
£
o
-
€
w
=
it}
I}
=
[=]
o

Walcot and Park North

Penhill and Upper Stratton
Liden, Eldene and Park South
Mannington and Western
Wroughton and Wichelstowe
Blunsdon and Highworth

St Margaret and South Marston

Old Town

St Andrews
Priory Vale
Ridgeway

Haydon Wick

Figure 7: Income deprivation by ward in Swindon (IMD, 2019; taken from presentation by Maddern and Arulrajah,

2021)

During the pandemic there have been disproportionate deaths from COVID-19 between
those living in the most deprived areas and those living in the least deprived areas. These
mirror higher mortality due to other causes, in line with social gradient (Dodge and

Owolabi, 2021).

Page 73

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 17 of 192

20

15

10

(%) Juedied



Table 2: CYP Statistics in BSW (Data from Public Health Outcomes Framework Child and Maternal Health and
Mortality Profiles) Adapted from: BSW Partnership ‘NHS Long Term Plan - internal intelligence briefing’ 2021

BANES Swindon Wiltshire National
Children in absolute low- 8.1% 11.4% 8.5% 15.6%
income families (under 16s)
(2019/20)
Children in relative low- 9.6% 13.8% 10.3% 19.1%
income families (under 16s)
(2019/20)
Children in care per 10,000 50 60 43 67
population (2020)
Children in need due to family 69 88 47 94

stress or dysfunction or

absent parenting per 10,000

children under 18 (2017)

School readiness: % of 74% 71% 72% 72%
children achieving a good

level of development at the

end of Reception (2018/19)

Teenage mothers: Under 18s  13.1 17.7 9.0 16.7
conception rate per 1,000

(2019)

Teenage mothers: % of 0.6% 0.6% 0.5% 0.7%

deliveries where the mother is
under 18 (2019/20)

Infant mortality per 1,000 live 2.0 3.3 3.1 3.9
births (2017-2019)

Child mortality per 100,000 No data 9.5 11.1 10.8
population (1 -17 years)

(2017-19)

In BSW, significantly less children live in poverty compared with the national average,
which may reflect the relative affluence of the South West region. Still, around 1 in 10
children in BSW live in poverty. Of the three local authority areas of BSW, Swindon has
the highest proportion of children living in poverty, although it is significantly less than the
national average.

Ethnicity

Ethnicity also has a large and complex effect on health. In England, inequality is
experienced when comparing ethnic minority groups and those from white ethnic groups,
and between different ethnic minority groups (Robertson et al., 2021). The infographic

( Figure 8) highlights just some of the stark health inequalities related to ethnicity in the
UK.

Page 74

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 18 of 192



ETHNIC HEALTH
INEQUALITIES IN THE UK

| BLACK WOMEN ARE

: 4x MORE LIKELY

; THAN WHITE

. women to DIE in PREGNANCY or
" childbirth in the UK.

| Ref: https://bitly/3ihDweN

’ + IN BRITAIN, SOUTH ASIANS HAVE A

] '
; 400/ HIGHER
a : O peaTH RaTE
from GHD than the general
population.

" Ref: hitps://bitly/3iifodV

ACROSS THE COUNTRY, FEWER THAN

0/_ OFBLOOD
ﬁ /0 DONORS
v are from BLACK AND MINORITY
ETHNIC communities.

Ref: https:/bitly/3ulgi7r

| BLACK AFRICAN AND

| BLACK CARIBBEAN 8x
| PEOPLE ARE OVER

| more likely to be subjected to

1 .COMMUNITY TREATMENT ORDERS
. than White people.

| Ref: https://bit ly/3zKSIjL

SOUTH ASIAN & BLACK PEOPLE ARE

1 MORE LIKELY

1 2 v 4x T0 DEVELOP

: Type 2 diabetes than white people.
! Ref: https://bit.ly/3ulDy88

AFRICAN-CARIBBEAN 3x
MEN ARE UP TO

more likely to DEVELOP PROSTATE
CANCER than white men of the
same age.

Ref: https://bit.ly/ 39KWqEs

BLACK AND

MINORITY

ETHNIC PEOPLE 2x
the morlahly risk from COVID-19 than
people from a WHITE BRITISH
BACKGROUND.

Ref: https://bitly/3E2520d

ESTIMATES OF DISABI LITY-FREE LIFE
EXPECTANCY ARl

10 YEARS

LOWER FOR BANGLADESHI MEN living
in England compared to their White
British counterparts.

Ref: https://bit.ly/3urjmit

CONSENT RATES 4 2 o/
+ FOR ORGAN
| DONATION ARE AT o

| for Black and minority ethnic
1 communities and 71% FOR WHITE

i )/ OF ALLDEATHSIN
; 4 0 ENGLAND &

b i WALES, IN 2019,
+were caused by CARDIO
| VASCULAR DISEASE in Black and

e O %ﬁ 20 @»

| minority ethnic groups. | ELIGIBLE DONORS.

| Ref: https://bit.ly/3CYz22P i Ref: https:/bitly/3ogli3tm
SRS B vigh | ouroes for sbove NHS
www.nhsrho.org ‘ RACE &HEALTH
October 2021 OBSE RVATORY

Figure 8: Taken from NHS - Race and Health Observatory (2021)

Nationally, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a disproportionate impact on ethnic minority
communities, who have experienced higher infection and mortality rates than the white
population. Geography, deprivation, occupation, living arrangements and health conditions
such as CVD and diabetes accounted for a large proportion, but not all, of the excess
mortality risk of Covid-19 in ethnic minority groups (Raleigh and Holmes, 2021). It is
important to understand the distribution of different ethnic groups across BSW as health
outcomes, attitudes and beliefs, as well as health service accessibility and usage can vary.

There are approximately 87,000 people from ethnic minority communities living in BSW
(ONS, 2021). Swindon has significantly more residents from a black and ethnic minority
group: 18.5% in Swindon, compared to 7.8% in BANES and 5.6% in Wiltshire (ONS,
2021). In all three areas the largest ethnic group after ‘White British’ is ‘Asian/Asian
British/Asian Welsh’ (ONS, 2021).

Page 75

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 19 of 192



5. Our local implementation plans:

Much of our work is driven at a Place, or local authority footprint, level and is informed by
the needs of the local population. Our three local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments have
been developed by the respective public health departments and underpin the priorities
and strategic direction of each of the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategies which, in
turn, have informed the local implementation plans set out in this chapter.

This chapter sets out how partners across health and care are working together to provide
accessible care nearer to where people live and also enable us to build an approach
rooted in prevention and early intervention to support our population to remain healthier
and happier and as long as possible. This focus sits at the heart of the BSW Strategy and
is taken forward through the three Strategic Objectives on which the strategy is built.

BaNES:

Context

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy is a seven-year strategy that identifies four priorities for
improving health and wellbeing and reducing inequalities for the Bath and North East
Somerset (BaNES) population. These are:

e Ensure that children and young people are healthy and ready for learning and
education

e Improve skills, good work and employment

e Strengthen compassionate and healthy communities

e Create health promoting places

These priorities are directly informed by the intelligence collated in the BaNES Strategic
Evidence Base (also known as the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, or JSNA).

The strategy was developed by working closely with local partners from health, social care,
the local authority, community and social enterprise groups. Residents of BaNES also
played a key role in identifying priorities through public consultation.

The strategy and its implementation plan complement and align with other strategies and
plans, such as the Economic Strategy, the Local Plan, and the BaNES Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Strategy by setting out ambitions and a plan to improve health
and wellbeing through the combined efforts of partners on the Health and Wellbeing
Board. It is intended to also set high-level direction for the BaNES Integrated Care
Alliance.

How we are organised to deliver

Our ICA has embraced the opportunity for new ways of integrated working and closer
alignment with partners. To achieve this and recognising the scale of our area and
capacity of partners, we utilise existing local forum wherever possible to govern our locality
joint working.

This includes:

1. an Integrated Care Alliance and Locality Commissioning group that feed directly into
the ICB Board and other sub-committees as required and works closely with our Health
and Wellbeing Board.

Page 76

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 20 of 192



2. An Alliance Delivery operational group — that holds the work of the locality in one
strategic place, and is empowered to setup relevant task and finish groups as required
to respond to any BSW wide transformation that needs a locality input , response or
lead.

3. Health and Wellbeing Board sub-groups that feed into specific themed work areas
across our system. For example, the BaNES Children and Young People sub-group of
the Health and Well Being Board feeds into the Children and Young People
programme board of the BSW ICB.

By keying into existing structures, we reduce duplication, maximise efficiencies, capacity,
capability and skills. This enables us to use our resources to target joint working in a way
that can be flexible in meeting our needs, standing up and standing down groups as
needed.

The Health and Wellbeing Board and the Integrated Care Alliance work alongside one
another to ensure alignment of core objectives and strategic outcomes for the health and
wellbeing of our population.

Our BaNES Integrated care Alliance (ICA) have identified priorities that respond directly to
the BSW statutory functions and align with the priorities in our Health and Wellbeing
strategy. The priorities directly correlate to the journey of transforming our care model.

Our delivery plan

Our Integrated Care Alliance (ICA) priorities are collaboratively developed across all our
partners and reviewed annually. Our current set of priorities, which respond to the
Statutory functions of the BSW Integrated Care Board (ICB) and align with the
aforementioned H&W priorities, have a two to three year timeframe to deliver given their
scale. Our current priorities are set out in Figure 9 alongside cross cutting themes.

BSW ICB Priorities
+ Provide better joinedup care
+ Enhance productivity and value for money

< Priority work areas and themes

+ Reduce health inequalities
+ Help the NHS support broader social and economic
development

Priorities
All priorities to be driven by working groups to develop and implement the plans

Th Children and
LS Young People
Al th
to l:eemes Learning Disabilities &
prominent Autism I
‘éVh|9” ) e mp:o:{e Design and
il Mental health i LelE [TfTIEULL implement Redesign
© priories il pEmucaltiRand integrated community

and reduce
culture) health
= inequalities*

neighbourhood services*®
teams

Access to appropriate care
& support

Safeguarding

Prevention and addressing * Task and finish/working groups already in place
health inequalities

Figure 9: Bath and North East Somerset Integrated Care Alliance priority work areas and themes

Page 77

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 21 of 192



1. Workforce culture and people

Working with the BSW Academy on approaches to attract, widen access to and retain a
workforce in Domiciliary Care, and to consider place actions to implement the recently
commissioned work from the academy. At locality, we are testing new models including
United Care Bath - a joint initiative between the Council and Royal United Hospital.

Workforce milestones include:

e Between May and April and May 2023: Update on outputs from the work
commissioned from the BSW Academy.

Between May and September 2023: consider B&NES local response.2. Improving
health and reducing health inequalities

From the Strategic Evidence Base an emerging area of health improvement need on
which to give focused attention is improving cardiovascular disease outcomes. Over the
coming months the scope of this work this will be agreed, identifying opportunities to make
concerted efforts to drive improvements in areas such as tobacco control, the Health
Check offer, whole system approach to weight management, alcohol use, and variation in
high risk condition monitoring and intervention, taking a population health management
approach. We will take an approach to this work that aligns with and maximises benefit to
other work programmes that benefit the population.

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Work with colleagues to agree the scope of work

e Develop an implementation plan

e Secure sign up to the plan from the ICA and establish an implementation group

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
Cardiovascular disease outcomes will be improved. (Detail for this section to be produced
as part of creation of the implementation plan)

In relation to reducing health inequalities, we are establishing a Health Inequalities
Network in BaNES with dedicated resource to strengthen capacity and understanding
about inequalities. We are taking an evidence-based understanding of how inequalities
impact on our population and will build on this with coordinated and planned action to
prevent and tackle inequalities through activity at different levels including through wider
determinants of health, health and wellbeing services, ill health prevention programmes,
health care services, and social care programmes..

An example of this is the Community Wellbeing Hub (CWH). The CWH is made up of a
partnership from the public, private and third sector organisations. It provides a “one-stop-
shop” for wellbeing services for adults and their families. We have a hub and spoke model
with a Central Wellbeing hub and a spoke in the Atrium of the RUH to assist with
discharge planning. The ‘Culture’ and ways of working is different and critical to
implementation. The approach is one of shared responsibility, and working practices and
organisational boundaries removed, which enables the focus to be on the individual. The
hub is an example pre-cursor of how we can utilise community assets to implement
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

Page 78

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 22 of 192




What we will do in the next twelve months to tackle health inequalities:

By end of April 2023: Health Inequality network coordinator in post.

By end of May 2023: Network posts in RUH and PC in place May 23

Between April and September 2023: Community Investment Fund in place
supporting universal and targeted schemes to support local people by addressing
known inequalities including warm housing and help with cost of living increases.
Establish governance and partnership arrangements to shape and oversee delivery of
a health inequalities implementation plan

Establish a health inequalities network

Use Strategic Evidence Base to identify priorities and potential actions to address
Develop and be implementing a heath inequalities implementation plan that aligns with
the BSW HI Strategy

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
People from groups experiencing greater inequalities Set out longer term goals and
relevant delivery dates where possible

3.The design and implementation of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.

Our delivery plan

Designing and implementing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams is one of four priority
work areas of the BaNES Integrated Care Alliance
For further detail see the BaNES Local Implementation Plan section

How we are organised to deliver

There is a BaNES Task and Finish Group for Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
attended by a range of partners, which reports to the BaNES Integrated Care Alliance
The leads for the BaNES INT T&F Group meets monthly with leads in Swindon and
Wiltshire to share learning and develop synergies for INT working at a system level
The T&F Group uses an Improvement Together approach to facilitate a quality
improvement and learning style to the design and development of INTs

The T&F Group will work and support a number of teams and services to test the
emerging design principles and outcomes measures for INTs

What we will do in the next twelve months

By July 2023: create an INT Maturity Matrix and associated outcome measures to
enable teams to develop INT ways of working

From May 2023: collaborate with Community Frailty 12-month pilot to trial INT
approach to working with 2 PCNs in B&NES

Between August and October 2023: Identify at least 4 other teams and services -
working with different scales of geography, population need, range of providers - to test
the Maturity Matrix and outcome measures

By September 2023: Evolve the BaNES INT T&F Group into a Steering Group to
oversee and assure the progress against agreed programme timescales

Page 79

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 23 of 192




What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Care will feel individualised as teams and services operating an INT approach will drive
clinical practice and interventions based on population health need

e People will experience more coordinated care, delivered together and including smaller
local services and assets in their community to meet their health and care needs

e People will be proactively offered interventions to reduce their risk of LTCs as teams
and services start to utilise data predictively.

Monitoring delivery

e Number and range of INTs developed across BaNES

e Patient/carer experience of collaborative working by INT’s
e Staff reported change in ways of working as INT’s

4. Redesigning Community Services

We have a transformational opportunity to consider the needs of our population and to
design and shape our services and provision so that it is outcome focussed and meets the
needs of individuals within the community in line with the BSW Care Model. This will
involve discussions to determine what we mean by left shift of resources and funding
across our ICA and to understand where the opportunities are for place to drive delivery
and where working at scale provides added value.

In addition, there are a number of cross cutting transformation priorities, which link across
place and system. The key BaNES focus areas for these cross cutting themes feature
below:

Access to Care and Support

Home is Best is an umbrella programme of work being undertaken across multiagency
partners in BaNES to deliver the espoused improvement in access to care and support for
our local population. This programme also feeds into and aligns with system wide work
across the end-to-end health and social care pathway. The programme plan features as
illustrated in Figure 10:

Page 80

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 24 of 192




Access to Appropriate Care and Support

Admission Avoidance Improve flow — Home with Improve flow — Home with Improve flow - Bedded
= informal support p0 Additional Support pl capacity p3

Urgent Community Two Hour ‘
Response — in place delivering
above the required trajectory Expansion of BaNES Wellbeing
Hub to support RUH and

Cammunity discharges though
third sector provision —in place

g - Patient Outcomes Patient Outcomes
Fatient Outcomes . rat'f""t_{"”f““:m"s - Reduce length of stay and expedite Reduce length of stay and expedite
Provide support, treatment and Re'ju_“_? length of stay and expedite discharge te support people discharge te support people
interventions closer to home discharge to support people returning to their normal place of returning to their normal place of

Reduce preventable admissions returning to mi‘; Lo dL TG residence or a placement to meet residence or a placement to meet
residence

Figure 10: Home is Best programme plan

What we will do in the next twelve months

e By end of May 2023: Our BaNES step up Virtual Ward will be operational and
supporting patients to stay safely in their community reducing preventable hospital
admissions.

e By September 2023: Both our BaNES Step Up and Step Down Virtual Ward models
will deliver the required capacity to meet the national trajectory.

e By the end of April 2023: We will have conducted, with the support of the national
Emergency Care Intensive Support Team, a further review of community health and
social care pathways. This will build on the strong foundation we have developed
together to reduce the Non-Ciriteria to reside position in our acute hospital and support
people to return home or their usual place of residence.

e By the end of April 2024: Our focus for the next 12 months will be the delivery of the
Home is Best work streams as documented above with the initial priority of increasing
community hospital flow. This will deliver improved patient flow across our system
supporting patients to be in the best environment to lead happy and healthy lives.

e By end of April 2023: our community wellbeing hub will be piloting in both our acute
and community hospitals.

e By July 2023: We will have increased care by an extra 600 hours through our United
Care Bath (UCB) project.

e By end of April 2024: Care through the UCB project would be increased by 1,000
hours.

e By May 2023: We would have collaboratively developed the business case to secure
funding for Ward Four — which provides additional community hospital beds. This will
support our ‘left-shift’ agenda to reduce reliance on acute hospital beds.

Page 81

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 25 of 192



What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Care will feel individualised and personalised

e People will be able to access the care they need, where and when they need it

e We will reduce hospital admissions and support people to stay well in their local
community

Themes:

All of our ICA themes are a lens that we apply to everything that we do and also have
been identified in our evidence base as key areas to improve outcomes for our local
population.

Below we have set out more detail around two of our themes: Children and young people
and Learning Disabilities and Autism.

Children and Young People
Within BaNES our key priorities around supporting children, young people and families
include:

Strengthening family resilience to ensure children and young people can experience
the best start in life including:

e Provide intensive support for those eligible for free-school meals to improve school
readiness

e Confirm and measure pre-conception support including smoking cessation,
preparing for parenthood and maternal mental health provision

e Improved transition processes between children and young people and adult
services (physical and MH provision)

Reduce the existing educational attainment gap for disadvantaged children and
young people including:

e Provide intensive support for children eligible for free school meals and with SEND to
help them achieve better outcomes at school

Ensure services for children and young people who need support for emotional
health and wellbeing are needs-led and tailored to respond and provide appropriate
care and support (from early help to statutory support services).

Our work will align with the BSW Children and Young People’s system agenda.

Learning Disabilities and Autism

We will continue to collaboratively develop our local priorities for people with Learning

Disabilities (LD), Autism (ASD) and those needing support with their emotional wellbeing

and mental health. These will align with system wide priorities including:

¢ Reducing the number of people cared for in an inpatient unit out of area

¢ Introducing the national Key Worker programme in B&NES for people with LD and ASD
to support people in their local community

e Expanding the community emotional wellbeing and mental health support as part of the
implementation of the community mental health framework

e Improving access to services including Autism diagnosis and support for children,
young people and adults and Talking Therapies

Page 82

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 26 of 192




We will also build on work across safeguarding to ensure we have strong oversight of our
most vulnerable communities and align this with work to reduce health inequalities for our

local populations — addressing known areas including homelessness and rough sleeping
and rural isolation.

Monitoring delivery

We will monitor delivery of our ICA plan through regular updates to our ICA and our Health
and Wellbeing Board.

This will include monitoring specific metrics for the relevant priorities, for examples for
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams we will monitor:

e Number and range of INTs developed across BaNES

e Patient/carer experience of collaborative working by INT’s

e Staff reported change in ways of working as INT’s

Page 83

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 27 of 192



Swindon:

Context:
Swindon has a population of nearly 223,000 which is projected to increase by about 5%
between 2020-2030. Our Swindon population has a significantly lower healthy life
expectancy than Wiltshire or BaNES. In terms of deprivation, Swindon ranks as the 98%
most deprived area out of 151 upper tier authorities in England but some of the smaller
areas are in the 10% most deprived in the country. Tackling health inequalities and the
impact of deprivation run through the heart of our ICA delivery plan which draws on the
three clear priorities set out in the refreshed Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Swindon
set out below. These priorities are:

e Improve mental health and wellbeing

e Eat well and move more

e Stop smoking and reduce alcohol

These priorities also feed directly into the BSW Integrated Care Strategy.

Our Delivery Plan

Our delivery plan has been shaped by partners across our ICA. It is guided by a set of
principles (set out below) and underpinned by ICP enablers. It blends with our joint Better
Care Fund plan (the next iteration is 2023-25) which sets out specific priorities in more
detail across health and care.

The principles guiding our plan are as follows:

e We will work together and take collective responsibility to ensure the system is fair
and that everyone is contributing to solve even the most difficult problems

e We will ensure that we tackle inequalities following the Core20PLUS5 approach to
reducing inequalities

e We will prioritise co-production and ensure people using our services have a clear
voice in their design, development, and delivery.

e We will listen, coordinate, and communicate effectively to avoid duplication and
ensure people only have to tell their story once.

e We will work in partnership across our third sector, health, and social care teams to
provide joined up support that meets the needs of individuals

e We will ensure our colleagues, patients, carers, partners, and our communities
experience meaningful participation in decision-making, in shaping our health &
care services and delivering person centred care

e We will engage in meaningful co-production of all programmes, driven with a needs
led lens

e We will listen and adapt based on views from our diverse communities.

e We will ensure we have a JSNA evidenced health & wellbeing strategy.

e We will focus on action and delivery.

e We will not cost shift.

e We will promote personalised care and involve unpaid carers and families - we will
ensure carers receive carers assessments

Page 84

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 28 of 192


https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/

The three core segments in our Delivery Plan are set out below and in the following
diagram. Each segment of the plan has developed a set of objectives, and these are set
out below:

e Improving the care and quality of service delivery

e Managing demand, capacity, and resource

e Improving the wellbeing of our communities

The three ICP objectives inform our plan, and our three health and wellbeing strategy
priorities are specifically referenced within our health inequalities workstream, although the
themes also run throughout our plan.

Swindon ICA - Our Vision & Delivery Objectives

Focus on prevention and early intervention— Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes — Excellent health and care services

We will improve outcomes for C&YP with SEND.

We will tackle CE&YP health inequalities and manage transition.
We will jointly commission services,
We will improve oral health.

We will shift more investment into prevention,

We will prevent crisis rather than support crisis,
We will profile and signpost preventative health & care support.
We will provide people with the tools to self care,

We will build capacity together to reduce length of stay
in hospital for those that don't need to be there. [NCTR)
We will work together to manage front door demand.
We will provide people with the right care at the
right time. [BCF)

We will improve access to education and support
transitions into adulthood/employment .

We will improve support offers and crisis interventions
We will reduce out of area placements

We will improve autism assessment / post diagnosis.

"Working together to
tackle inequalities and
empower all people in
Swindon to live longer,

We will tackle unequal health outcomes for carers, h:::::;ﬂ:"::':ﬁdﬁ? We will increase delivery of talking therapy services.

We will ensure carers receive assessments. and connected We will increase SMI health checks
We will support carers to better balance their caring role ) communities” Ve will tailor MH services for asylum seekers/ refugees.
to protect their health and wellbeing. We will strengthen the local discharge pathway.
We will improve access to MH services for CEYP.

We will increase the number of years people spend in good
health and reduce inequalities.

We will improve mental health and well-being.

We will support people to eat well and move more.

¥ We will support people to stop smoking and reduce aleohol intake.

1 We will create an integrated neighbourhood team model,

We will listen to what neighbourhoods need from local services whilst

managing expectation,

We will enable people to stay well, safe and independent for L
longer [BCF).

Figure 11: Swindon ICA - Our Vision and Delivery Objectives

How we are organised to deliver
Currently the ICA Delivery Plan is led through the ICA Delivery Executive Group (DEG)
which is the engine room of the ICA. Feeding into the DEG currently are a number of
working groups, including the ICA Planning Group, Mental Health and LDA Forum and ICA
Inequalities Group. Going forward, leads for the three priority segments will review
governance required. The DEG will oversee the delivery plan and will report regularly into
the ICA which in turn reports into the Swindon Health and Wellbeing Board.
The ICA Delivery Plan incorporates key ICB transformation programmes as follows:
e Community transformation and primary care development are aligned to our
integrated neighbourhood teams work stream
¢ Urgent and emergency care transformation is led through the demand and capacity
work stream and locality planning group
e The principles of business intelligence and population health management run
through all of our work streams which are informed by data and modelling (a strong
example of this is the demand and capacity modelling to support system flow)

A diagram illustrating our governance structure is set out Figure 12 below.

Page 85

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 29 of 192



ICA Governance and Delivery Model

Integrated Care

Board —_ BSW Integrated Care Partnership
Swindon
Borough Council
Cabinet N )
Swindon Integrated Care Alliance Swindon Health and

Partner (strategic leadership for Swindon) Wellbeing Board
Governance GWH - Primary VCSE Leadership - .
Structures EoicE acute/ sBC Care AWP Alliance and RIEGERy (e e

Reps

community Networks Healthwatch rexEEm)

ICA Delivery Executive Group (DEG)
(the engine room of the ICA - senior operational leads with responsibility for key areas of work)

Dir at Place Health and Care @ Senl_cr . G Senl.or N @ Sem-or N Senior Leads — Senior Leads Wcsrekz:eram
ck) Diccon(cR) Leads - ICB Leads - SBC Leads-GwH | Primary Care SVesE Leads
[ [ [ |
MH/LDA Partnership Tactical Planning Group Health Inequalities Additional Examples of
Board Group example working groups: our working
Brings together MH and Dev/Deliver Op Plan groups (nb,
. . 4= these are
LDA agendas in Swindon Oversees health Integrated examples only,
Demand and Capacity inequalities funding Neighbourhood Teams not the full list)
Develops priorities and Planning
response to strategy Developing ICA health Integrated Community
Urgent Care & Winter inequalities plan Based Care
Planning/BCF

Figure 12: ICA Governance and Delivery Model

What we will do in the next 12 months

Set out below are the core segments in our ICA Plan and the actions taking place to
achieve our objectives in the next 12 months. It is important to note that our plan is
iterative; this is not the final version, and it will continue to evolve over the coming months
and during its lifetime. We are currently designing the outcomes framework for our
delivery plan with key metrics that will enable us to measure the impact of our actions.
These metrics are blended with core national metrics including those set out in the Better
Care Fund.

Page 86

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 30 of 192




Table 3: Swindon ICA 5 Year Delivery Objectives and Milestones — Care and Quality

Swindon ICA 5 Year Delivery Objectives & Milestones

Milestones 23/24

Q1

Q2
Qa3

Q4

Continue prep work for recommissioning of Children’s
Health Services

Embed programme of work for Delivering Better Value
Sign off of Joint Funding Guidance for CYP

¢ Plan for recommissioning of supported living in

Care and Quality
LD & Autism

Carry out Building the Right Support Peer Review
—Jun23

Mental Health

Review SMI health check registers with primary care
and the wider system

We will hold a mental strategy workshop to determine
how best to deliver mental health services
Commission new model of CYP MH services for
CAMHS/TAMHS & MH Support Teams

support of transition planning

*  Develop plan forimplementation of national strategy for autistic children, young people and adults: 2021 -2026

Complete SSP project on self -neglect and exploitation
Scope opportunities to improve oral health

Review opportunities for jointly commissioned SEND
roles
Complete review of market sufficiency

Complete review of dynamic support process
Launch BSW Autism Care Co -ordination pilot
Carry out a review on how to improve LD
assessment process and post diagnostic services

Monitor the improvement of the uptake of
annual health checks

Family Safeguarding Model with MH becomes
operational

Commission new Wellbeing House

Implement new primary care SMI health check model

Implement revised BSW wide IAPT model

Design and implement an integrated commissioning model and ways of working

Table 4: Swindon ICA 5 Year Delivery Objectives and Milestones - Community Wellbeing

o
N
]
"
~N
g
2
“
8
2

Q3

Q4

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

Identify pathfinder areals)

Workshopwith frontline workforce

{BCF milestone—TBC)

Confirm key milestones for integrated community

based care programme and update plan

Integrated Neighbourhood Team Task & Finish Group
farmed which reports to ICA
[BCF milestene —TRC)

Initial integrated neighbourhocd team model
developed
{BCF-TBC}

Implementation of integrated neighbourhood team
started

|BCF—TBC)

Year 2 milestones for integrated community based
care programme planned

Explare financial sustainability of Carers servicas
Plan for re-procurement of Carers Services is in place

Engage carers in development of Integrated
Meighbourhocd Team model

Integrated Neighbourhood Team knaw the carers in
the pathfinder geography

Page 87

ealth Inequalities

First meeting of reformed ICA Inequalities group

Publish the Health & Wallbeing Board Strategy and
associated implementation plans

Recurrent funding for inequalities work s identified
and a recurrent process developed

Inequalities projects are aligned with Integrated
Neighbourhood Team model when appropriate

Page 31 of 192



Table 5: Swindon ICA 5 Year Delivery Objectives and Milestones - Demand and Capacity

Swindon ICA 5 Year Delivery Objectives & Milestones

< .
(] System Flow Left Shift
o
~N
"]
(]
c
[=]
-
7]
2
Ql . Home First and Discharge hub 5 days a week . £100k ‘Community Investment’ in Falls Prevention
Intermediate Care and Demand plan complete (BCF) . VCSE and Primary / secondary care engaged in system level shaping of Integrated Community Care
Trusted Assessor for Care Homes in place 7 days a week Programme
Additional care managers in place to support discharges *  Confirm key mil fori ity based care p and update plan
QZ . Home First and Discharge hub 7 days a week . New falls prevention capacity in place and being evaluated by PH and working with coordination
Complete winter plan centre
Scope potential further elements of an ICA demand and capacity plan (primary care, . VCSE and Primary / secondary care engaged in place -based shaping of Integrated Community Care
voluntary sector for example) Programme
Confirm and plan winter respiratory clinics . Identify left shift and what it means for Swindon — what does it look like? Our vision
Deliver key milestones for integrated ity based care p (TBC)
Q3 . NHS @ Home (virtual ward) beds 65 (80% bed occupancy) . Deliver key mi fori ity based care programme (TBC)
*  Stand up winter respiratory clinics —funding TBC 0 Identify wider implications - what does left shift means for the system —what will be better?
Q4 . NHS @ home (virtual ward) beds 90 (80% bed occupancy) . VCSE and Primary / secondary care built into tender process for Integrated Community Care
Programme

Evaluation of impact of Left Shift investment in Falls Prevention
Identify actions to deliver left shift change
Deliver key milestones for integrated community based care programme (TBC )

NB: Care Co-ordination Centre and falls milestones will be added by 15/5/23

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time:

Together we have set out what will be different for our population by 2028 under the key
segments of our plan and what we will do to achieve these changes. At the heart of our
plan is our Team Swindon vision which clearly sets out how we will work together to tackle
inequalities and empower all people in Swindon to live longer, healthier, fulfilling lives,
supported by thriving and connected communities. Our next priority is to develop logic
models for each of our priorities which will enable us to identify specific and measurable
outcome measures of success for 5 years’ time.

A spotlight on Integrated Neighbourhood Teams:

To give a specific example of our work in Swindon, we have set out further detail on our
project to design Integrated Neighbourhood Teams with partners.

Integrated neighbourhood teams are a way of bringing together front line staff and
community organisations that either support our local communities, or groups of people
who have complex needs. In essence, it is a way of creating a “team of teams,” that
improves the experience of people and our communities and ultimately their health and
wellbeing. Figure 13 below gives a simple description of what will be different.

Page 88

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 32 of 192




Our ambition:

“I am accountable for
Terry's dialysis”

“l am accountable for Terry's “We are
social care needs” Becomes accountable for
Terry’s Care”
____ “l'am accountable for Terry’s
community nursing”

“l am accountable for helping to keep
Terry's carer well “

Figure 13: Our ambition for bringing together front-line staff and community organisations.

Developing an Integrated Neighbourhood Team model is a key delivery vehicle for the
BSW Integrated Care Strategy in Swindon. We will connect our local teams through a
collaborative with a focus on personalised care, prevention, and fairer outcomes for our
population.

Each Collaborative will connect partners from health and Social Care, Voluntary
Community Social Enterprise, Local Authority partners, (including Area Boards, Education
and Housing), Police, Fire, and many Community Groups. The partners will offer their
resources and share their assets to enable solutions to be developed that can tackle
health inequalities and promote health and wellbeing within their local community.
Community views and engagement will be the key to success.

We will start small, working in target area(s), to test out what is achievable. We will
evaluate for the impact on left shift and the potential to implement at scale.

We will focus on developing a positive culture with strong collaboration. This will start with
our approach which will focus on coproduction with our frontline workers and the
populations they are working with.

We will learn from other areas where integrated neighbourhood working is further
developed to support development of enablers.

What will be different for our population in 5 years time

e Local population health and wellbeing outcomes will be improved from today’s position,
as people are empowered and equipped to design and deliver care and solutions with
a preventative and early intervention approach.

e Care will feel individualised as teams and services operating an INT approach will drive
clinical practice and interventions based on population health need

e People will experience more coordinated care, delivered together and including smaller
local services and assets in their community to meet their health and care needs

e People will be proactively offered interventions to reduce their risk of long-term
conditions as teams and services start to utilise data predictively.

Contact Details for further information:

Page 89

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 33 of 192



Caroline Holmes, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, BSW ICB (Swindon Locality) —
caroline.holmes19@nhs.net

Mary ODonohoe, Integrated Care Alliance Project Manager (Swindon Locality) —
mary.odonohoe@nhs.net

Wiltshire:

The Wiltshire Context

Wiltshire is a vibrant community of over 500,000 people living across our area in large
towns, small towns, villages, and large areas of rurality, including across Salisbury Plain.
Wiltshire is home to significant populations of current or former armed forces service
personal and their families. Our current population is 510,400, we are expecting our
residents over 65 to increase by 43% by 2040 (representing about a third of our
population) and our over 85 population will rise by 87%. Although Wiltshire is one of the
‘least deprived’ local authorities in England, approximately 14,000 people currently live in
areas that are considered ‘most deprived’ when compared nationally - this is about 3% of
our population.

Life expectancy compares favourably at a national level, however the 2022 Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA) has identified female healthy life expectancy as an area of
decline and people living in deprivation as a significant life and healthy life expectancy
inequality gap. Figure 15 provides some high level key points and areas of focus from the
JSNA.

Page 90

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 34 of 192


mailto:caroline.holmes19@nhs.net
mailto:mary.odonohoe@nhs.net

Identifying inequalities in life expectancy in
Wiltshire

Healthy li

Life expectancy

In 2018-2020 the average life expectancy for females
in Wiltshire is 3.6 years more tham males, with
fernales expected to live to 84.5 years and males 80.9
years in Wiltshire .

Healthy Life expectanc
Male - Within Wiltshire, male healthy life

England)

The areas of deprivation in England have a large
variation in healthy life expectancy at birth:

Least deprived decile Most deprived decile

expectancy is above that of its statistical Men 70.5 years 523 years
neighbours and the South West; meaning Women
that the time males spend in a healthy life 70T yaars 51.9years

extends into their state pension age at 66

Mearly 120,000 people in Wiltshire live in in the most
deprived 5 dediles (half) of areas in England, and face

Female - Wiltshire's female healthy life i S ; i
these inegualities in their healthy life expectancy.

expectancy has been in continual decline
and has dropped by 4.2 years over the past
4 years to 65.2 years and now sits below that
of the region, whilst Wiltshire's comparators

pectant

Wiltshire deprivation deciles

have remained largely stagnant.

All-age all-cause mortality - 2021

fod =8

Lk

4.
E.

Codes for

Least deprived

decile

Most deprived
decile

835

Men

living crisis.

dreas

Sensitively promoting healthy behaviours to

lower the risk of

Hypertension: 15.4% of people in
Wiltshire had a recorded diagnosis
of hypertension in 2020/21, higher
than levels in South West (14.8%)
and England (13.9%).

Diabetes: 7.2% of

Wiltshire's
population aged 17 and over were
recorded as having diabetes in
2020/21, similar to the South West
(6.9%) as well as England (7.1%)

Coronary heart disease: In 2020/21
3.4% of people in Wiltshire were
registered as having coronary heart
disease, comparable with regional
(3.5%) and national levels (3.0%)

Strokes: 2020/21 prevalence data
shows that 22% of Wiltshire's
population were recorded as having
experienced a stroke or transient
ischaemic attack, broadly in line with
levels reported regionally (2.2%) as
well as in England (1.8%)

preventable conditions
associated with lifestyle factors. These include:

Di prevention and health protection with
a specific focus on

Early childhood vaccine coverage:
Meningitis B vaccinations for 2 year olds,
Dtap/IPV  boosters (protecting against
diphtheria, tetanus, pertussis and polio) and
the second MMR vaccine (both for 5 year
olds) were below the national coverage
target of 95% in Wiltshire in 2020/21.

Cervical and breast cancer screening:

Levels of screening in these areas has © @ @
reduced in Wiltshire over the last 2 years

as a result of the pandemic. For both

metrics, uptake is consistently lower in the

most deprived areas of the county.

Wiltshire’s ageing population and age related
conditions, particularly:

Dementia: In 2022, the dementia diagnosis rate in
over 65 year olds in Wiltshire is estimated to be 58.5%,
equivalent to around 4,300 people. This indicates that
there are in the region of a further 3,000 people in
older age groups in the county that are undiagnosed.

By 2030, it is estimated that almost 11,500 people in
Wiltshire aged 65 and above will be living with

dementia, driven primarily by an aging population and
increased life expectancy.

% Women 86.9

76.3

814

This difference in life expectancy among the different
deciles is likely to worsen as a result of the cost of

Supporting good mental health and emotional
wellbeing.

The prevalence of common mental health disorders is
rising in Wiltshire

In 2020/21, almost a quarter (24.6%) of
persons aged 16 and over in the county
were estimated to have higher levels of
anxiety. Whilst this is similar to the South
West (23.4%) and England (24.2%), it
represents a 6% rise compared with the
previous year (18.3%).

Almost 44,000 people in Wiltshire (18
and over) had a recorded diagnosis of /

depression in 2020/21, equivalent to 11%

of the adult population. Levels have [ ]
been steadily rising since prior to
2016/17.

Rates of hospital admissions for self harm in Wiltshire

are now at their highest level for five years

Hospital admissions relating to self harm in Wiltshire’s
overall population and the 10-24 year age group have
increased annually since 2016/17. In 2020/21,
admissions of this type (in both age ranges) were
significantly higher than both the South West and
England. Admission rates for both metrics in Wiltshire
are notably higher in women and young females.

Figure 14: Extract from Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Wiltshire (2022)

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 91

Page 35 of 192



Additional detail around all areas of focus can be found using this link
which takes you to the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment in full.

Locality Strategy

Using the findings of the JSNA (2022) to directly inform development, colleagues across
our Integrated Care Alliance in Wiltshire have co-authored a new Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategy (JLHWS) — this will be our locality plan for the next 5 years. The
JLHWS sets out 4 guiding priority themes for our work and these, together with our
Alliance Principles and Core Commitments and the ICS Strategy priority objectives have
set a clear pathway towards improving outcomes for and with our population, drawing on
the combined resources and skills of our Alliance partners.

Figure 16 demonstrates at the highest level how the JLHWS and the ICS Strategy align
with each other in scope and ambition, the clusters represent linked and related priority
areas of work. Localisation and connecting with our communities is seen as integral to our
way of working across all themes and objectives and aligns with the ICS Vision of
“Listening and Working Effectively together to improve health and wellbeing and reduce
inequalities”

Page 92

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 36 of 192


https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/

/ Cluster 1 \ [ Cluster 2 \ [ Cluster 3 \

Improving social
Prevention and mobility & Excellent health
early intervention tackling and care services

inequalities

Focus on Fairer health and
Prevention and wellbeing
Early Intervention outcomes

Integration and
working together.

Localisation &
connecting with

communities.

\_

Figure 15: Joint Local Health and Wellbeing themes (blue) and ICS Strategy Objectives (green)

In developing our plans, Alliance Partners agreed 8 Core Commitments, which are aligned
to the clusters, set out in Figure 16 The commitments guide the way in which we work
together in our Alliance.

Page 93

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 37 of 192



( Cluster 1 \ ( Cluster 2 \ /

~

Cluster 3

1. Transformation & service delivery; develop a shared vision for health and care in partnership with
communities using an in depth understanding of the population, strengths and needs in line with
the Integrated Care System (ICS) Partnership Strategy and our Health and Wellbeing strategy.

2. Focus on
prevention and
health promotion;
identifying mutual
opportunities to
influence the wider
determinants of
health and wellbeing
in supporting
improvements for all
and reduce
inequalities.

\_ J

3. Population health
management: Optimise the
use of system population
health analytical capabilities
to support planning, local
care redesign, & population
segmentation and targeted
initiatives or actions

4. Give a voice to residents
and communities; Actively
listening and engaging and
designing with communities.
Mobilising local communities
and building community
leadership capacity,
developing new approaches

with communities

to working in partnership

Figure 16: Wiltshire ICA Core Commitments as Partners

Locality Delivery Plans and Actions
The Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy is so newly developed and agreed, that
more detailed planning around and milestones is still ongoing, with Wiltshire-level Key
Performance Indicators and thresholds to be set and agreed.

5. Service Planning with key focus
on integration and innovation;
Develop priorities in response to
local needs. Considering and
implementing approaches and care
models that support integration of
health and care services (including
VCSE provision).

6. Make decisions about resources
within defined Place-based budget.
Utilising joint commissioning
arrangements (BCF/S75) and
delegated budgets to make
planning decisions. Mobilising local
assets (physical, social community,
personal) to improve population
health and wellbeing.

7. Engage with and influence the
work of the ICS — actively informing
and delivering the strategy of the
Integrated Care Partnership, and
matrix working in transformation
work being delivered at-scale.

8. Be open to scrutiny; tracking risks
and evaluation of the impact of our
decisions on outcomes, and
responding to asks from the Health

Qlect Committee and ICS /

Alliance Partners, working as part of the Health and Wellbeing Board, have however,
agreed the actions as set out in Table 6 as the priority deliverables against the strategy.
Some programmes and key actions are already well established.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 94

Page 38 of 192



Table 6: Extract from Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2023) aligned to Cluster Groups

Cluster 1; Prevention and

Cluster 2; Improving social
mobility and tackling

Cluster 3; Integration and

Joint
Local
Health
and
Wellbeing
Strategy;

early intervention

Lay the foundations for good
emotional wellbeing whilst
young — by developing a
coordinated approach and
promoting a core offer in
schools across Wiltshire

Empower individuals across
the life course — in all
schools, with working age
adults and for the elderly —
with advice focusing on
healthy lifestyles, smoking
cessation, alcohol and
substance misuse

Prevent ill health - through
increased uptake of
screening, health checks
and immunisations as well
as tackling antimicrobial
resistance through the best
use of antibiotics

Adopt a proactive population
health approach — rolling
this out to new areas (such
as moderate frailty) each
year to enable earlier
detection and intervention

inequalities

Promote health in all policies
—including housing,
employment and planning.
This will include the
development of sustainable
communities, whole life
housing and walkable
neighbourhoods.

Support healthy home
settings — with action on fuel
& food poverty, help to find
stable well-paid work, mental
health and loneliness and by
increasing digital inclusion

Give children the best start in
life — with a focus on the
whole family, family learning,
parenting advice, relationship
support, the first 1000 days/
early years and community
health services

Target outreach activity —
identifying particular groups
to improve access to
services and health
outcomes and tackle root
causes

Improve access through

online services and
community locations

Page 95

working together

Provide integrated services at key
stages in a person’s life — including
later life planning, end of life care,
and increasing the provision of
personal budgets and coproduction
of services

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care,
dissolving the divide between
primary and community health
services - through community multi-
disciplinary teams, clustering
services around primary care
networks, and guaranteeing
support to people in care homes

Enable frontline staff to work more
closely together — planning our
workforce needs together,
developing case studies on front
line cooperation, supporting shared
records and IT and sharing estates
wherever possible

Ensure carers benefit from greater
recognition and support by
improving how we identify unpaid
carers

Improve join-up of services
including specialised
commissioning

Drive improvement through
collective oversight of quality and
performance, reconfigurations and
recommissioning; overseeing
pooled budgets and joint teams
together — including the ICA
transformation programme and
Better Care Plan

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 39 of 192



Cluster 2 (and linked to 1 and 3) Localisation and connecting with communities

Support local community action — through initiatives such as neighbourhood
collaboratives allied to the development of Primary Care Networks, community based
programmes and social prescribing, the community mental health model, area board
activity

Pilot community conversations — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have
significant deprivation and roll these out gradually across the county.

Consider the role that procurement can play in delivering social value and the way in
which organisations can act as anchor institutions

Embed Healthwatch Wiltshire and VCS voices in relevant decision-making structures;
ensure the results of consultation are reflected in decision papers

In addition to the actions set out above, the Alliance is engaged in delivering against national
objectives in the NHS Long Term Plan and Better Care Fund Guidance. These, together with
priorities identified by Wiltshire in pursuance of the BSW Health Inequalities strategy are
reflected in our delivery structure.

How we are organised to deliver

Delivering all the actions in the JLHW Strategy will require intense effort across many parts
of the Wiltshire system and Wiltshire ICA has a key part to play. Embracing the
opportunities that partnership working and our Alliance now bring, a structure of ICA
Partnership Subgroups and additional delivery programme structures across the locality
has been established to help drive the change that the JLHW and ICS Strategies have set
out, as well as ensuring delivery against national and local aims, improvement work and
standards.

The Subgroups will embed links to ICS Programme Boards, acting as a key link with the
wider system across BSW. Once fully operational, each group will own delivery against
key national and local indicators for health and wellbeing improvement for the Wiltshire
population. Membership of each group represents the broad Alliance partnership and
engages the resources across our organisations. The groups are accountable to the
Wiltshire ICA Partnership Committee, with close relationships to the Health and Welling
Board which monitors achievement against the JLHW Strategy.

Figure 17 sets out the structure and relationships to other groups and programmes of
work. This ensures maximised resources and limits duplication whilst affording a line of
sight across the matrices in which we now function, both at neighbourhood, locality, and
broader system. Each action to achieve change will have a link to one of the cluster
groups for support, although we recognise that some actions will require broad-based
effort and may not be ‘owned’ by one of the delivery sub-groups. The Health and
Wellbeing Board will monitor progress against all actions.

Page 96

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 40 of 192



BSW Integrated Care Partnership
Wiltshire Council .
Cabinet Wiltshire Alliance Partnership Committee Health 5:3"‘1 V(\;ellbelng
oar

Integrated Care Board
Wiltshire Aliance Delivery Group
. A

Living Well Group Urgent Care and Flow
R —— Locality Mental Health,
Learning Disability and —

- - Population Health : N
Families and children's Ma?] agement Autism Group Transformation &

transformation programme; Long Term Conditions

Starting Well; FACT Ops

B improvement Operational
Wiltshire focused Delivery Group escalation
programmes, Implementing National programmes
BSW work programmes delivery

family learning, parenting Prevention
advice, relationship support, Anticipatory Care
the first 1000 days/ early Personalisation Progress Community Ageing Well Programme
years and community health Primary Gare — links to Services Framework Delivery of End of Life

SEMVICES. PCOG (links to LD& and Thrive Strategy in Wiltshire
([T % i (STLEITEn B VRl g (links to Elective Gare Board) Boards) (Links to Urgent Care and
People's Board) ’ Flow Board)

Core Work Programmes and | Health and Care Inequalities
Enabling Groups | I— Neighbourhood Collaboratives _I

(report directly to Partnership Committee) Connecting with our Communities

Figure 17: Map of Alliance Partnership Committee and Delivery Sub Group Structure

These groups will also connect directly via a ‘Task Force Group’ established for the
purpose of support and delivery of the Community Transformation programme in Wiltshire.

WILTSHIRE

Context

Having completed a new Joint Strategic Needs Assessment in 2022, the Wiltshire Joint
Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy recognises the population health and wellbeing
inequality gaps across our area and identifies actions to reduce those gaps and improve
population outcomes.

In early 2022, Wiltshire ICA Partners recognised the right approach to improvement health
outcomes in our communities, is to work directly with them to do so — bringing together
partner colleagues, organisations, partners, and residents in a new way. The concept of
Neighbourhood Collaboratives was born from this work and are within areas loosely
defined by each of the Primary Care Network footprints. Once all are established there will
be 12 to 13 Collaboratives across Wiltshire.

When the Fuller Stocktake was published, Alliance Partners recognised there is clear
alignment between that review, and the Neighbourhood Collaborative model — so both
areas of work are managed in an integrated way.

Integrated and explicit in the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2023) for
Wiltshire, each Collaborative will connect partners from health and Social Care, Voluntary
Community Social Enterprise, Local Authority partners, (including Area Boards, Education
and Housing), Police, Fire and many Community Groups who will offer their resources and
share their assets to enable solutions to be developed that can tackle health inequalities
and promote health and wellbeing within their local community. Community views and
engagement will be the key to success.

Page 97

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 41 of 192



The Wiltshire Collaborative will provide a forum for Neighbourhoods to share their learning,
celebrate success, and in times of need, seek support. It will also offer a place to learn
from best practice elsewhere and to collaborate on improvements Wiltshire-wide.

Each Neighbourhood Collaborative will be grown from the ground up, which means they
may be structured differently to each other, and partner staffing models may look different
depending on what works for each area. They will establish their own needs and priorities.

The pre-launch evolutionary work designed a structure to support collaborative
development consisting of:

e A Readiness Review that provides a series of insights and questions to identify the
strengths and growth areas across a Neighbourhood, informing the Collaborative
plan

e A Launch Programme, tailored to the individual Neighbourhood area based on the
outcomes of the Readiness Review, bringing neighbourhood partners together to
design and agree their work across six principle areas which underpin the model.

e A Toolkit which is a comprehensive set of resources linked to each principle area,
that Collaboratives can use to support their work and embed the model.

e The ICA Partnership provides support, facilitation and system convening to the
Collaboratives.

The six Principle Areas are:

Partnership working

Co-production

Community-led approach for health & wellbeing
Working as one using data analysis

Enabling volunteers and staff to thrive

Creating a movement for change

Neighbourhood

Neighbourhood Collaborative Model Collaborative

Wiltshire Neighbourhood Collaborative
Learning and Sharing across Wiltshire and between Collaboratives, Focussing on S
Population Health and Wellbeing Gops across Wiltshire. -

Links with Health and Wellbeing Board

‘Community voices / Social
Care / ICB / Community
Services / Education / DWP /

e WCSE f Mental Health /
e Children's Services / Fire /
Police and many more

Most work will be
community driven —
some change
Wiltshire -wide

Population
Health
Projegi(s)
g

Community-led
Change

)i

Learning and Sharing Between Collaboratives

Figure 18: The Neighbourhood Collaborative Model

Page 98

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 42 of 192


https://teamnet.clarity.co.uk/Library/ViewItem/e79dc461-1ebe-444e-b0c4-afb200f29141

How we are organised to deliver

Following the initial development work during 2022, a Steering Group was established in
December to provide a means of driving the programme forward. The Group has brought
colleagues together who have formed new relationships and links and will continue to
develop, providing direction and support to the programme as it evolves. Now including
more than twenty partners from across the county, it is demonstrating a shared
enthusiasm for delivering new ways of working within local communities as it grows.

Governance for the Steering Group is through the ICA Partnership Committee, with regular
updates to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

What we will do in the next twelve months

Over the next 12 months, the Collaborative programme aims to:

e Pathfinder Site (Melksham and Bradford on Avon):

- February to April 2023 — Collaborative group in one neighbourhood on a ‘fast track’

launched to gather early learning to add to the initial pilot findings.

- May 2023 - Engagement work with Collaborative cohort, focussing on prevention.

- July 2023 - Start working directly with an identified group of patients

- September -2023 — Progress update

- December — Progress updates

e May 2023 — Onboarding Launch programme agreed and online portal established. Full
programme pathway agreed (indicates place and pace of Collaboratives launching)

e June 2023 — Devizes and Chippenham, Corsham, Box areas commence launch, first
pathfinder report.

e July 2023 — First Wiltshire-wide Collaborative event; share learning; and Pathfinder
report.

e By April 2024 all neighbourhood areas will be on their collaborative journey at different
points of maturity and will have completed or commenced the Launch programme.
Initial impact results will be available for multiple collaboratives areas.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Local population health and wellbeing outcomes will be improved from today’s position,
as people are empowered and equipped to design and deliver care and solutions with
a preventative and early intervention approach.

e Care will feel individualised as teams and services operating an INT approach will drive
clinical practice and interventions based on population health need

e People will experience more coordinated support, delivered in partnership and
including VCSE local services and assets in their community to meet their health,
wellbeing and care needs.

e People will be proactively offered interventions to reduce their risk of LTCs as teams
and services start to utilise data predictively.

Monitoring delivery

¢ Number and range of Collaboratives developed across Wiltshire
e Patient/carer and colleague experience of collaborative working
e Improvements in local health inequalities and outcomes.

Page 99

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 43 of 192




Our delivery plan

The Alliance Partnership is focussed on achievement via it's Delivery Groups and key
Transformation programmes. Table 7 sets out some key programmes of work and associated
milestones and targets. Each Delivery Group will however, also be responsible for an agreed
programme of work, which aims to reduce health inequalities and address the priorities
identified in the JLHW and ICS Strategies

Table 7: High Level Actions to Support JHHW Strategy and System Priorities Delivery

Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

Wiltshire Health Inequalities Group and Living Well

Wiltshire partners have established a Wiltshire Health Inequalities Group (WHIG) to
coordinate Population Health Inequalities improvement across the NHS Core20PLUS5,
BSW Reducing Inequalities Strategy and Salisbury Hospital ‘Improving Together work
programme. Gypsie, Roma, Traveller and Manual Workers (specifically those in minority
groups) have been identified as the Wiltshire Plus Groups. The planning phase of this group
is ongoing.

e July 2023 — agree and launch work programme.

The Alliance Living Well Delivery Subgroup has been established to support this work, as
well as addressing priority improvements around Long Term Conditions and Anticipatory
Care. Partnership working with VCSE sector colleagues will be essential is promoting
prevention and co-production and reducing our health inequalities.

Adopting a proactive population health approach

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Living Well Delivery Group, over
the next 12 months we will:

e Develop a programme of work to delivery improvements in identified areas of
unwarranted variation. This may correlate to areas set out below.

Population health management approach will be applied to areas such as moderate
frailty, diabetes, deprivation, air quality, CVD, cancer, maternity and infant health,

Cluster 1; mental illness, end of life and chronic illness.

Prevention
and early

: . Childrens Community Health Services
intervention

In the next twelve months, we will recommission children’s community health services,
ensuring they are inclusive of a coordinated approach and core offer for emotional wellbeing
in schools.

Empower individuals across the life course

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board, over the next 12 months we will:

evaluate the findings of the Safe Outside the Home pilot in Wiltshire

consider the findings of the latest pupil survey and the implications for work to
reduce risky behaviour in schools.

PSHE support materials will be rolled out as part of Healthy Schools and education
on the risk of smoking and vaping.

We will review the impact of health coaches on delivering targeted work on healthy
lifestyles and smoking cessation.

Implement a new whole life substance misuse service and evaluate its performance.

Prevent ill health - through increased uptake of screening, health checks and
immunisations as well as tackling antimicrobial resistance

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board, over the next 12 months we will:

e Continue to support and work as partners to improve immunisation and screening
uptake, in particular through local community engagement and addressing place
level health inequalities.

Page 100

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 44 of 192



Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

e Promote antimicrobial stewardship with the public and through professional
networks

In five years time:

e Health and wellbeing outcomes for Gypsie, Roma, Traveller and Manual worker
populations will have improved in line with targets (to be identified).

e Health screening rates will be improved in line with targets (to be identified)

e School age children will be able to develop improved emaotional wellbeing

o We will take very opportunity to support residents in reducing risky health
behaviours and improve self-care.

o There will be improved levels of wellbeing in schools in Wiltshire

e There will be reduced levels of risky behaviour in schools

o There will be reduced levels of obesity and substance misuse in adults

e There will be herd immunity for a range of illnesses and early detection of illnesses

¢ Public and professionals understand the need to optimise use of antibiotics

e Health professionals will have a better understanding of predictors of disease and
implement appropriate preventative and predictive capability

Neighbourhood Collaboratives

The Neighbourhood Collaborative programme has been co-designed by Integrated Care
Alliance partners to enable partnership working to flourish across services, organisations
and community groups within neighbourhood areas loosely defined along Primary Care
Network footprints. Once established there will be 12 to 13 Collaboratives across Wiltshire,
connect partners from health and Social Care, Voluntary Community Social Enterprise,
Local Authority partners, (including Area Boards, Education and Housing), Police, Fire and
many Community Groups. The partners will offer resources and assets to tackle health
inequalities, focus on prevention, improve outcomes, and promote health and wellbeing
within their local community. Community views and engagement will be the key to success.
This programme works closely with the Community Conversations work led by local
authority partners which focusses on working with our most deprived areas of Wiltshire to
support and drive improvements those communities want to see.

Over the next 12 months the programme will:

April 2023 — Pathfinder site launched.

May 2023 — Onboarding Launch programme agreed and online portal established
June 2023 — Devizes and Chippenham, Corsham, Box areas commence launch,
first pathfinder report.

July 2023 — First Wiltshire Collaborative event; share learning; and Pathfinder
report.

By April 2024 all neighbourhood areas will be on their collaborative journey and will
have completed or commenced the Launch programme.

Cluster 2;
Improving
social
mobility and
tackling
inequalities

Community Conversations
The community conversations programme has begun, with two pilot areas in North and
South Wiltshire — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have significant deprivation.
We will roll these out gradually across the county. Over the next 12 months, we will:

e Continue the community conversation pilots in Studley Green and Bemerton Heath
and evaluate the early learning for other potential areas.
The community conversation approach will have been rolled out to several other
areas of deprivation in towns such as Chippenham, Melksham and Calne.

Families and Childrens Transformation Programme

Wiltshire’s multi-agency Family Help arrangements enable children, young people and
families to access the right help at the right time through a co-ordinated approach to
prevention and early intervention. To enable the delivery of our Family Help Strategy for
2022-2027, the partners have committed to a programme of development and
implementation activity. The focus is on the development of Local Hubs and Clusters.
Across Wiltshire, the project will deliver:

Page 101

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 45 of 192



Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

A clear unifying brand for Family Help

Online database of services, community resources & activities

Co-ordinated whole system workforce development offer

Consistency of core approaches across the Early Help workforce

Over the next 12 months the project will deliver:

January ‘23 — April 23:

e Family and stakeholder engagement

e Launch and embed a pilot area (Warminster and Westbury) including Family Help
Practitioners operating.

e Launch Online platform and branding

e Workforce Development Offer phase 1 launched

May ‘23 — September ‘23:

e Family and stakeholder consultation

e Initial interim report

September '24:

o Final report

Connecting with our Communities (CWOC)

This programme is an ‘enabler’ of our work together. Once fully established, the CWOC
group will have a ‘helicopter view’ of Alliance work and will provide a mechanism to support
and guide meaningful community engagement throughout development, initiation and
delivery of our transformation and service improvement work. It brings together
organisations and people to share views, inform the development of our work and align our
efforts around engagement and feedback with and from our residents. The group is
responsible for ensuring best practice against the BSW People and Communities Strategy
and is developing a work programme, which will launch in July 2023, having completed the
work on a gap analysis and identified priority work areas. Our Voluntary Community Social
Enterprise and HealthWatch colleagues are welcome partners in this space and have joined
us as full members of the ICA Partnership Committee and Health and Wellbeing Board.

Promote health in all policies —including housing, employment, and planning.

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board, over the next 12 months we will:

e Publish a new Local Plan and Local Transport Plan outlining measures for the
development of sustainable communities, whole life housing and walkable
neighbourhoods.

e Develop health and care campuses that transform healthcare, employment and
economic opportunities (e.g. HEAT project in Salisbury)

Support healthy home settings

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board, over the next 12 months we will:

e Expand provision of the warm and safe service

o Employment support team will help those with mental health or learning disabilities
gain employment

e Area Board health and wellbeing champions and grants will undertake a range of
activity to tackle loneliness, alongside measures in the adult social care prevention
strategy

Target outreach activity — we will improve access to services for people who can or do not

access them easily in the current way, improving health outcomes and tackle root causes.

Working through the Health and Wellbeing Board, over the next 12 months we will:

e OQutreach to homeless, Gypsy, Roma, Traveller and boater communities and asylum
seekers on screening and immunisations.

e Finalise WHIG work programme in July (See Cluster 1 actions)

e Promote take up of health improvement coaches and active health programmes.

Page 102

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 46 of 192



Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

In five years time:

e Across Wiltshire, our children and families will be supported within their local area to
access timely prevention-focussed help and support.

e More children will achieve a good level of development before starting school.

e There will be 13 fully operating, self-sustaining neighbourhood collaboratives, which
are able to evidence their impact on improving local health and wellbeing outcomes
and reducing inequalities.

o Residents will be able to share their views and thoughts on our work and
understand how their opinions can directly shape our work and priorities.

o People will find services easier to access with increased co-location and online
booking facilities.

e Reduced digital exclusion and maximised opportunities technology can bring to
improve equitable access to services.

o |t will be easier to move around local communities in a sustainable manner and
vulnerable groups will be supported to access public transport as a wider
determinant of health (identified as a priority area of improvement through the
Health Inequalities Strategy work).

e There will be fewer experiencing fuel poverty and the impact of fuel and fuel poverty
will be reduced.

Urgent Care and Flow Transformation.

A comprehensive programme of work across our Alliance is focussed on improving flow
across services and reducing unnecessary hospital admissions and delayed discharges.
Over the next 12 month this programme will deliver:

e Reduced Length of Stay in Care Homes (to achieve 28 days by July 2023)

o Achievement of the 70% 2-hour Urgent Care Response target (by June 2023)

e Delivery against Virtual Ward development targets, (reaching 136 ‘beds’ by
December 2023 and 180 by March 2024)

e Reduced length of stay in community hospitals (to reach 35 days across all wards
by July 2023)

e Reducing hospital trust lengths of stay.

e Maximising capacity of Home First services

e Complete Discharge Communications Project to improve patient, family and carer
experience and reduce discharge delays (resources launching July 2023, full impact
September 2023)

¢ Increasing the number of people returning to their own home after a hospital
Cluster 3; admission (% increase TBC once modelling completed).

Integration ¢ Implementing new End of Life care provision model, ensuring people are supported
and working to die in the place of their choosing (launch new model October 2023).

together e Increased 0-day lengths of stay (target TBC)

e Same Day Emergency Care expansion.

Community Services Transformation

Re-thinking the design and delivery of Community services across BSW is a key priority.
Wiltshire Alliance is actively engaged in this process and will continue to shape and inform
the work as it develops, ensuring we deliver the best possible future model of support for our
residents. This programme relates to all of our Delivery Subgroups, a ‘task force’ group will
be established from across the groups to ensure appropriate and agile collaboration, feeding
work across our Alliance as needed, but acting as a single point of engagement and
coordination.

Provide integrated services at key stages in a person’s life

This work includes later life planning, end of life care, and increasing the provision of
personal budgets and coproduction of services. Over the next 12 months we will:

e Evaluate additional areas suitable for personal budgets

¢ Roll out later life plans to everyone over 85 and earlier cohorts as appropriate

Page 103

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 47 of 192



Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

e Implement the new End of Life care provision model, ensuring people are supported
to die in the place of their choosing (launch new model October 2023).

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care, dissolving the divide between primary and community

health services

We will achieve this through community multi-disciplinary teams, clustering services around

primary care networks, and guaranteeing support to people in care homes. Over the next 12

months we will:

e Review primary care commissioning arrangements and alignment with public health,
pharmacy, optometry and dental services alongside local community and social care
provision

o Prepare for delegation of specialised services and identify opportunities to improve
integration with local services

e |dentify opportunities to commission provision for military communities alongside
that for spouses and families and local communities

Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Autism

Linking closely with system-wide groups, this group leads the delivery and improvement
work around these areas in Wiltshire. This Delivery group has been established for some
time, with the focus on embedding the Community Services Framework and has included
implementing the SMI, LD and Autism Register and increasing the number of Annual Health
checks. An alliance of third sector partners has developed an access model, reducing
waiting times and travel distances for people to seek support. This group is currently
refreshing it's work programme in line with the ICS and JLHW Strategies, taking account of
key national targets and requirements. It will be responsible for prioritising and delivering:

e Ensure 75% of people aged over 14 on GP learning disability registers receive an
annual health check and health action plan by March 2024

¢ Recover the dementia diagnosis rate to 66.7%

e Ensure 75% of people aged over 14 on GP learning disability registers receive an
annual health check and health action plan by March 2024

e by March 2024 no more than 30 adults with a learning disability and/or who are
autistic per million adults and no more than 12—-15 under 18s with a learning
disability and/or who are autistic per million under 18s are cared for in an inpatient
unit

e Achieve a 5% year on year increase in the number of adults and older adults
supported by community mental health services.

Enable frontline staff to work more closely together

This will include planning our workforce needs together, developing case studies on front

line cooperation, supporting shared records and IT and sharing estates wherever possible.

Over the next 12 months we will:

e Develop Wiltshire workforce plans as part of BSW strategy

e Enable NHS access to the social care record system as appropriate and increased
shared records.

e Develop Wiltshire estate plans as part of BSW strategy

Support for Unpaid Carers

We will ensure carers benefit from greater recognition and support by improving how we

identify unpaid carers. Over the next 12 months we will:

¢ Rollout training for GPs and other health professionals on recognising and referring
for support unpaid carers, this will support our ongoing work in other areas to
identify carers and offer support.

In five years time:

Page 104

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 48 of 192



Alliance Actions to Support JLHW Strategy

e Those of our residents requiring support to be discharged from hospital will
experience timely, integrated care and enables as many people as possible to
return to their own homes.

e Access to NHS dentistry will be improved

e Primary care will be commissioned alongside other services locally

e Our colleagues will feel supported in their roles, and able to work with people across
organisations, taking advantage of improved training, technology and integrated
systems, able to focus on prevention and early intervention.

e There will be clear career pathways in place for both health and social care and
professional recognition across both

e Data is collected once and shared with those who need it

e Residents who experience mental health problems will be able to seek and receive
timely support, locally to them — preventing deterioration.

o People on the learning disability or autism will be better supported to access health
care and support.

e Performance is measured in a transparent and understandable way

e Unpaid carers know how to access support.

e There is seamless provision in areas such as CAMHS

e The military covenant statutory responsibilities are fully delivered

Monitoring delivery

Our Alliance will continue to deliver against our priorities, whilst evolving and refining our
programme, targets, and pathway to the future. We have built a robust and trusting
partnership which will grow and strengthen over time. Our Health and Wellbeing Board
and Alliance Partnership Committee will continue to monitor and manage progress against
our commitments and to chart the course ahead, guided by our communities and our
colleagues.

As a key action in the JLHW Strategy, we have committed to driving improvement through
collective oversight of quality and performance, reconfigurations and recommissioning;
overseeing pooled budgets and joint teams together — including the ICA transformation
programme and Better Care Plan. To support this, and the commitments set out in this
plan, we are developing a dashboard of metrics and progress reporting for regular review
by the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance and in turn the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing
Board.

Contact: Emma Higgins, emma.higgins1@nhs.net

Page 105

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 49 of 192


mailto:emms.higgins1@nhs.net

90T obed

NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board

6. Our outcomes measures:

What we will measure:
We want to ensure that we have clear and effective ways to measure our progress against the commitments set out in the BSW
Integrated Care Strategy over the next five years. The sections below include the outcome measures we will use across a range of

priority areas. However, this section summarises our headline commitments and how we will measure them.

Strategic Objective 1. Focus on prevention and early intervention

Table 8: Prevention and early intervention Our commitments and outcome measures

Our commitments Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones
data?

Partners across the ICP will work togetherto | BSW ICB is developing a new TBC No TBC

identify an accurate picture of funding and approach to financial reporting which

resourcing across BSW when it comes to will help to provide a clear picture of

self-care, community care and hospital care. | current spending on treatment vs

We will aim to increase the share of health prevention. The ICB will engage with

and care funding going towards preventative | the three local authorities on this to

measures (self-care and community care) ensure alignment.

over the next five years. Our ICP will monitor
over time the degree to which this balance is

shifting.
We will increase the proportion of physically Percentage of physically active OHID, Yes
active adults adults Public BaNES: 77.3%

Health Swin: 67.5%

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 50 of 192


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/physical-activity/data#page/4/gid/1938132899/pat/6/par/E12000009/ati/401/iid/93014/age/298/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

/0T abed

Our commitments Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones
data?
Outcomes | Wilt: 71.9%
Framework | [Eng: 67.3%]
We will improve Personal Wellbeing ONS4 Annual personal well-being Office for Yes
scores (Life Satisfaction, Worthwhile, estimates National
Happiness, Anxiety) Statistics
We will reduce the proportion of adults Percentage of adults classified as OHID, Yes
considered overweight or obese overweight or obese Public BaNES:
Health 62.7%
Outcomes Swin: 69.1%
Framework Wilt: 67.2%
[Eng: 63.8%)]
We will increase the proportion of children Reception: Prevalence of healthy OHID, Yes
and young people who are healthy weight weight Public
Health Reception:
Year 6: Prevalence of healthy weight | Outcomes | BaNES:
Framework | 80.7%
Swin: 74.5%
Wilt: 77.5%

[Eng: 76.5%]

Year 6:
BaNES:
70.6%

Swin: 61.7%
Wilt: 65.6%
[Eng: 60.8%)]

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 51 of 192



https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/wellbeing-local-authority/editions/time-series/versions/3
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/3/gid/1938133368/pat/15/ati/401/are/E06000022/iid/93088/age/168/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme/data#page/1

80T abed

Our commitments Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones
data?
We will reduce the prevalence of mental
health conditions
We will improve uptake of cervical, breast and | Cervical screening coverage: aged OHID, Yes
bowel cancer screening 25 to 49 years old Public
Health Cervical (25
Cervical screening coverage: aged Outcomes | t0 49)
50 to 64 years old Framework | BSW ICB:
72.8%
Breast screening coverage: aged 50 [Eng: 68.6%]
to 70 years old
Cervical (50
Bowel cancer screening coverage: to 64):
aged 60 to 74 years old BSW ICB:
76.6%
[ENng: 75.0%]
Breast:
BSW ICB:
63.3%
[ENng: 62.3%]
Bowel:
BSW ICB:
74.2%
[Eng: 70.3%)]
Increase green space, accessible for all to Utilisation of outdoor space for PHOF/ BaNES:
use, and promote greener transport exercise/ health reasons This Natural Swin:
dataset appears to have ended in England Wilt
2015-16 [Eng: ]

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 52 of 192



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/cancerservices/data

60T abed

Our commitments Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones
data?
Improve air quality Fraction of mortality attributable to PHOF/ BaNES:
particulate air pollution (new method) DEFRA 5.2%
Swin: 5.9%
Wilt: 5.3%
[Eng: 5.5%]
Keep all of our residents in warm and decent | Availability and uptake of warm BaNES:
homes, through investment in our social housing interventions Swin:
housing stock and both supportive and Wilt
enforcement interventions in private sector [Eng: ]
homes
Prevent homelessness by engaging with Households owed a duty under PHOF/ Per 1,000
vulnerable individuals at the earliest possible | Homelessness Reduction Act MHCLG BaNES: 4.4
stage Swin: 13.3
Wilt: 6.9
[Eng: 11.7]
Prioritise social housing to those in greatest Adults in contact with secondary PHOF BaNES: 19%
need to support their health and social care mental health services who live in Swin: 45%
needs stable and appropriate Wilt: 32%

accommodation. [Eng: 26%]

Adults with a learning disability who WP —

live in stable and appropriate Struggling to

accommodation locate data
by local
authority

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 53 of 192




OTT obed

Strategic Objective 2: Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes

Table 9: Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes commitments and outcome measurements

Headline Overall goal Specific objectives Outcome measurements Baseline Milestones
commitment data?

Healthcare Work with Increased access across the | Performance reports will be

inequalities and | commissioners and | system to data segmented by | broken down by patient

CORE20PLUSS | service providers to | ethnicity and deprivation (as | ethnicity and IMD quintile,

ensure robust and
up-to-date data
across the system
on where
inequalities are, and
clear plans on how
close the inequality
gaps to offer
exceptional quality
healthcare for all
through equitable
access, excellent
experience, and
optimal outcomes

standard)

focusing on:

- Under-utilisation of services
(e.g., proportions of cancelled
appointments)

- Waiting lists

- Immunisation and screening
- Late cancer presentations

Identifying who is accessing
different modes of
consultation by collecting data
on patient age, ethnicity,
disability status, condition,
IMD quintile

Data on access and %broken
down by patient age, ethnicity,
disability status, condition, IMD
quintile

Improved data collection on
ethnicity across primary care,
outpatients, A&E, mental
health, community services,
specialised commissioning

% completeness of data on
ethnicity across primary care,
outpatients, A&E, mental
health, community services,
specialised commissioning

Increased understanding of
equity of access, experience
and outcomes for priority
groups as shown through
patient engagement

Development of a strategic
approach to community
engagement embedded
through the System, focusing
on equity of access,
experience and outcomes for
C20+ groups

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 54 of 192




TTT abed

Headline
commitment

Overall goal

Specific objectives

Outcome measurements

Baseline
data?

Milestones

Achieving the
Core20PLUS5
targets to reduce the
inequality gaps
identified in the five
clinical areas
(adults)

Ensuring continuity of care for
women from Black, Asian and
minority ethnic communities
and from the most deprived
groups

Increase in percentage of
pregnant people on CoC
pathway in line with staffing
trajectories

Enhance provision to better
address physical health
risks and needs for people
with SMI

Annual health checks for 60%
of those living with severe
mental illness and learning
disabilities

Driving up uptake of COVID,
flu and pneumonia vaccines
to reduce infective
exacerbations and emergency
hospital admissions due to
those exacerbations

Increased uptake of COVID, flu
and pneumonia vaccines in
C20+ and people with COPD

Increased proportion of
cancers diagnosed at stage 1
or2

75% of cancer cases
diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 by
2028

Hypertension case-finding
and optimal management and
lipid optimal management to
allow for interventions to
optimise blood pressure and
minimise the risk of
myocardial infarction and
stroke

Increase percentage of
patients with hypertension
treated to NICE guidance to
77% by March 2024

Increase the percentage of
patients aged between 25 and
84 years with a CVD risk score
greater than 20 percent on lipid
lowering therapies to 60%

Achieving the
Core20PLUSS5
targets to reduce the
inequality gaps

Address over reliance on
reliever medications

Reduce the percentage of
children and young people with
a reliever: preventor ratio
greater than 1.6

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 55 of 192




ZTT obed

Headline
commitment

Overall goal

Specific objectives

Outcome measurements

Baseline
data?

Milestones

identified in the five
clinical areas (CYP)

Decrease the number of
asthma attacks

Reduce the number of asthma
attacks as indicated by
unplanned hospital
admissions, presentations in
ED,

prescriptions of oral steroids

Reducing health inequalities
and variation in outcomes for
children and young adults
with diabetes, including more
equitable access to treatment
technology

Increased access to real-time
continuous glucose monitors
and insulin pumps across the
most deprived quintiles and
from ethnic minority
backgrounds; and increase
proportion of those with Type 2
diabetes receiving
recommended NICE care
processes.

Address variation in access to
Epilepsy Specialist Nurses
(ESNSs) within ICSs/Trusts,
with a specific focus on
access for patients from the
most deprived quintile and
those with LD&A

Increase access to ESNs for
CYP within the most deprived
20%, and CYP with LD&A,
within the first year of care

Address the backlog for tooth
extractions in hospital for
under 10s

Tooth extractions in hospital
due to decay for children aged
10 years and younger

Improve access rates to
children and young people’s
mental health services for 0—
17-year-olds, for certain
ethnic groups, age, gender
and deprivation

Children and young people
(ages 0-17) mental health
services access (number with
1+ contact)

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 56 of 192




¢TT abed

Headline
commitment

Overall goal

Specific objectives

Outcome measurements

Baseline
data?

Milestones

Tackling
inequality by
addressing
social,
economic, and
environmental
factors

Reduce smoking
prevalence across
BSW, with targeted
focus on routine and
manual occupations
and smoking in
pregnancy

Reduce smoking in adults
across BSW

Smoking prevalence in BSW

Reduce smoking in adults in
routine and manual

Smoking prevalence of adults
in routine and manual

occupations occupations
Reduce smoking in Prevalence of people smoking
pregnancy in pregnancy/smoking at time

of delivery

Increase proportion of acute
or maternity inpatient settings
offering smoking cessation
services

Proportion of smokers received
smoking cessation support
within hospital

Proportion of pregnant
smokers offered support in
maternity settings

Halt and reverse of
obesity prevalence
in children and

adults across BSW

Number of referrals to NHS
digital weight management
services per 100k head of
population

Number of people supported
through the NHS diabetes
prevention programme as a
proportion of patients profiled

Engagement in Digital Weight
Management Programme (PH
thc)

Establishing and
harnessing the
potential of local
anchor Institutions in
our three acute
hospitals and mental
health trust to

All three acute hospitals in
BSW achieve chartered anchor
institution status by 2025

Increased number of local
hires

Increased number of
apprenticeships

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 57 of 192




Headline
commitment

Overall goal

Specific objectives

Outcome measurements

Baseline
data?

Milestones

yTT obed

deliver positive
change across all
domains of anchor
influence including
employment,
procurement, and
environmental
impact

Increased recruitment
representative of local
demographic data

Increased local vs. central
spend where possible

Increased community use of
NHS estates

Increased support for NHS
staff to access affordable
housing

Increase in accessible
community green space

Decreased carbon output
through improved energy
efficiency, increased

sustainable travel options

Reduced waste and water
consumption

Develop and support anchor

collaboratives/networks (e.g.

AWP, Local authorities,
campuses, leisure centres)

Add in school readiness and JSNA from BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 58 of 192




GTT obed

Strategic Objective 3: Excellent health and care services

Table 10: Excellent health and care services commitments and outcome measurements

ensure that
individuals are
supported to
make decisions
that are right
for them. Itis a
collaborative
process
through which
a clinician
supports a
patient to reach
decisions about
treatment

CollaboRATE)

Our Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones
commitments data?

Shared Number of people completing Collaborate | http://www.glynelwyn.com/collaborate-

decision and proportion scoring 9+. (NB. This will | measure.html

making to require a process to collect and collate

Personalised
care and
support
planning to
ensure
facilitated
conversations

take place in

% people reporting they have agreed a
plan with a healthcare professional from
their GP practice to manage their
condition.

% people reporting they found this plan
very or fairly helpful in managing their
condition.

GPPS

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 59 of 192



http://www.glynelwyn.com/collaborate-measure.html
http://www.glynelwyn.com/collaborate-measure.html

91T obed

Our
commitments

Outcome measurement

Source

Baseline
data?

Milestones

which the
person, or
those who
know them
well, actively
participates to
explore the
management of
their health and
well-being
within the
context of their
whole life and
family situation

Social
prescribing and
community
based support
to ensure
individuals are
supported to
access the
widest range of
support and
services
available in
their
community

Number of referrals to Social Prescribing

ICB

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 60 of 192




/TT abed

Our Outcome measurement Source Baseline Milestones

commitments data?

Supported self | % people reporting they are very or fairly | GPPS

management to | confident that they can manage any issue

ensure people | arising from their condition.

are helped to

manage their

ongoing

physical and

mental health

conditions

themselves

Joined up local | Number of people and number of

teams: We will | partners (including MH providers) access

accelerate the ICR

placed based

integration of Number of shared care plans recorded

mental and on the ICR and the frequency in which

physical health, | these are accessed by multiple front line

through workers (including MH workers).

integrated

neighbourhood | Number of people completing IntegRATE

teams and (http://www.glynelwyn.com/integrate.html)

primary care. and proportion scoring 8+ (NB. This will
require a process to collect and collate
IntegRATE)."

Local specialist | Number of out of area placements ICB

services: We
will work with

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 61 of 192




gTT obed

Our
commitments

Outcome measurement

Source

Baseline
data?

Milestones

our specialist
mental health
providers to
ensure local
specialist
provision is
accessible,
responsive,
financially
sustainable and
reduces the
need for out of
area care.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 62 of 192




NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board

7. Strategic Objective 1: Focus on Prevention and Early Intervention

Introduction

Our ambition is to move the dial of how we work towards a greater focus on prevention,

and this needs to be wider than individual, subject specific, prevention programmes. The

development of a wider, joined up approach to prevention across our system is an
opportunity to maximise the weight behind taking prevention programmes seriously across
whole pathways, from primary to tertiary. Key things to be considered are:

e The need to articulate how we are using data and intelligence to inform decisions
around how we target efforts and resources in the context that where there are
inequalities there is increased risk.

e To hold central to our thinking that every time we intervene for a child we intervene for
the future health and wellbeing of an adult as well.

e The need to involve communities and neighbourhoods because that is where the
strategy starts.

Our approach to all health and care will be based on shared decision-making, which
means ensuring that our population is supported and informed to make decisions that are
right for them. It's a collaborative process through which a clinician supports individuals to
reach a decision about their treatment. The conversation brings together the clinician’s
expertise, such as treatment options, evidence, risks and benefits, and what the individual
knows best, such as their preferences, circumstances, values and beliefs. We will also
encourage people to manage their own care as far as possible and empower them to do
this with better information and support. For example, good management of diabetes at
home will help to avoid emergencies.

With this end in mind, we have set out a number of areas of focus within our ICP strategy
under this objective. This section sets out these areas of focus, and how we are going to
deliver our joint commitments made within the strategy.

Areas of Focus

Focusing funding and resources on prevention rather than treatment

Intervening before ill-health occurs (primary prevention)

Identifying ill-health early (secondary prevention)

Slowing or stopping disease progression (tertiary prevention)

Wider determinants of health

Support babies, children and young people to Start Well recognising an increased
focus on children and young people, this is prevention in action for our future
population.

o0k wWNE

Page 119

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 63 of 192



Focusing funding and resources on prevention rather than treatment
We have made the following commitments in our strategy:

e Partners across the ICP will work together to identify an accurate picture of funding
and resourcing across BSW across self-care, community care and hospital care;
and

e We will aim to increase the share of health and care funding going towards
preventative measures over the next five years.

¢ We will aim to increase the share of health and care funding for babies, children
and young people as we know that the needs of children are multifaceted and need
a higher profile.

[need a section on this — how we are going to build the accurate picture of funding, how we
are going to seek to increase the share of health and care funding over the next five years]

Page 120

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 64 of 192



Intervening before ill-health occurs (primary prevention)
We have made the following commitments in our strategy:

Physical wellbeing:

e We will increase the proportion of physically active adults;

e We will improve Personal Wellbeing ONS4 scores;

e We will reduce the proportion of adults considered overweight or obese;

e We will increase the proportion of children and young people who are healthy
weight;

e We will further reduce the proportion of people in BSW who smoke; and

e We will expand stop smoking services across partners.

Mental wellbeing:

e We will reduce the prevalence of mental health conditions.

Physical wellbeing -Tackling obesity in adults and increasing the proportion of
children and young people who are healthy weight:

Context
Currently much of our work on obesity is driven at a Place level and this is reflected in our
current approach to this area of prevention work.

In Swindon in 2020/21 65% of all adults were classified as overweight or obese, higher
than the England average of 63.5%, and 34% of children aged 10-11 and 24% of children
in reception are classified as overweight or obese both which are higher than rates for the
South West and England. The percentage of physically active adults in Swindon is 70.5%
which is above the England rate of 65.9%. Hospital admissions directly attributable to
obesity rose from 2013/14 to 2018/19, mirroring a similar trend regionally and nationally.

In 2019, Bath and North East Somerset Council (B&NES) initiated a whole system
leadership approach to obesity. Extensive engagement and system mapping was
completed with partners and stakeholders during the first phase of this project. In 2020,
the COVID-19 pandemic interrupted the implementation of the approach however this
work is now moving forward, and we now propose to develop an integrated health
improvement strategy for physical activity, healthy weight, mental wellbeing, alcohol,
tobacco and food in B&NES.

It is estimated 61.8% of Wiltshire’s adult population are overweight/obese. In 2018/19,
20.8% of children of reception year age in Wiltshire were recorded as obese or overweight,
slightly lower than proportions recorded in the South West as well as England. The Active
Lives Children and Young People Survey estimates 53.7% of Wiltshire’s CYP are
physically active, whilst this is higher than the South West and England percentages, it is a
significant proportion of the population or are not physically active.

Page 121

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 65 of 192



Children Living with Excess Weight (CEW) is a priority cohort across BSW. Therefore, we
will adopt a holistic system wide approach that recognises the need for localised adaptions
due to the complex interplay between weight, eating, food poverty, access to healthy food,
physical health, emotional wellbeing, mental health and inequalities and deprivation
including food and fuel poverty across the BSW area.

Our delivery plan

In Swindon there are a range of programmes for adults and children to help reduce
obesity, including implementing the ‘Whole Systems Approach to Obesity®’ using PHE
guidance, provision of programmes in early years and schools’ settings, and a range of
weight management offers. Using a whole systems approach, we have mapped the key
drivers of obesity in Swindon including addressing food poverty, physical inactivity, and the
built environment and eating as a coping mechanism. Woking in partnership with a range
of stakeholders, we are developing actions plans to tackle each of these key drivers.

In B&NES, we are currently developing the integrated health improvement strategy, aiming
for completion in November 2023.

Wiltshire Public Health team intend to set up a stakeholder group with invested interests in
the Whole Systems Approach to healthy weight.

How we are organised to deliver

The Public Health Directorate at Swindon Borough Council leads on implementing the
whole systems approach to obesity. A systems network with a range of partnerships and
organisations has been developed to support the implementation of the whole systems
approach and to take forward actions to tackle each of the identified drivers of obesity.

Our commissioned weight management services are also delivered in partnership with
colleagues from the Council’s Livewell Team and partners including schools, and Swindon
Town FC Community Foundation. Our programmes include Slimming World, Football Fans
in Training and our pilot whole school programme ‘School Nutrition and Activity Project in
Swindon’ (SNAPS).

In B&NES, this is to be determined.
Wiltshire Public Health team will be the core working group set up to undertake the day-to-
day operations and seek to gain senior level buy in and engage relevant stakeholders in

this work.

The BSW C&YP Programme Team is now fully staffed with capacity to move forwards on
this priority.

What we will do in the next twelve months
In Swindon, our key deliverables over the next 12 months are:
e Publication of our Whole Systems Approach to Obesity strategy (June 2023)

11 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/whole-systems-approach-to-obesity

Page 122

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 66 of 192



e Delivery plans developed for each theme of the whole systems approach to obesity
(July 2023)

e Interim evaluation of SNAPs programme (October 2023)

e Review of national child measurement programme letters and support to parents
(October 2023)

e Options appraisal for a child and family weight management programme (December
2023)

e Ongoing commissioning of tier 2 weight management services such as Slimming World
and Football Fans in Training

In B&NES, our key deliverables over the next 12 months are:
e Integrated Health Improvement Strategy complete: November 2023
e Strategy partnership work launch: December 2023

In Wiltshire, our key deliverables over the next 12 months are:

e Delivery over the next 12 months will include the initial phases of the Whole Systems
Approach to Healthy Weight: Phase 1 — Set up core working group

e Phase 2 — Building the local picture

e Phase 3 — Mapping the local system

e Develop end to end weight management pathway across the lifecourse, ensuring
equity in access to these services.

e Review food insecurity work in Wiltshire and identify unmet needs as part of WSA to
healthy weight

e Increase referrals to tier 2 weight management services including Healthy Us, and
digital tier 2 weight management services in Primary Care.

For the C&YP Programme team:

e Launch a C&YP Obesity pilot study — Timeframe tbc

e |dentify where barriers and difficulties for C&YP lie and address those barriers

e Learn from previous local weight management initiatives, scrutinise their outcomes and
use our findings to shape future commissioned support, which is fun, engaging,
motivational and effective

e Establish a commissioning model

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time?

As stated at the start of this section, this work is being driven at the Place level meaning
that work still needs to be undertaken around what this will mean at a system level in 5
years’ time.

In Swindon, the vision for the Whole Systems Approach to Obesity is that “Together we
will create an inclusive environment that supports everyone in Swindon to be a healthy
weight.” We want everything in our environment to help people increase their levels of
physical activity, eat nutritious food and maintain a healthy weight. In five years’, time we
want the environment in which our residents live to support them to achieve a healthy
weight and for healthy weight will be a consideration in a range of policies and strategies.

In B&NES, this is to be determined in conjunction with our system partners.

Page 123

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 67 of 192




In Wiltshire, this will be a continuation of the phases mentioned above:
e Phase 4 — Action Plan

e Phase 5 — Managing the system network

e Phase 6 — Reflect and refresh

For the C&YP Programme team, this will be determined and linked to the localities 5-year
plans.

Monitoring delivery

In addition, a set of metrics has been identified by BSW Inequalities Strategy around

halting and reversing Obesity prevalence in children. These outcomes include:
Table 11: Halting and reversing obesity prevalence metrics

Vision KPI/Metric

Number of referrals to NHS digital weight management
services per 100k head of population

Number of people supported through the NHS diabetes
prevention programme as a proportion of patients
profiled

Engagement in Digital Weight Management
Programme (PH tbc)

Halt and reverse of obesity prevalence in

children and adults across BSW

As part of our developing system working, we will agree how we bring together the outputs
of Place led activities to provide a clearer System picture of progress in this area.

In Swindon, our performance targets are to:

e Increase the proportion of children and young people who are healthy weight at year 6
and at reception in line with the national average by 2027/28.

e Reduce the proportion of adults considered overweight or obese in line with the
national average by 2027/28, particularly reducing inequalities

e Increase the proportion of physically active adults and children and young people to be
above the regional average by 2027/28

For each of the above, there will be a particular focus on reducing inequalities in obesity
and activity levels within our population.

In B&NES, this is to be determined in conjunction with our system partners.

In Wiltshire, progress will be monitored against prevalence data and indicators in the local
obesity profiles as part of the national Public Health Outcomes Framework. The
overarching ambition will be to reduce obesity prevalence in children and adults over the
next 5 years.

List lead and email address for further information:

Lead on collating: Janani Arulrajah JArulrajah@swindon.gov.uk / Brian Leitch
brian.leitchl@nhs.net

Swindon: R.Clark@Swindon.gov.uk

Page 124

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 68 of 192



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
mailto:JArulrajah@swindon.gov.uk
mailto:brian.leitch1@nhs.net
mailto:R.Clark@Swindon.gov.uk

B&NES: Annette Luker Annette Luker@BATHNES.GOV.UK / Hannah Thornton
Hannah_Thornton@BATHNES.GOV.UK
Wiltshire: Katie.davies@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 125

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 69 of 192


mailto:Annette_Luker@BATHNES.GOV.UK
mailto:Hannah_Thornton@BATHNES.GOV.UK
mailto:Katie.davies@wiltshire.gov.uk

Smoking cessation

As a cross cutting activity, smoking cessation activity takes place at both system and place
level, detail of each element is below:

Context

Smoking is uniquely harmful, causing damage not only to smokers themselves but also to
the people around them. Smoking is one of the main causes of health inequalities in
England, with the harm concentrated in disadvantaged communities and groups.

Smoking is an ongoing concern across BSW with current smoking prevalence at 9.7% in
BANES, 12.5% in Swindon and 11.7% in Wiltshire (PHOF), compared to an England
average of 13.9%.

Costs of smoking across BSW can be illustrated through the ready reckoner: ASH ICB
Ready Reckoner - ASH

As the NHS Long Term Plan identifies, attending hospital is a potential point of intervention
for more than the specific health condition someone attends for. It is an opportunity to
have a conversation and make an offer of support for smoking, recognising that for many
people tobacco is a dependency and not a lifestyle choice.

BSW has a strong record of working collaboratively to address smoking. The current
Tackling Tobacco Dependency programme provides a plan for delivering the ambitions
across the system. It also links the ambitions across inpatients, maternity and mental
health whilst recognising that each area has different needs and will draw on topic specific
evidence for delivery.

Our delivery plan

Each Acute Trust (Great Western NHS Foundation Trust, Royal United Hospital, Salisbury
Foundation Trust) and Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership has recognised the
importance of tackling tobacco dependency and are at different stages of service
implementation.

The NHS Long Term Plan requires that everyone admitted to hospital will be offered NHS
funded tobacco treatment services, including maternity and mental health inpatients.
Funding has been provided by NHSE to ICBs for onward allocation to NHS Trusts for
delivery.
Key components of the inpatient delivery model (including mental health) are:
e The patient’s smoking status is recorded during the admission process.
¢ |Initial stop smoking medication is prescribed to all admitted smokers to help with
nicotine withdrawal, with delivery of very brief advice (VBA) on tobacco dependence
and stopping smoking.

Page 126

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 70 of 192


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
https://ash.org.uk/resources/view/ash-icb-ready-reckoner
https://ash.org.uk/resources/view/ash-icb-ready-reckoner
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

e On an opt out basis, a 1.1 meeting with a tobacco dependence adviser is provided
within 24 hours of admission to agree a personalised plan to support either a quit
attempt or temporary abstinence.

e Provision of a minimum of two weeks of NRT/other pharmacotherapy provided upon
discharge alongside a referral to a service which will continue to supply the 12-week
course e.g., a community local stop smoking service and provide ongoing support

Key components of the maternity delivery model are:

e Smoking status is recorded for pregnant people admitted to hospital at time of
delivery and pregnant people at booking and at 36 weeks

e A 1:1 meeting with a Tobacco Dependence Adviser (TDA) is arranged at the first
antenatal booking appointment,

e Weekly face to face appointments with the Tobacco Dependence Adviser take
place for at least four weeks.

e NRT should be supplied for up to 12 weeks beyond the quit date.

e A further six face to face appointments should take place throughout pregnancy to
support the woman to remain smokefree.

In addition to the NHS pathway and funding, Public Health funds support for pregnant
smokers in the community maternity service.

How we are organised to deliver

Local Authority Public Health leads support the delivery of the TTD programme through
chairing of the monthly BSW NHS Long Term Plan for Treating Tobacco Dependency
network meetings. The group is accountable to the ICS Population Health Board and
provides updates on delivery and implementation at least annually. Executive level
support and named senior clinicians from acute trusts are identified in project plans.

Smokefree working groups exist within each trust, with clinical lead support to ensure
delivery of the TTD model and that it is embedded as a treatment pathway.

What we will do in the next twelve months

e BSW Tackling Tobacco Dependency Business Case is reviewed and agreed across
the system for 23/24 delivery.

e Trust project plans are in place and resources identified for delivery (to include named
leads, finance, etc)

e Recruitment and confirmation of system leadership for Treating Tobacco Dependency,
with programme management support to work with Trusts to ensure delivery plans
continue to be monitored and reporting back to NHS England as appropriate.

e Delivery of the Treating Tobacco Dependency programme is fully embedded in the
system and place inequalities workstreams to ensure integration of work across
organisation and adequate finance resource is in place to achieve delivery of the
programme.

Page 127

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 71 of 192




What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

The BSW business case for Treating Tobacco Dependency contains the implementation
plan for the programme, with further detail on what NHS Trusts will deliver found here:
NHS England » Guide for NHS trust tobacco dependence teams and NHS trust pharmacy
teams

Monitoring delivery

Delivery will be monitored via the TTD Project Pack, overseen by the ICB programme
lead. Monthly reporting to NHS England, reporting trajectories, milestones, risks & issues
and actions are completed via Trust leads. NHS England are developing a TTD dashboard
to share metrics of programme delivery which will include the following;

List lead and email address for further information
Gemma.brinn@wiltshire.gov.uk
Massimo.morelli@nhs.net

Smoking cessation — B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire

Context:

In Bath and North East Somerset the strategic vision is to achieve a smokefree generation
which will build healthier, more equal communities by reducing smoking prevalence,
exposure to second-hand smoke and illicit tobacco. A Tobacco Control Needs
Assessment for B&NES was completed in early 2019 and informed the priorities outlined
in our Smoke Free B&NES Tobacco Control Strategy 2019 — 2024 ?

Addressing smoking has been identified as a priority for Swindon as set out in Swindon’s
Tobacco Control Strategy 2023-2028, with ambitions to end smoking and tobacco use for
good (Signed off by local HWWB and due to be published here when design complete).

In Wiltshire there is a gap in life expectancy for men of 5.5 years mapped between the
most and least deprived areas, and 3.4 years for women. Tobacco is still the largest
preventable cause of these differences®. Smoking has been identified as a cross cutting
theme in the work to deliver the BSW Reducing Inequalities Strategy, and a core focus of
the Wiltshire Health Inequalities Group. Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan includes an aim
to reducing smoking prevalence to 5% or less in line with the government’s 2030
smokefree ambition.

Our delivery plan
In B&NES the Tobacco Control Strategy plan sets out an ambition to reduce health
inequalities by achieving a smoke free generation - 5% smoking prevalence by 2030, in
line with national ambitions and local needs. The strategy seeks to build on the progress
resulting from the previous 2014-2018 strategy by defining how the local authority and its
partners will seek to act in an evidence based and needs based way in order make
meaningful impact on:

e Prevention of uptake of tobacco use and relapse into tobacco use

Page 128

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 72 of 192



mailto:Gemma.brinn@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:Massimo.morelli@nhs.net
https://www.swindonjsna.co.uk/
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/media/2684/Business-Plan-2022-32/pdf/BusinessPlan.pdf?m=637840704723570000

Protection from the harm of smoking in existing smokers and from second-hand
smoke
Increasing quit attempts and evidence-based support to quit

The vision is for a smokefree Swindon where everyone lives a long and healthy life
protected from the harms caused by tobacco. Delivery will occur across six priorities for
Tobacco Control:

Focus on health inequalities and target resources for those that need it most
(linked to local health inequalities strategy)

Protect children and prevent young people from taking up smoking and vaping
(Link in CYP

Support a smokefree environment

Communicate hope and increase quit attempts

Reduce the availability and access to illegal tobacco and illegal nicotine vaping
products in the community

Raise the profile of tobacco control and local services through marketing and
communications programmes

The vision for a smokefree Wiltshire is where everyone lives a long and healthy life
protected from the harms caused by tobacco. We aim to reduce smoking prevalence to
5% or less by delivering wide ranging and accessible support to encourage more of
Wiltshire’s population to avoid taking up or to stop smoking.

Delivery will occur across 4 priority areas:

Increase quit attempts and look to increase quit rates specifically in areas of
highest deprivation across the county, expanding the use of E-cigarettes as a
tool to becoming smokefree.

Protect children and prevent young people from taking up smoking and vaping.
Raise the profile of local services through marketing and communications
programmes.

Ensure smoking cessation pathways are designed around the individual, utilising
evidence on behavioural insights to increase effectiveness of activity.

How we are organised to deliver

B&NES has an active and well-established Tobacco Action Network (TAN). The TAN
oversees the delivery of the B&NES Tobacco Control Action Plan that drives delivery of
the strategy and works collaboratively across all areas of tobacco control in B&NES.

In Swindon, an evidence based whole systems approach to tobacco control (WSATC) was
conducted with a range of partners, organisations and service users in developing the
Tobacco Control Strategy. The Strategy will be supported by a detailed annual action plan
which will be agreed by all partners of the Swindon Tobacco Control Alliance (STCA).

It has been agreed for a Wiltshire Tobacco Control Alliance to be established to oversee
delivery of the tobacco control activity, reporting to the Wiltshire Health Inequalities Group.

Page 129

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 73 of 192



The Alliance will adopt a whole systems approach to tobacco control, involving a range of
partners and will be guided through the delivery of an agreed action plan.

What we will do in the next twelve months

Delivery across BSW over the next 12 months will focus on:

e Focus on health inequalities and target resources for those that need it most (linked to
local health inequalities activity)

e Increasing knowledge, awareness and skills in talking about e-cigarettes and vaping,
particularly amongst those working directly with children and young people e.g. schools

¢ Reduce the availability and access to illegal tobacco and illegal nicotine vaping
products in the community

e Raise the profile of tobacco control and local services through marketing and
communications programmes e.g. Stoptober

e Working with BSW partners to support implementation of the NHS LTP on Treating
Tobacco Dependency including provision of support across inpatient, maternity and
mental health services in B&NES.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time:

e Reduction in the inequality gap in smoking prevalence between those in routine and
manual occupations and those with a Serious Mental lliness and the general population

e Reduce the prevalence of smoking in the adult population towards the national
ambition of 5% by 2030

¢ Reduce the prevalence of women who smoke at the time of delivery towards the
national ambition of below 5%

e Reduce the prevalence of smoking in CYP

Specific place-based targets will be contained in local tobacco control strategies and
action plans.

Monitoring delivery

Progress will be monitored against prevalence data and indicators in the local tobacco
control profiles as part of the national Public Health Outcomes Framework.

In addition, a set of metrics has been identified by BSW Inequalities Strategy around
reducing smoking prevalence. These outcomes include:

Table 12: reducing smoking prevalence metrics

Vision KPI/Metric
Reduce smoking prevalence | Smoking prevalence in BSW
across BSW, with targeted Smoking prevalence of adults in routine and manual

focus on routine and manual | occupations

occupations and smoking in | Prevalence of people smoking in pregnancy/smoking at
preghancy time of delivery

Proportion of smokers received smoking cessation
support within hospital

Page 130

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 74 of 192


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework

Proportion of pregnant smokers offered support in
maternity settings

List lead and email address for further information:
BANES: cathy_mcmahon@bathnes.gov.uk / ruth_sampson@bathnes.gov.uk

Swindon: Divya Bassi DBassi@swindon.gov.uk
Wiltshire: gemma.brinn@wiltshire.gov.uk / gemma.dummett@wiltshire.gov.uk /

helen.aston@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 131

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 75 of 192



mailto:cathy_mcmahon@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:ruth_sampson@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:DBassi@swindon.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.brinn@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.dummett@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:helen.aston@wiltshire.gov.uk

Mental wellbeing - Prevention

Context

Deprivation is one of the principle determinants of mental ill-health, and people from our
deprived communities have greater levels of mental illness and poorer levels of wellbeing
than those who live our more affluent areas. The Indices of Deprivation are:

e Income

e Employment

e Education

e Health
e Crime
e Crime

e Barriers to housing and services
e Living environment

Although a large proportion of our population live in relatively less deprived areas, there
are pockets of challenge across our communities that we will need to address if we are to
support improvements in mental wellbeing and a reduction in common mental illness. The
map below shows that overall Swindon has a far higher rate of deprivation than Wiltshire
or B&NES. This is evident in lower income levels, greater levels of unemployment, poorer
education attainment and challenges with housing. From a health outcomes perspective,
people in Swindon have a lower life expectancy than people in B&NES or Wiltshire:

- B ost Deprived

1 Least Deprived

Figure 19: A map of BSW coloured by deprivation scale. Source:
The English Indices of Deprivation 2019
(publishing.service.gov.uk)

Children who are Looked After (CLA) are more likley to experience mental illness — both in
childhood and into adult life — often driven by significant psychological trauma in early
years. The number of Children Looked After in B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire is reflected
in the map below:

Page 132

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 76 of 192


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/835115/IoD2019_Statistical_Release.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/835115/IoD2019_Statistical_Release.pdf

-

Local Number
Authority | of CLA
(2020)

BEMNES 181
Swindon 301
Wiltshire 458

Figure 20: Number of Children Looked After in B&NES, Swindon
and Wiltshire (2020). Source — Joint Strategic Needs Assessments
for B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire

Taking action to improve the life chances for Children Looked After will have a positive
impact on their immediate mental health and wellbeing but also demand for mental health
services in later life. This cannot be achieved by health partners alone, but requires a
concentrated effort between Local Authorities, health, community organisations and
education providers.

People with mental health needs care be broadly segmented into the following groups:

S s
Me ess

Common Mental lliness
15% / 140k people

Figure 21: Broad groupings of people with mental health needs

Whilst the number of people with Serious Mental lliness is relatively consistent across
B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire, the number of people with Common Mental lliness is

Page 133

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 77 of 192



increasing in every geography?. This is across both adult and children’s services, and if we
are to arrest this growth in future years, we need to have a more systematic and consistent
approach to wellbeing that focuses on providing opportunities for people to access
community based offers that support them to stay well in the community.

The following groups are more likely to experience poor mental health:
- People from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) groups
- People with physical disabilities

- People with Learning Disabilities

- People with alcohol/drug dependence

- People in prison

- People who identify as LGBTQ+

- People who are carers

- People with sensory impairments

- People who are homeless

- People who are refugees or seeking asylum

People with Serious Mental Iliness(es) have a life expectancy 10 to 20 years lower than
those who do not. This is generally not as a result of the illness itself, but as a result of
challenges in accessing physical health service provision.

Our older adult population is increasing, and similarly we need to respond to this with the
right support to both people and their carers in order to reduce demand on both mental
health and physical health services — across primary, secondary and tertiary care services.
The development of our Integrated Care Board affords us the opportunity to work together
to address these health inequalities, with a collective and concerted effort to improve
prevention and reduce mental ill health.

Our delivery plan

Our delivery plan to improve mental health and wellbeing is focused on increasing

investment in early intervention and prevention initiatives, reducing demand for secondary

mental health services and achieving a ‘left shift’ in provision. This will involve working

through our Integrated Care Alliances (ICAs) to coordinate and develop thriving local

communities, equipped to support people’s mental health and wellbeing. Over the coming

5 years we will:

- Reinvest savings made in core mental health provision in targeted wellbeing initiatives,
directing funding through our Third Sector Mental Health Alliance

- Increase the number of people across our communities trained in mental health first aid

- Expand and develop our Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTS) in schools and work
with education providers to support delivery of their local mental health plans

- Continue to increase the number of people with serious mental illness accessing
annual physical health checks in primary care

- Develop targeted support offers for people who are refugees or asylum seekers across
our communities

Page 134

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 78 of 192



- Make best use of social prescribing and navigation support available in primary care
and reduce the medicalisation of low

How we are organised to deliver

Delivery of our plans will be overseen through Place based mental health groups, with
strategic oversight provided through our Mental Health (Thrive) Programme Board. Core
membership of these groups includes third sector, people with lived experience, secondary
mental health and primary care partners.

What we will do in the next twelve months

Over the next twelve months we will:

e Improve access to community based mental health services with a no wrong front door
approach delivered by our third sector alliance partners, across BSW. Their service will
‘walk alongside’ and direct people to alternative offers in local communities. Achieve
LTP target for Community Mental Health service provision (by Q4)

e Implement a new model for Children and Young People’s mental health in Swindon,
with this then operating as a blueprint from which we will develop similar services
across our ICB footprint (Q3)

e Improve our Talking Therapies provision, recruiting new staff to implement phase 1 of
our plan to deliver national LTP metrics (by Q4)

e Reduce long lengths of stay in out of area placements, investing savings in new
models of community rehabilitation and wider mental health transformation (by Q4)

e Implement a new GP LES for Physical Health Checks for people with SMI in order that
they can be managed successfully in primary care (Q2)

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e More people who are supported through local offers as directed by primary care, social
prescribing and third sector partners

e A Talking Therapies service that achieves and exceeds LTP standards

e Pathway based model of mental health provision that is constructed around population
health needs from point of presentation to recovery

e A measurable improvement in life expectancy for people with SMI in our population,
achieved through earlier identification of physical health needs

e Fully integrated care records that enable access for all staff regardless of sector

Monitoring delivery

21,095 people accessing Talking Therapies by 2025/26

14,115 people accessing a fully transformed community based services

A year-on-year increase in people accessing mental health first aid training

26 ARRS workers operating in primary care — supporting early access to mental health
services combined with navigation and social prescribing support

Page 135

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 79 of 192




Identifying ill-health early (secondary prevention)

¢ We have made the following commitments in our strategy: We will work to ensure the
system has routine access to high quality secondary prevention data;

e Partners will work on joined-up prevention pathways; and

e We will improve uptake of cervical, breast and bowel cancer screening.

Page 136

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 80 of 192




Long term conditions: Cardiovascular disease (CVD) and Diabetes

Context

We currently spend over £120m each year on events and complications as a result of
diabetes and CVD. Issues to be addressed include identifying and engaging with patients
with modifiable risk factors or who have developed a condition earlier, developing robust,
risk stratified systems and processes and optimising behaviours and medicines to achieve
treatment targets.

Our delivery plan
Headlines of what we are aiming to achieve in 2023/24 are:

e Increased use of data to highlight and work as a system to understand and engage
with differences in NHS Health Check uptake, and treatment targets and care
processes attainment, including by different cohorts

e Focused as much on behavioural interventions as medical treatments, with all care
providers implementing Making Every Contact Count

e Care aligns with the BSW Care Model and through Integrated Neighbourhood
Teams, moving to a population health approach to diabetes and CVD

How we are organised to deliver

The core of delivery is through General Practice supported by Community Pharmacy and
social prescribers to support behaviour change. Where required, care is provided by
specialist diabetes services who in-reach into Primary Care.

As part of our work in 2023/24 we will agree system arrangements to provide oversight
and co-ordination to these services.

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Agreed governance and priorities for Long Term Conditions across BSW by end of Q2

e Dashboard to enable system wide visibility of NHS Health Check uptake and CVD and
diabetes care processes and treatment targets attainment by health inequalities
cohorts by end of Q1, with further development into Q2

e Utilisation of data to support uptake and attainment discussions to commence in Q2

e Plan for how Practices could be supported to deliver step change in CVD and diabetes
care developed, by end of Q3

e Pilot of Pharmacist Facilitator role to support PCN Pharmacist role development, to
commence from Q3

e Options and plans for integrating Primary Care services with Community Pharmacy are
developed

e Increased coordination between specialist diabetes services, planned from Q1 and
implementation commence from Q3

e Plans developed for how patients with modifiable risk factors or new condition identified
and receive support through NHS Health Checks

e Implementation of Diabetes Pathway 2 Remission (Low Calorie Diet Programme), to
commence roll out from Q3

Page 137

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 81 of 192




e Increasing utilisation of diabetes digital Structured Education options for appropriate
patients, to commence roll out from Q2

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Treatment will commence with a good understanding and level of engagement with
each patient’s individual behavioural risk factors and how medical treatments most
effectively plays a part in their care

e Specialist services are risk stratified, complexity based and aligned with the BSW Care
Model

e We will use the Population Health Management approach to diabetes and CVD care
alongside Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to identify patients with unresolved risk
factors and agree solutions

e Ensure all clinicians involved in care of patients have the information required for
effective shared care with decisions being jointly agreed by clinicians and patients

e Structured Education services at scale and scope to meet demand for patients to
attend within one year of diagnosis and for people who have had diagnosis for longer
to attend as required for risk reduction

e Remote delivery of care, using technology to assess when someone needs support

Monitoring delivery
The focus on monitoring will be on the following metrics:

23/24 Planning Guidance:
e Increase the percentage of patients aged between 25 and 84 years with a CVD risk
score greater than 20 percent on lipid lowering therapies to 60%
e Increase percentage of patients with hypertension treated to NICE guidance to 77%
by March 2024

Diabetes key metrics
e 9% patients achieving the 8 Care Processes
e 9% patients achieving the three treatment targets (HbA1C, Blood Pressure and
Cholesterol)
e % patients attending Structured Education within one year of diagnosis

Health checks
e % eligible people attending a health check within last five years

List lead and email address for further information
Brian Leitch, CVD and Diabetes Programme Lead, brian.leitchl@nhs.net
PH Leads?

Page 138

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 82 of 192



mailto:brian.leitch1@nhs.net

Cancer and Screening (cervical, breast and bowel):

Context
Provision in the BSW area is as follows:

e There is a single bowel cancer screening programme, commissioned by NHSE and
delivered collaboratively by all three of our acute trusts.

e There are three breast screening services — the Wiltshire breast screening
programme, covering most of Wiltshire plus Swindon; the Avon breast screening
service, covering B&NES and part of West Wiltshire; and the Portsmouth service,
covering the south of Wiltshire. Our trusts provide treatment of patients identified
via breast screening.

e There are two labs supporting the cervical screening programme across BSW, at
North Bristol and Berks & Surrey; samples are taken by GP practices; patients are
then seen in colposcopy units and as required receive treatment in our acute trusts.

Our delivery plan

Alongside the ambitions of the cancer screening commissioners and providers, we actively
assist with the uptake rates for cancer screening across our population, including for those
groups or cohorts who typically are under-represented in terms of attendance.

How we are organised to deliver
See Context section above.

What we will do in the next twelve months
There are a number of strands to the work being done to improve early diagnosis,
including addressing the needs of those typically late to present.

Early presentation and uptake of cancer screening — we will share with all practices
and PCNs the learning and outcomes from projects that we have funded in primary
care in 22/23 aimed at increasing early presentation and screening uptake.

Targeted Lung Health Check — Swindon and parts of Bath are already covered by
TLHC projects (the initial focus in BSW has been on those areas with the greatest
need, identified based on a combination of factors including - highest rates of ever-
smokers, greatest volume and extent of deprivation, highest rates of lung cancer). In
2023/24 we will submit bids to support expansion to cover the remaining parts of BSW
population footprint in line with national TLHC opportunities

Bowel Cancer Screening Programme — to ensure sufficient capacity of trained staff to
deliver the BCSP at all three trusts, as well as access to screening colonoscopies;
BSW ICB will continue to engage in this process alongside our providers, and link with
our CDC programme regarding provision of sufficient colonoscopy capacity. As part of
the extension to BCSP, the SFT service is currently looking to appoint a nurse
endoscopist with BCSP accreditation. Discussions are underway as part of the CDC
work, to have a mobile endoscopy unit at GWH; in turn this increased capacity will
create additional colonoscopy capacity for the expansion of BCSP.

Non-specific symptoms - currently c65% of BSW population is covered. We intend to
expand NSS pathway provision to cover the remaining 35% of BSW population —
subject to agreement by BSW ICB to fund provision

Page 139

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 83 of 192




What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e More people taking up the opportunity of cancer screening for bowel/breast/cervical.

e Widespread roll-out of lung cancer screening building on existing lung cancer
screening programme pilots (which include Swindon, and parts of Bath; with next
phase expansion currently being planned by SWAG and expected to include Salisbury
and Trowbridge).

e Reduction in inequality of access/uptake of cancer screening.

Monitoring delivery

Via cancer screening programme quarterly assurance review meetings chaired by NHSE
regional commissioning leads

List lead and email address for further information
Andy Jennings andyjennings@nhs.net

Page 140

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 84 of 192


mailto:andyjennings@nhs.net

Long term conditions: Respiratory

Context

Respiratory disease affects one in five people in England and is the third biggest cause of
death. The NHS Long Term Plan identifies respiratory disease as a clinical priority and
outlines how we will be targeting investment to improve treatment and support for people
with respiratory disease, with an ambition to transform our outcomes to equal, or better,
our international counterparts. Programme aims include:

Ensuring patients get an early and accurate diagnosis

Improving medication optimisation

Increasing access to Pulmonary rehab services that are of appropriate scale and
scope

Patients supported with behaviour risk factor reduction

Improving the treatment and care of people with community acquired pneumonia

Additionally, there is a need to agree and set in place the necessary BSW respiratory
programme, including prioritisation and oversight of adult and children respiratory plans.

Our delivery plan

Progress Year 2 priorities as set out in the BSW Pulmonary Rehab Plan

Improve diagnosis process and monitor impact on diagnosis rates and prescribing
patterns and expenditure

Expand pulmonary rehab into areas where not provided and increase provision in
areas of health inequalities (see BSW 5-Year Plan

Develop plans and understand assigned resources to enables reviews of inhaler
prescribing, scope personalisation and behaviour risk factor reduction projects and
scope community acquired pneumonia, if CQUIN

How we are organised to deliver

Early Diagnosis through Primary Care and Community Diagnostic Hubs
Rehab through Community Service providers

No single group with an Exec SRO coordinates respiratory priorities across
localities and system

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Agree system governance, priorities and assigned resources for respiratory
programme

e Continue to support the roll out of FENO testing in primary care and monitor impacts

e Business case for funding spirometry across BSW, with a view to supporting
accreditation training and restarting services

e Develop rehab workforce and service model alongside other rehab services, such as
heart failure and utilising digital rehab offers.

Page 141

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 85 of 192




What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Patients presenting with respiratory issues are diagnosed correctly and treated
appropriately

e Pulmonary rehab available in format most appropriate to patient needs and preference
within 90 days of referral

e All Pulmonary rehab services accredited and compliant with National Asthma and
COPD Audit Programme

e Use of FeNO testing for monitoring and dose adjustment

e Treated combines behaviour risk factor reduction with medical interventions

e Rates of community acquired pneumonia have reduced

e Clear governance of respiratory within the ICS

Monitoring delivery
Set out the key metrics for this area including targets
e All data broken down by health inequalities cohorts
e Pulmonary rehab uptake and completion rates
e A&E presentation for people with COPD
e Medication optimisation from FENO and spirometry testing

List lead and email address for further information
Lucie Owens, Respiratory Lead, lucieowens@nhs.net

Page 142

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 86 of 192



mailto:lucieowens@nhs.net

1. Slowing down or stopping disease progression (tertiary prevention)

We have made the following commitments in our strategy:

e We are working with our health and care professionals to connect them with the
emerging joined up local teams in each neighbourhood to provide coordinated lifestyle,
psychological and medical advice and support; and

e Specialist services such as hospitals will work together with local authorities, VCSE
organisations and neighbourhood teams to prevent, break or slow the chain of
progression that results in poorer outcomes.

Page 143

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 87 of 192




Long term conditions: CVD event recovery

Context

This is an example of the tertiary prevention work in place in our system.

Other parts of our plan focus on preventing CVD events, through earlier diagnosis,
engaging with modifiable risk factors and treating patients to target. For those patients who
have had a CVD event, such as a stroke or heart attack, or been diagnosed with heart
failure, we will support them to regain independence, mobility and reduce the risk of future
events. This is through a combination of timely treatment by experienced teams and a
focus on rehabilitation.

Our delivery plan

e To review of stroke services and locality based provision against the requirements in
the National Stroke Service model (https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2021/05/stroke-service-model-may-2021.pdf)

e To develop a needs led model for stroke, heart failure and cardiac rehab that aligns
with the BSW Care Model and is of sufficient scale and scope to maximise
opportunities for independence and recovery.

e To develop provider led governance and leadership of Stroke and Rehab services.

How we are organised to deliver
e Cardiac rehab is led by the three acute hospitals however further consideration
needs to be given to scale and scope of provision to best meet patient need,
particularly in the context health inequalities. Heart Failure provision is organised
through a combination of community and acute services, with different services
models and rehab available across our system.

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Provider led Stroke and Neuro Group will map the prevalence and outcomes data
against current provision, with a view to agreeing priorities and optimum model, to
commence from Q2

e Scope creating a neuropsychology service for individuals on the stroke pathway, living
in the community and in stroke rehabilitation beds across BSW, by end of Q3

e Newly implemented Wiltshire Heart Failure service to be developed to agreed scale
and scope, by end of Q4

e Lessons learned from Wiltshire Heart Failure service developed into plans for Swindon
and BaNES services, including integrating heart failure rehab with pulmonary rehab

e Review scale, scope and service models of rehab services to emphasise individualised
patient care and patient choice in physical and educational components of rehab,
including groups, home based where appropriate and digital offers, with robust data
collection

e Plan how to embed rehab into the wider MDT to include nurses, physicians, dietitians,
pharmacist, OT, psychology practitioner to meet the full spectrum of patients physical
and psycho-social needs.

Page 144

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 88 of 192



https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/stroke-service-model-may-2021.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/stroke-service-model-may-2021.pdf

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
Scale and scope of cardiac rehab services to be reviewed, to ensure provision aligns with
the BSW Care Model

Monitoring delivery

Set out the key metrics for this area including targets
e Metric of service accessibility
e Readmission rates for cardiology

List lead and email address for further information
Brian Leitch, CVD and Diabetes Programme Lead, brian.leitchl @nhs.net

Page 145

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 89 of 192



mailto:brian.leitch1@nhs.net

Wider determinants of health

We have made the following commitments in our strategy:

e We will increase green space, accessible for all to use, and promote greener transport;

e We will improve air quality, including by incentivising greener forms of travel,

e We will keep all of our residents in warm and decent homes, through investment in our
social housing stock and both supportive and enforcement interventions in private
sector homes;

e We will prevent homelessness by engaging with vulnerable individuals at the earliest
possible stage; and

e We will prioritise social housing to those in greatest need to support their health and
social care needs.

The wider determinants of health are a diverse range of social, economic and
environmental factors which impact on children and adults mental and physical health.
Also known as social determinants, they are influenced by the local, national and
international distribution of power, wealth and resources which shape the conditions of
daily life. Systematic variation of these factors constitutes social inequality.

They determine the extent to which different individuals have the physical, social and
personal resources to identify and achieve goals, meet their needs and deal with changes
to their circumstances. The Marmot review, published in 2010, raised the profile of wider
determinants of health by emphasising the strong and persistent link between social
inequalities and disparities in health outcomes.

The quality of the built and natural environment such as air quality, the quality of green
spaces and housing quality, transport, education also affect health. While the proportion of
homes meeting the Decent Homes Standard has increased, homelessness has continued
to rise, and housing has continued to become less affordable.

Variation in the experience of wider determinants (i.e., social inequalities) is considered
the fundamental cause (the ‘causes of the causes’) of health outcomes, and as such
health inequalities are likely to persist through changes in disease patterns and
behavioural risks so long as social inequalities persist. Addressing the wider determinants
of health has a key role to play in reducing health inequalities, of the Office for Health
Improvement and Disparities (OHID).

With the South West Region commitment to becoming the first Marmot region in England,
BSW as a system has the moral imperative to deliver Prevention and Early Interventions
through addressing the social determinants of health across the three Places.

Page 146

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 90 of 192




Table 13: Metrics to assess the change across all domains of anchor influence including employment,
procurement, and environmental impact

Vision

KPI/Metric

Establishing and
harnessing the potential
of local anchor Institutions
in our three acute
hospitals and mental
health trust to deliver
positive change across all
domains of anchor
influence including
employment,
procurement, and
environmental impact

All three acute hospitals in BSW achieve chartered anchor
institution status by 2025

Increased number of local hires

Increased number of apprenticeships

Increased recruitment representative of local demographic
data

Increased local vs. central spend where possible

Increased community use of NHS estates

Increased support for NHS staff to access affordable
housing

Increase in accessible community green space

Decreased carbon output through improved energy
efficiency, increased sustainable travel options

Reduced waste and water consumption

Develop and support anchor collaboratives/networks (e.g.,
AWP, Local authorities, campuses, leisure centres)

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 147

Page 91 of 192




Children and Young People Focus on Prevention and Early Intervention:

Context

Children and young people 0-25 represent a third of BSW and of our country. We want to
increase our focus on children and young people, recognising this is prevention in action
for the improved health and wellbeing of our future population. While most child health
indicators are better than national average, many children have difficult living
circumstances across the system:

1 in 4 children do not achieve a good level of development at the end of Reception
1 in 10 children are living in poverty

1 in 200 children are in care

Obesity and mental health problems are increasing

We must put more focus on our children, young people and families, to better support
them in all areas of their lives, including the environment they grow up, their education,
and the support around them. This includes addressing fragmented provision and different
models of care, issues related to short term funding and ongoing cost pressures for
services. As well as these structural issues, Children and Young People’s services also
face imminent and growing current challenges, including:

¢ Increase in demand for children’s community health services, which impacts waiting
times. In Wiltshire for example, there is a waiting time of over 18 months for an autism
diagnosis

¢ Increasing number of children and young people with an Education, Health and Care
Plan (EHCP) combined with changes in the complexity of EHCPs (108% increase
since 2015).

¢ Increase in the complexities of Children Looked After — including the number of
Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers and Refugee children. Unaccompanied Asylum
Seeker Children (UASC) in care requiring initial health assessments have seen a 47%
increase in Wiltshire since 2019/20.

e Post covid impact and cost-of-living crisis

There are widening inequalities across BSW, with disproportionate impact on children.
Presenting our data as a system masks pockets of deep deprivation and inequality for
children within each area, including two neighbourhoods within the most deprived 10%
nationally. Swindon has a higher level of deprivation compared to Wiltshire and BaNES,
being the 5" most deprived LA in the SW. Many of our poorest children grow up in
communities where their circumstances are in stark contrast to those around them. There
is a complex interplay between children and young people with Special Educational Needs
and Disability (SEND), safeguarding, inequalities, physical and mental health.

Social and Emotional Mental Health as the primary SEND need has significantly
increased. Worsening mental health and wellbeing with high and increasing levels of
under 18 hospital admissions for mental health conditions, eating disorders, self-harm and
alcohol and an increase in complexity and demand for children’s social care, SEN and
early help services.

Page 148

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 92 of 192



Our ambition is to close and prevent the inequality gap in health and wellbeing outcomes
for children and young people across BSW and for children and young people to live
happy, healthy lives regardless of their circumstances. As we build back from the
devastating impacts of the pandemic, the BSW approach provides the first stage
framework to reduce inequalities across the life course, to nurture and value the health
and wellbeing of babies, children and young people, their families, and communities.

Our BSW Vision is that all children and young people will start well with the support and
care needed to enable them to have a sense of belonging, be safe from harm, to enjoy
healthy lifestyles, do well in learning and have skills to choose and live their best life, to
age and die well.

We want the voices of children and young people to be heard and at the heart of
everything we do, so we are asking one question... “What is it like being a child growing
up in BSW and how do we make it better?”

Our delivery plan

We have exciting ambitions for placing babies, children, young people, and families at the

heart of BSW, ‘Working together to empower people to lead their best life’. As part of

this commitment to ‘Starting Well’ within the Integrated Care Strategy, our ambitions are

that:

1. Children, young people and families have a healthy environment in which they can
grow up in

2. Mental health support is available for children and young people who need it

3. The most vulnerable children and young people are well supported, including those in
and leaving care, as well as those who need to be kept safe

4. Children are ready to start education

5. There are better links between health and care services and schools

As children and Young People are one third of the BSW population, the scope of work to
achieve improved outcomes is broad. We continue to build on our strong integrated
partnership to deliver co-created priorities. We will influence and hold ourselves and our
partners to account, ensuring we focus on children and their needs within the BSW Care
Model, providing increased equity of provision whilst reducing unwarranted variation,
focusing on key BSW initiatives such as the community based integrated care
transformation.

We have agreed 5 BSW key priorities for children and young people:

1. Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)

2. CYP Community Mental Health and emotional wellbeing

3. CYP with complex Mental Health needs including those with autism and learning
disabilities

4. Inequalities

5. Investing in prevention and early intervention including Early Help - with Children
Looked After and Care Experienced Young People threading through each priority

With delivery across these priorities, we aim to achieve:

Page 149

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 93 of 192


https://bswtogether.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Integrated-Care-Strategy-v4.pdf

Improved outcomes and experiences for children with reductions in inequalities, linked to

BSW CYPCORE20PLUSS.

Improved effective, integrated services and use of resources across the Local Authorities,

VCSE, health and care system.

Enhanced alignment across BSW, between provider organisations and greater clarity of

statutory roles and responsibilities.

Shift to prevention and early intervention, to support reduction and need for intensive and

specialist interventions and services

BSW Children, Young People and Families Approach

What should we do?

Get it right for children
Start Well

Holistic focus on CYPF
Tackle health inequalities

Outcomes

« Children and Young
People recognised

Activities
* New holistic BSW
Children and

Inputs Required

* Increased BSW
CYP workforce

Improve CYP population

health & wellbeing
Prevention+ early
intervention

How should we work?

Children first

THINK Family
Co-production

Close to community
Multi-agency, Integrated

working

Strengths Based
Engagement

Trauma informed
Supported transitions

capacity

* Integrated BSW

Children’s
leadership and
accountability

- BSWCYP

Dashboard

« Partnership

Governance
arrangements

« Linking:

paediatrics,
maternity MH,
LDA, SEND, CLA,
Safeguarding

* BSW Executive

and Partner
Champions

Young People
ProgrammeBoard

« Structureand

governance
(system and place)

* BSW local

priorities scoped
and agreed

« BSW at all key SW

+ NHSE meetings

* CYP in all keyBSW

developments

* Recognition that

CYP are 23% of
BSW Population

in all BSW system
planning and
delivery

* Children’shealth

and wellbeing is
improved

* Inequalities — data

driven and needs
led

- BSWCYP

Strategic Plan +
Integrated
Outcomes
Framework

* BSW supporting

wider system

» NHSE Funding

achieved and
sustained

How will we
know if we
have made a
difference?

BSW working is
benefitting
children and
families in
place and
neighbourhood

Meaningful plan
that provides
solutions at

scale — doing
together that
which adds
value whilst
reducing
unwarranted
variation

Maximum impact

Figure 22: BSW Children, Young people and Families approach

How we are organised to deliver

The BSW Children and Young People’s Programme (BSW CYPP) Board is focused on
improving our defined local priorities for children, young people and their families in
BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire with appropriate attention on the national and regional
priorities, for the South West these are Bladder and Bowel Health and Paediatric Palliative
Care.

The BSW CYPP Board provides a strong foundation to drive our ambition to focus BSW
ICB on the needs of children and tackle inequalities. It is a collaboration between Local
Authority partners with all Directors of Children’s Services and Public Health alongside
BSW ICB and NHSE colleagues. This partnership brings momentum and focus to scope
and understand the priorities and needs of the children and young people within our
communities, recognising and respecting locality and neighbourhood level developments.

The next stage plan is to expand membership of the Board to reflect our partnerships with
VCSE, paediatric and clinical colleagues, to develop further workstreams and system level
engagement with children, Parents and Carers so we can collaborate to find solutions at

Page 150

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 94 of 192



scale — doing together at BSW system level that which adds value and eliminates
unwarranted variation. For example:

e children in the development of Neighbourhood Teams as part of our BSW
Integrated Community-based Care delivery

e Collaborating to invest in universal and early help services preparing for family hubs
to nurture and value the health and wellbeing of babies, children and young people,
their families, and communities

What we will do in the next twelve months

The focus on the next 12 months aligns with our priority workstreams, both locally and
regionally. We will be working on the wider developments of the BSW Children’s and
Young People’s Programme with specific projects in 2023-24 funded by the NHSE
Children and Young People’s Programme, these include:

Early Years

Through the proposed model for a BSW Intervention Based Approach for Supporting Early
Years we seek to provide a pragmatic, achievable and replicable BSW model to enhance
and support existing Early Years provision. We want to spend each £ once and combine
the learning from Sure Start, Children’s Centres, Family Hubs, Connecting Care and Child
Health Hubs to build a strong BSW integrated partnership Early Years model to deliver co-
created priorities and outcomes for children and their carers/parents/families from early
conception to 5 years old.

We plan to take this to neighbourhood level within each locality (using the 20% most
deprived to select location). Based on the demographics of Swindon, BaNES and
Wiltshire this would mean that we will select 2 x Swindon, 1 x BaNES and 2x Wiltshire of
the 20% most deprived (5 overall- subject to scoping and affordability) and seek to add
value to developed posts or ‘new role’ community connector to support the uptake and
delivery of Early Years interventions in 5 neighbourhoods across BSW.

We aim to build on existing services and seek to recruit posts that can attach to GP/ PCN’s
emerging Integrated Neighbourhood Teams linking to developing Family Hubs/Children
Centres/BSW integrated service delivery for Early Years.

Timeline:
e Short-term (2023/24 Q1) — agree and develop co-created outcome metrics

e Short-term (2023/24 Q2-3)-scope GPs/PCNs/ develop model for 0-5 caseload, identify
or recruit community connectors (care coordinators — paid/volunteers) the initial
impacts in developing shared priorities and an integrated approach

e Medium-longer term (2023/24 Q4)- benefits from redesigned services and influencing
redesign of community based integrated care. Contribute BSW findings to toolkit +
business case structure.

Paediatric Palliative Care
We are developing a BSW Paediatric Palliative Care Workstream with partners including
hospices. By linking this to the BSW End of Life Board and the BSW CYP Programme

Page 151

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 95 of 192




Board we plan to support transition pathways and services and align adult and paediatric
palliative workstreams, to develop a BSW whole systems approach for Paediatric Palliative
Care. We want to consider the best delivery model and pathway to deliver BSW wide
service improvement, eliminating unwarranted variation across BSW.

The BSW Paediatric Palliative Care workstream has been linked to BSW SEND and
Continuing Health Care and complex care processes and decision making for children.
So, we can support children and young people eligible for end of life care and ensure
families understand they can apply. We have developed and established a team of
assessors, operational manager, and administrative staff to support this cohort of children.

In 2022/23 we coproduced systems, processes and information with families, and multi-
agency colleagues to support identifying the needs and putting appropriate support
packages in place.

Timeline:
e Short-term (2023/24 Q1) — agree and develop plan with partners
e Short-term (2023/24 Q2-3)- establish working group

e Medium-longer term (2023/24 Q4)- review progress and plan for 24/25
e Longer-term (2025->) — support evaluation (commissioned by NHSE) and share
learnings across BSW and beyond

Epilepsy

Epilepsy is one of the five key clinical priorities within the CYP CORE20PLUSS5 framework.
Within this, increasing access to Epilepsy Specialist Nurses (ESNs) for CYP from the most
deprived quintile, and those with learning disabilities and/or autism, is a key improvement
priority and metric.

We will recruit a paediatric specialist nurse for two years as part of an NHSE pilot to work
across a system footprint in providing care for CYP with epilepsy. This includes supporting
continuity of care across secondary, tertiary, community and mental health services where
applicable.

Our proposed model aligns with NHS England’s ambition is to improve the quality of care for
CYP with epilepsy by taking an integrated approach to the diagnosis, management and
treatment of epilepsy. Alongside the evidence-based impact that ESNs will provide, we
seek to ensure our ESN(s) will be involved in care planning as well as supporting
continuity of care for CYP with LD&A as a result of joint-working with community paediatric
and neurodevelopmental services.

This service will help us ensure CYP involvement in service delivery and pathway
improvement and through the ESN roles at RUH we will hear the voice of the child to
support a better understanding as we rollout and scale up this pilot in the future. Through
this model we will also benefit from improving child, young person and parent choice and

Page 152

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 96 of 192



access to ESN and epilepsy service and be able to offer a greater consistency of service
provision across BSW.

The BSW Inequalities Strategy Group are keen to link in with this project and explore the
opportunities for learning, particularly around the Core20PLUS5, with epilepsy being an
area of clinical focus that spans the Inequalities Programme and the CYP Transformation
Board.

Timeline:

e Short-term (2023/24 Q1) — agree and develop plan with RUH

e Short-term (2023/24 Q2-3)- advertise and recruit to ESN post

e Medium-longer term (2023/24 Q4)— review progress and plan for 24/25

Longer-term (2025->) — support evaluation (commissioned by NHSE) and share learnings
across BSW and beyond Acute

Mental Health Champions

From 2023/24, each of our three acute trusts will receive funding to support development
of Mental Health Leadership/Championship roles within emergency departments. This
funding is calculated to meet the requirements for 1 medical consultant PA a week (i.e.
£19K) and is secured for 23/24 and 24/25 (after which point it is anticipated that the
funding would be held within individual health budgets).

The deterioration in Children & Young People's mental health is a trend that has been
ongoing over the last 10-20 years, but we have seen a compression and an acute
exacerbation of this trend in the years during and following the COVID-19 pandemic. The
causes for this are multifactorial, but the extraordinary pressure on acute paediatric wards,
social care and mental health services is undeniable. Data from Mental Health of Children
and Young People in England 2022 highlights that:

1. 1in 6 children have a diagnosable mental illness (anxiety, depression, disordered
eating), rising to 1 in 4 17-19yr olds.

2. 50% of adult mental illness is embedded by the age of 14 years
3. Suicide continues to be one of the top 3 leading causes of death for 5-19 year old.

This role is intended to be interpreted and implemented in a way that suits individual
department and system needs, meaning that there is no strict "job description”, however
the anticipation is that this leadership role would be at a Strategic & Systems level to
coordinate improvements in the way in which Acute Trusts interact and support children's
mental health.

NHSE have developed a Framework for practice which lays out a roadmap for how
departments can begin to tackle the problem: NHS England » Supporting children and
young people (CYP) with mental health needs in acute paediatric settings: A framework for

systems.
Key functions of the role have been co-developed with RCPCH colleagues and include to:

Page 153

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 97 of 192


https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2022-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2022-follow-up-to-the-2017-survey
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Flong-read%2Fsupporting-children-and-young-people-with-mental-health-needs-in-acute-paediatric-settings-framework-for-systems%2F&data=05%7C01%7Channah.savigar-jones%40nhs.net%7Cfa67db40f0b44cd3a35f08db47bb3309%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638182641559872947%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NAU5%2BZ4T8ZuPiQAzKY5WzSH%2F%2FTwzTqK%2BCJlQQL1Ui4c%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Flong-read%2Fsupporting-children-and-young-people-with-mental-health-needs-in-acute-paediatric-settings-framework-for-systems%2F&data=05%7C01%7Channah.savigar-jones%40nhs.net%7Cfa67db40f0b44cd3a35f08db47bb3309%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638182641559872947%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NAU5%2BZ4T8ZuPiQAzKY5WzSH%2F%2FTwzTqK%2BCJlQQL1Ui4c%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Flong-read%2Fsupporting-children-and-young-people-with-mental-health-needs-in-acute-paediatric-settings-framework-for-systems%2F&data=05%7C01%7Channah.savigar-jones%40nhs.net%7Cfa67db40f0b44cd3a35f08db47bb3309%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638182641559872947%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NAU5%2BZ4T8ZuPiQAzKY5WzSH%2F%2FTwzTqK%2BCJlQQL1Ui4c%3D&reserved=0

1. Facilitate joint working across Mental & Physical Health

2. Encourage uptake of training

3. Build team confidence & morale

4. Provide leadership and link into Trust, ICB and regional network governance structures
Timeline:

e Short-term (2023/24 Q1) — Funding made available to ICBs to transfer to acutes.
Regions and systems to support recruitment/mobilisation of MH Champions

e Short-term (2023/24 Q2) — Reporting for MH Champion role

e Short-term (2023/24 Q2-4)- Support evaluation and development of framework for role
progression. Share and spread learning.

Youth Workers

This project will be developed to deliver proactive Youth Worker support to Children
and Young People through VCSE partners across our acute hospitals. We will build
on the developments within our acutes and paediatric departments. We will partner with
VCSE colleagues to host the roles within their organisation, based at our hospitals to
deliver a person centred and trauma informed intervention for children and young people,
aged 11-25, accessing our Children's Wards, Emergency Department and adult wards,
focusing on mental health needs and children struggling with the impact of long term
conditions including diabetes and epilepsy.

Cohort of patients that would directly benefit from a Youth Worker service are:

1. Young people admitted to ED, Children's and Adult wards with mental health needs
2. CYP who may be experiencing health inequalities

3. Focus on transition through 18-25 (in RUH linking directly with adult MIND service)

Youth Workers would provide a range of sessions based on busiest times, to offer children
and young people a plan of support and safety plan and this will include a forward plan
and signposting transitions to community based services.

Timeline:
e Short-term (2023/24 Q1-2) — Funding made available to ICBs. Allocation to VCSE
based on procurement guidance. Link to MH Champions

e Short-term (2023/24 Q2-4)- Support evaluation and development of framework for role
progression. Share and spread learning.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

Following initial BSW CYP Programme Board activity the work is expected to be delivered
in two key stages: Tactical stage — Agree improvement milestones/outcomes for 2023
and identify what we need to have in place to support delivery of these. Review,

Page 154

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 98 of 192



prioritisation, establishment of new and refinement of existing programmes of work, ensure
they are the right things and are set up to succeed

Strategic stage — key questions we want answered - HOW DO WE...... ? Ensure the
ICB recognise that as 30% of the BSW ICB population that Children, Young People and
their Families receive sufficient ICB focus through BSW ICB Strategy and BSW Care
Model Understand how we work together effectively as a system to reduce unwarranted
variation, so we define future services operating at the optimum scale for effectiveness.
Review required workforce and collaborate with partners to support its creation and
availability. Define role of technology. Deliver affordable and sustainable services. Better
integrate community services to ensure ease of access, clear provision that is understood
and used by children and their families, that avoid duplication and spend each £1 once

When will we start seeing the benefits?

e Short-term (2022/23 Q3-4) — the initial impacts in developing shared priorities and an
integrated approach, workforce and financial recovery during 22/23.

e Medium-longer term (from April 23) — benefits from CYP embedded within ICB
strategy, transformation and planning, integrated and redesigned services and
simplified workstreams

Monitoring delivery
We will develop a BSW Children and Young People’s Strategy and develop and co-
produce key metrics and outcomes including targets

List lead and email address for further information

Lead: Sadie Hall, Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

Page 155

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 99 of 192


mailto:Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

8. Strategic Objective 2: Fairer Health and Wellbeing Outcomes

e We will embed inequality as “everybody’s business” across the system;

e We will develop an inequalities hub within BSW Academy to host learning and
development resources;

e Anincreased focus on children and young people;

e We will work with commissioners and service providers to ensure robust and up-to-date
data across the system on where inequalities are, and set out clear plans on how to
close the inequality gaps; and

e We will demonstrate action on inequalities that spans from system to place through
joined up strategy and planning.

Fairer Health and Wellbeing Outcomes — An Overview

Tackling health inequalities to guarantee fairer health and wellbeing outcomes across all
sectors of our communities is a matter of fairness and social justice. The lower a person’s
social position, the worse this person’s health will be (this is called the social gradient of
health).

Action should focus on reducing the gradient in health to ensure fairness in health
outcomes and wellbeing. Action taken to reduce health inequalities will benefit society in
many ways. It will have economic benefits in reducing losses from illness associated with
health inequalities. These currently account for productivity losses, reduced tax revenue,
higher welfare payments and increased treatment costs. Effective local delivery requires
effective participatory decision-making at local level. This can only happen by empowering
individuals and local communities.

BSW ICB has a legislative requirement to:

a) Reduce inequalities between person with respect to their ability to access health
services and

b) Reduce inequalities between patients in respect to the outcomes achieved for them by
the provision of health services.

The ICB has also the duty to have regard to the wider effects of decisions on inequalities.
The duty to promote integration requires consideration of securing integrated provision
across health, health-related and social services where this would reduce inequalities in
access to services or outcomes achieved.

Page 156

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 100 of 192



Delivering our commitments

e | We will implement a CORE20PLUS5 approach across BSW, as outlined in our
Inequalities Strategy

¢ | We will embed inequality as “everybody’s business” across the system;

e | We will develop an inequalities hub within BSW Academy to host learning and
development resources;

e | We will work with commissioners and service providers to ensure robust and up-to-date
data across the system on where inequalities are, and set out clear plans on how to
close the inequality gaps; and

¢ | We will demonstrate action on inequalities that spans from system to place through
joined up strategy and planning.

The BSW Inequality Strategy 2021-2024, first published in 2021, aims to provide a
framework for system activity to reduce health inequalities. The strategy has been
developed from key guidance and policy relating to reducing healthcare inequalities, as
well as recognising the need for close partnership working with colleagues at a place level
to address social, economic and environment determinants of health (also known as ‘wider
determinants’). This strategy aims to address inequalities across the life course, to include
pregnancy, children and young people, adults and into old age.

The BSW Inequalities Strategy builds a foundation for a shared understanding of health
inequalities as a system, bringing together existing strategy and local data and intelligence
and focusing this on the CORE20PLUS5 population.

This approach focusses on the ‘core’ 20% of most deprived areas ‘PLUS’ communities at
higher risk of inequality (e.g., those with black, Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds)
focussing initially in five clinical areas. For adults these are:

CVvD
Maternity
Respiratory
Cancer
Mental Health

arwnE

Smoking Cessation is included as a priority that cross cuts all five clinical areas for adults.

In December 2022, the NHS also published the Core20PLUS5 approach for Children and
Young People (CYP) which focuses the following five clinical areas:

Asthma
Diabetes

Oral health
Epilepsy
Mental Health

arwnpE

Alongside the 20 per cent most deprived population and the clinical priority areas, the
BSW PLUS (inclusion) populations are defined at a place level for Bath and North East
Somerset, Swindon, and Wiltshire separately. This decision was taken to capture the

Page 157

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 101 of 192


https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/core20plus5-cyp/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/core20plus5-cyp/

unique populations of each locality and ensure health inequalities are not exacerbated by

reflecting an average of a much larger group. Each PLUS group was chosen based on the
local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) for each area. The PLUS populations for
BSW are outlined as follows:

e Bath and North East Somerset: Ethnic minority communities, Homeless and People
living with severe mental illness (SMI)

e Swindon: Ethnic minority communities

e Wiltshire: Routine and manual workers, Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities and
rural communities

Continuously improving BSW data on inequalities both at System and Place level is a key
priority. This includes routine use of postcode of residence and indicators of place, and
improved ethnicity recording. The aim is to enable the use of good quality data,
disaggregated by deprivation and ethnicity, to provide the best evidence-base for
decisions to be made. This includes:

e Reporting designed and published that operationally supports improvements in
ethnicity coding completeness.

e Process, technicalities and governance arrangements being investigated to flow
ethnicity data back from Primary Care and other organisations to the three BSW Acute
Providers. This process will support further improvements in coding completeness
across the BSW System.

e Development of System-level Core20PLUSS5 dashboards, alongside a suite of other
data tools that identify the inequality groups within populations and enable providers
and programmes to understand and take action to reduce inequality gaps within their
remit.

The Programme at System will focus on embedding inequalities and prevention across the
BSW programmes. In addition, they will work specifically with CYP and MH programmes in
developing their focus on Health Inequalities and Prevention.

The areas of focus on data improvement this year will include Mental Health, Elective
Care, Cancer, and Urgent & Emergency Care. Funds for better data will be non-recurrent
with the ambition to transition into Business as Usual (BAU) by 2025-26.

The Strategy is available in appendix and provides a defined set of targets to deliver
across three phases:

e Phase 1: Awareness Raising

e Phase 2: Healthcare Inequality and Core20PLUS5

e Phase 3: Prevention & the social, economic, and environmental determinants of health.
This phase is covered in detail in other chapters of this plan.

Page 158

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 102 of 192



Each Phase will include an implementation plan and a set of metrics which is also
available in Appendix 2 of the Strategy.

Table 14: TABLE TITLE TO BE ADDED

Phase Vision KPI/Metric

All staff, partners, Training Needs Analysis to be completed by June 2022
1. Making and communities to | 20 sessions delivered by April 2024
inequalities understand Inequalities online ‘hub’ online by November 2022 and
everybody’s inequality and how | disseminated. Traffic to site to show increasing access from
business we seek to address | baseline to April 2024.

this in BSW

Resource library to be available and distributed by December
2022

BSW Inequalities Communication Plan completed by December
2022

Full membership of the BSW Inequalities group established by
April 2022

All thematic and organisation leads to deliver action plans as
outlined by the BSW Inequalities Strategy by April 2023

2. Healthcare
inequalities and
CORE20+5

Work with
commissioners and
service providers to
ensure robust and
up-to-date data
across the system
on where
inequalities are,
and clear plans on
how close the
inequality gaps to
offer exceptional
quality healthcare
for all through
equitable access,
excellent
experience, and
optimal outcomes

Performance reports will be broken down by patient ethnicity
and IMD quintile, focusing on:

- Under-utilisation of services (e.g. proportions of cancelled
appointments)

- Waiting lists

- Immunisation and screening

- Late cancer presentations

Data on access and %broken down by patient age, ethnicity,
disability status, condition, IMD quintile

% completeness of data on ethnicity across primary care,
outpatients, A&E, mental health, community services,
specialised commissioning

Development of a strategic approach to community engagement
embedded through the System, focusing on equity of access,
experience and outcomes for C20+ groups

Achieving the
Core20PLUS5
targets to reduce
the inequality gaps
identified in the five
clinical areas
(adults)

Increase in percentage of pregnant people on CoC pathway in
line with staffing trajectories

Annual health checks for 60% of those living with severe mental
illness and learning disabilities

Increased uptake of COVID, flu and pneumonia vaccines in
C20+ and people with COPD

75% of cancer cases diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 by 2028

Increase percentage of patients with hypertension treated to
NICE guidance to 77% by March 2024

Increase the percentage of patients aged between 25 and 84
years with a CVD risk score greater than 20 percent on lipid
lowering therapies to 60%

Achieving the
Core20PLUSS
targets to reduce
the inequality gaps
identified in the five
clinical areas (CYP)

Reduce the percentage of children and young people with a
reliever: preventor ratio greater than 1:6

Reduce the number of asthma attacks as indicated by
unplanned hospital admissions, presentations in ED,
prescriptions of oral steroids

Increased access to real-time continuous glucose monitors and
insulin pumps across the most deprived quintiles and from
ethnic minority backgrounds; and increase proportion of those

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 159

Page 103 of 192




Phase Vision KPI/Metric
with Type 2 diabetes receiving recommended NICE care
processes.
Increase access to ESNs for CYP within the most deprived 20%,
and CYP with LD&A, within the first year of care
Tooth extractions in hospital due to decay for children aged 10
years and younger
Children and young people (ages 0-17) mental health services
access (number with 1+ contact)
Reduce smoking Smoking prevalence in BSW
3. Tackling prevalence across Smoking prevalence of adults in routine and manual occupations
inequality by BSW, with targeted | Prevalence of people smoking in pregnancy/smoking at time of
addressing focus on routine delivery
social, and manual Proportion of smokers received smoking cessation support
economic, and occupations and within hospital
environmental smoking in Proportion of pregnant smokers offered support in maternity
factors pregnancy settings

Halt and reverse of
obesity prevalence
in children and

adults across BSW

Number of referrals to NHS digital weight management services
per 100k head of population

Number of people supported through the NHS diabetes
prevention programme as a proportion of patients profiled

Engagement in Digital Weight Management Programme (PH
thc)

Establishing and
harnessing the
potential of local
anchor Institutions
in our three acute
hospitals and
mental health trust
to deliver positive
change across all
domains of anchor
influence including
employment,
procurement, and
environmental
impact

All three acute hospitals in BSW achieve chartered anchor
institution status by 2025

Increased number of local hires

Increased number of apprenticeships

Increased recruitment representative of local demographic data

Increased local vs. central spend where possible

Increased community use of NHS estates

Increased support for NHS staff to access affordable housing

Increase in accessible community green space

Decreased carbon output through improved energy efficiency,
increased sustainable travel options

Reduced waste and water consumption

Develop and support anchor collaboratives/networks (e.g. AWP,
Local authorities, campuses, leisure centres)

Phase 1 of the strategy is currently underway and focuses on Making Inequalities
Everybody’s Business. This phase targeted ICS leaders to ensure Health Inequalities
drivers and priorities were understood and addressed. This area of work is ongoing and
there will be further development around developing training modules on health
inequalities in partnership with the BSW Academy and the Health Inequalities National
Academy. This work will be a key component of the Health Inequality programme.

How we are organised to deliver
The Strategic Leadership and Accountability within the inequalities programme is

guaranteed by a Senior Responsible Officer in place, and an Executive Director with remit
for inequalities within the ICB.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 160

Page 104 of 192




The Governance and oversight of Health Inequalities is provided by the Population Health
Board. The Board oversees the delivery of the BSW Inequality Strategy as well as the
Health Inequality Programme.

An integrated System Inequalities group is held six-weekly to gain a comprehensive insight
into the local population’s diverse health needs and assets. The group provides the
opportunity to coordinate activity and offer wider collaboration to reduce inequalities
through working in partnership. This includes representation from public health, local
authority partners, clinical leads, acute hospitals, providers and commissioners.

Roadmap

Table 15: TITLE TO BE ADDED

Actions Milestone

BSW Inequality Strategy and Allocation ratified by Population May 2023
Health Board and ICB Board.

Funds Devolved to Place and System and System resource May-July 2023
recruited
Development of a comprehensive Health Inequalities and January — June 2023

Prevention Programme

Programme Implementation August 2023 — March
2024

Page 161

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 105 of 192



An increased focus on children and young people;

Context

In BaNES and Wiltshire 0-19 years olds form 23% of their population, in Swindon, 25%.
Presenting our data as a system masks pockets of deep deprivation and inequality for
children within each area, including two neighbourhoods within the most deprived 10%
nationally. Swindon has a higher level of deprivation compared to Wiltshire and Banes,
being the 5" most deprived LA in the SW.

Table 16: Office for Health Improvement & Disparities (2022). Deprivation score for BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire
is highlighted.

Quintifes: | Best ] | worst | Not applicable
Recent trendgs: = Couldnotbe  wi No significant Increasing '. Decreasing
calculated change
Deprivation score (IMD 2019) 2019 Score
Area Fi'?;:? Count Value Lofl:f cl Upg;::n cl
England - - 21.7
South West region - - 18.2
Torbay - : 2.1 I
Plymouth - : 26. [
Bristo - : 26.4 I
Cornwall - - 23.1
Swindon - - 18.6
Somerset - - 18.6
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole - - 18.2
Devon - - 16.6
North Somerset - - 15.8
Dorset - - 15.7
Gloucestershire - - 14.9
l Wiltshire - - 13.4 - - I
Isles of Scilly = - 12.0
l Bath and North East Somerset - - 1.7 - - I
South Gloucestershire - - 1.7

We have complex geography and demographics with wide variation; diverse urban
populations in Bath, Salisbury and Swindon; alongside 55% of the BSW population living
in large and rural Wiltshire; a large military presence with 17,700 army personnel and their
families; ethnic minorities population of 10.2% Swindon, 5.4% BaNES and 3.4% Wiltshire,
significant boater and traveller populations.

Page 162

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 106 of 192



Figure 23: Map of BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire

Many of our poorest children grow up in communities where their circumstances are in
stark contrast to those around them. Social and Emotional Mental Health as the

primary SEND need has significantly increased. Worsening mental health and wellbeing
with high and increasing levels of under 18 hospital admissions for mental health
conditions, eating disorders, self-harm and alcohol and an increase in complexity and
demand for children’s social care, SEN and early help services.

BaNES identifies those with inequality indices experience poorer social and health
outcomes for physical and mental health, aspiration, and school engagement. The
attainment gap for children eligible for free school meals in early years, is one of the
highest gaps in the country.

This picture is reflected in Wiltshire, where CYP at risk of poorer outcomes are those with
SEND and receiving FSM.

Obesity is a key issue for CYP within BSW, Swindon JSNA shows one in three children
aged 10-11 and one in four children aged 4 or 5 in Swindon are overweight or obese,
excess weight in Year 6 children (36.1%) continues at higher levels than South West
(31.8%) in 2019/20. High prevalence of overweight in children is noticeable amongst the
most deprived areas for both Reception and Year 6 children.

Place based examples of excellence

« Swindon’s Whole Systems Approach tackling obesity in children and young people,
trialling a whole schools healthy weight programme (SNAPS) targeted at schools in the
highest areas of deprivation, and running a child and family weight management
programme.

« BaNES approach to improving education outcomes for disadvantaged pupils through
their programmes Poverty Proofing Our School, Primary Empowerment - addressing
MH needs of primary children living in areas of deprivation, and Early Years Language
for Life

Page 163

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 107 of 192




« Wiltshire’s Five to Thrive: Attachment, Trauma and Resilience Initiative, training the
CYP workforce to be attachment aware and trauma informed, with over 600
Champions and 900 additional staff ‘light touch’ trained, to be part of the Family Help
Strategy, created by Family and Children’s Transformation (FACT) partnership driving
forward work for Early Help.

Our delivery plan

We have strength in our integrated ICB leadership, combined with the power of bringing
together the key partners and leaders for children across BSW. The BSW CYPP Board
coordinates work for children and young people on behalf of the Integrated Care Board
and Partnership.

Our VCSE Alliance at system level is made up of the three CVS’s, the Rural Community

Council and Healthwatch. Each locality has a Leadership Alliance offering a gateway into
the sector and the communities its supports and reaches, with networks for Children and
Families.

We are investing in meaningful engagement with children, young people, and families,
working with place based and LA colleagues to ensure their voices are listened to in
decision making.

We have LAs that are demonstrating sound performance and are therefore well placed to
focus on this project, with all three BSW Children’s Services rated good by Ofsted.

Our footprint provides a unique challenge and opportunity for rich learning. The BSW
combination of rural Wiltshire with large geographical area, perceived rural idyll that can
mask deprivation, urban Swindon with associated high levels of deprivation and BaNES,
with Bath as an affluent city, and children living with significant deprivation.

For Children and Young People, the proposed groups have been chosen because they

have been identified as the areas where children and young people are at most risk of the

poorest outcomes in BSW:

e Children with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)

e Children with excessive weight and living with obesity

e Children Looked After (CLA) and care experienced CYP

e Early Years (with a focus on school readiness)

e Children and Young People with Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE; with a
focus on delivering trauma informed services)

Our approach is to focus on:
» Outcomes for children, recognising adverse childhood experiences mean investing in
children is WHOLE POPULATION prevention and early intervention

« BSW Children Looked After, who are at particular risk of poor outcomes, improving the
MH of CLA and the BSW Care Leavers Pledge

« Delivering changes for children set out in the BSW Care Model, through BSW
Integrated Community-based Care, links to early help and family hub arrangements,

Page 164

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 108 of 192



the shift to prevention and early intervention whilst meeting current service demand
pressures and creating a sustainable workforce and financial position

+ Bringing together key leaders to consider how we address the mental health crisis we
see in our children across BSW.

What we will do in the next twelve months

* We will use the framework of the BSW Inequalities Strategy and the Core20+5 to
improve equity of access, experience and outcomes for Children and Young People
across BSW.

» The focus of the next twelve months will be:

« 2023/24 Q1 to embed the CYP Programme into the inequalities work and establish the
governance arrangements with links to the BSW Inequalities Strategy Group and
Population Health Board. Arrange appropriate clinical representation for CYP within the
five clinical areas of the C20+5 for CYP.

« 2023/24 Q2 establish a working group with a focus on long-term conditions

» <include or reference the relevant aspects of final draft content for SO3 12m
deliverables>

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

BSW is a place where children and young people will experience great divides in family
income, health, wellbeing, and attainment outcomes. The BSW Inequalities strategy
recognises that whilst inequality affects people of all ages it is children and young people
more often affected by, and subject to, inequality than adults whilst least able to defend
themselves against it.

We have acknowledged that inequalities experienced in childhood can have a long-term
effect across the life-course. We know that Covid-19 has deepened the impact on children,
their parents/carers and the professionals who support them, now compounded by the
cost-of-living crisis.

Monitoring delivery
e Set out the key metrics for this area including targets

We will work on the national ambitions for healthcare inequalities as part of the Core20+5
which are:

Table 17: National ambitions for healthcare inequalities (Core20+5) and measures

Outcome Measure
Address over reliance on reliever Reduce the percentage of children and
medications young people with a reliever: preventor

ratio greater than 1:6

Decrease the number of asthma attacks Reduce the number of asthma attacks as
indicated by unplanned hospital
admissions, presentations in ED,
prescriptions of oral steroids

Page 165

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 109 of 192



Reducing health inequalities and variation
in outcomes for children and young adults
with diabetes, including more equitable
access to treatment technology

Increased access to real-time continuous
glucose monitors and insulin pumps across
the most deprived quintiles and from ethnic
minority backgrounds; and increase
proportion of those with Type 2 diabetes
receiving recommended NICE care
processes.

Address variation in access to Epilepsy
Specialist Nurses (ESNs) within
ICSs/Trusts, with a specific focus on
access for patients from the most deprived
quintile and those with LD&A

Increase access to ESNs for CYP within
the most deprived 20%, and CYP with
LD&A within the first year of care

Address the backlog for tooth extractions
in hospital for under 10s

Tooth extractions in hospital due to decay
for children aged 10 years and younger

Improve access rates to children and
young people’s mental health services for
0-17-year-olds, for certain ethnic groups,
age, gender and deprivation

Children and young people (ages 0-17)
mental health services access (number
with 1+ contact)

List lead and email address for further information

Lead: Sadie Hall, Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

Page 166

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 110 of 192



mailto:Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

9. Strategic Objective 3: Excellent Health and Care Services

Excellent Health and Care Services — An Overview

This chapter discusses the work we are undertaking in health and care services across the
BSW system to meet our commitments for the delivery of excellent health and care for our
population. It should be noted that the focus is on transformation and developmental work
in those delivery areas specifically highlighted in the strategy and set out below. Therefore,
this section is not a comprehensive directory of all services provided but in no way means
that areas not included are not as important. It is more the case that the areas covered are
priorities for 2023/24 and therefore will change and develop through the life of the strategy.
The chapter is structured in line with the commitment areas set out below.

It should also be noted that service areas that are primarily Place based are discussed in
the local implementation plans chapter rather than in this chapter which is more focussed
on system wide delivery areas.

Our Commitments

Personalised Care

e Shared decision making to ensure that individuals are supported to make decisions
that are right for them;

e Personalised care and support planning to ensure that facilitated conversations take
place in which the individual, or those that know them well, is an active participant;

e Enabling choice, including legal rights to choice;

e Social prescribing and community-based support;

e Supported self management to ensure people are helped to manage their ongoing
physical and mental health conditions themselves; and

e Personal health budgets and integrated personal budgets.

Joined up local teams / Neighbourhood teams
e Across BSW we will develop integrated, multidisciplinary teams that deliver health
and care services around the needs of children and adults; and
e We will review community services and put integrated teams at the heart of the way
these services are provided in future.

Responsive local specialist services
e We will provide virtual ward services in BSW that will provide a range of
interventions tailored to the needs of the children and adults to help prevent hospital
admissions and to accelerate discharge from hospital; and
¢ BSW is committed to expanding community diagnostic facilities that will deliver
additional, digitally connected, diagnostic capacity.

High quality specialist centres
e The Acute Hospitals Alliance (AHA) is developing a clinical strategy that will set out
the role hospitals will play in the delivery of urgent care services, management of

Page 167

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 111 of 192



long-term conditions and how they can improve quality and productivity for children
and adults;

e The AHA partners are working together on the development of facilities in the Sulis
Hospital in Peasedown St John which will play a critical role in reducing the waiting
times for surgical procedures for the population of BSW;

e We will work with local communities, children and adults using services (who are
experts by experience) and staff to shape the design and delivery of services; and

e We will set clear quality standards and expected outcomes when commissioning
health and care services for the population we serve.

Mental health and parity of esteem

e Personalised care: developing nuanced models of care that reduce unwarranted
variation whilst paying attention to localised differences in our populations;

e Joined up local teams: we will accelerate place based integration of mental and
physical health, through integrated neighbourhood teams and primary care;

e Healthier communities: we will take a holistic approach to mental health by aligning
more closely with our local Joint local Health and Wellbeing Strategies;

e Local specialist services: we will work with our specialist mental health providers to
ensure local specialist provision is accessible, responsive, financially sustainable
and reduces the need for out of area care; and

e Addressing inequalities: we will use data to inform our approach to targeted
interventions in addressing inequalities.

Safeguarding

Safeguarding children, children looked after, young people, care leavers, adults is a
collective responsibility. NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board (BSW ICB) as a statutory safeguarding partner is committed to
working in collaboration with police and the local authority to ensure the people across
Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire are Safeguarded. Safeguarding
means protecting a citizen’s health, wellbeing, and human rights; enabling them to live free
from harm, abuse and neglect. It is an integral part of providing high-quality health care.

As part of the ICB duty to safeguard, a key area of focus is the protection of the victims of
abuse and to prevent and reduce serious violence within our local communities. This is in
line with the Serious Violence Duty which launched in December 2022. Funded by the
Home Office, the Duty brings key partners across health, police and the local authorities
together to form specialist teams, which will design and implement strategies to protect our
local communities across the life course.

The ICB will work as part of the three safeguarding partnerships to support strategic
planning in the prevention and reduction of violence in our local communities. This will
include collating and analysing health data from NHS Accident and Emergencies,
strengthening links with primary care networks and sharing of intelligence. We will also
ensure links with safeguarding professionals specialising in Prevent, Female Genital
Mutilation and Modern Slavery to share insight and gain a fuller picture of what is
happening locally.

Page 168

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 112 of 192



To gain an insight into the causes of violence and the devastating consequences for
members of our communities, BSW ICB will connect with local agencies such as
education, probation, charity organisations and faith leaders. A primary focus will be
engaging with our communities and where consent is gained conducting interviews to hear
the lived experience from victims of violence and/or their families. The lived experiences
will be reflected in our Strategic Needs Assessment and local strategy.

To assess readiness to tackle and prevent serious violence a training skills analysis will be
completed to determine any training needs for healthcare professionals. BSW ICB are
proactive in ensuring healthcare staff are confident and competent in knowing how to
safely identify, refer and respond to victims of serious violence.

We will work as part of the specialist team to embed lessons learned from Child
Safeguarding Practice Reviews, Safeguarding Adult Reviews and Domestic Homicides.
We will engage with the local authority community safety partnerships to collate
recommendations and disseminate these to healthcare staff in a variety of platforms such
as staff training, safeguarding supervision and newsletters. Action plans and task and
finish groups will drive any required changes to clinical practice. BSW ICB are committed
to avoid preventable deaths wherever possible.

In the implementation stage, serious violence pathways will be collaboratively designed
with partner agencies so frontline staff know who to inform and where to refer to ensure
the safety of victims. We will work collaboratively with partner agencies to form an Early
Help response to identifying and preventing where possible violent crime.

Objectives

. Implement training to all necessary staff to meet the health requirements of the
Serious Violence Duty 2022

. Embed learning and improvements to practice following children Safeguarding
Practice Reviews, Safeguarding Adult Review and Domestic Homicide Reviews

. Working in collaboration with partner agencies to establish pathway for victims
of serious violence

. Ensure Safeguarding and vulnerability are linked to the broader ICB health

inequalities and commissioning agendas with focus on placements for our
vulnerable population within and out of area

Page 169

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 113 of 192



Personalised Care:

Context
BSW integrated care system is committed to further implementing the comprehensive
model of personalised care to establish:
¢ whole-population approaches to supporting children and adults of all ages and their
carers to manage their physical and mental health and wellbeing, build community
resilience, and make informed decisions and choices when their health changes
e a proactive and universal offer of support to children and adults with long-term
physical and mental health conditions to build knowledge, skills and confidence
and to live well with their health condition
¢ intensive and integrated approaches to empowering people with more complex
needs to have greater choice and control over the care they receive

Personalised care is core to the delivery of our system strategy. Where individuals feel
well informed about their care and are able to work in partnership with health and care
professionals to manage their health and wellbeing, they are more likely to achieve better
outcomes and have a better experience of care because their hopes, fears and
expectations are being listened to. Health and care professionals are also likely to have a
better understanding of individuals’ strengths and needs and thus be best place to provide
the best and most appropriate care. It is therefore our ambition to ensure this approach is
applied to everything we do in the future.

Our delivery plan

As set out in BSW ICB commitments, we will utilise the model and supporting tools to
deliver this plan by focusing on the six, evidence-based components each of which is
defined by a standard set of practices:

Shared decision making

Personalised care and support planning

Enabling choice, including legal rights to choice

Social prescribing and community-based support
Supported self-management

Personal health budgets and integrated personal budgets

oubhwnE

How we are organised to deliver

We are developing as integrated health and care neighbourhood teams within PCNs and
at place to implement and monitor the comprehensive model of personalised care.
Working closely with BSW Primary Care and Community Care Training Hub, Quality and
Continuing Care Teams.

What we will continue to build on in the next twelve months

+  We will develop further opportunities for self-management and self care which will be
promoted wherever possible in an appropriate way based on the individual’'s activation
level

* We have building blocks in place including 100+ Personalised Care ARRS roles
recruited by our PCNs, together with a developing in-house training programme with
25+ people trained in part one of our in house Health Coaching Training Programme.

Page 170

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 114 of 192




Plan to focus resources to further develop and fund the Personalised Care Health
Coaching Programme and Personalised Care Ambassador

« Within identified PCNs we will aim for people with 2+ long term conditions and low
activation to have a personalised care worker (that is a core part of an integrated
neighbourhood team) as their first and consistent point of contact

+ Integrated neighbourhood teams will include Social Prescribing Link Workers that can
encourage access to community-based support. We will further develop social
prescribing along the Compassionate Frome model.

+ Anyone offered an elective intervention will have had a shared decision-making
conversation prior to this decision.

* We will provide additional training to meet mandated requirements of all Personalised
Care ARRS roles.

+ Develop a network of workforce using a personalised care approach, starting with
known ARRS roles and then expand. Extend training to this wider group in 2024 and
beyond.

» Through other transformation programmes increase the scale of workforce using a
personalised care approach. Focus on integrated community-based transformation
programme.

* Promote Personal Health Budgets

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
Aligned to national ambition, we will aim for personalised care to benefit up to 5% of the
population by 2024 and increase to 25% by 2028.

Monitoring delivery
As a system we aim to continuously improve approaches to implementing the
comprehensive models of personalised care:

. Utilise personalised care tools, national and local quality and safety metrics and
quality improvement methodology to monitor impact on health and care
outcomes and experience

. There have been examples of good practice shared within individual PCNs via
people’s feedback and stories of their improved experience. With appropriate
consent, we will continue to promote the sharing of people’s experience and
stories to encourage similar projects across PCNs

. We will ensure qualitative outcomes and experience will inform transformation
programmes and quality improvement initiatives.
. We will continue to evaluate the process and impact of PCN innovations

developed around their Personalised Care ARRS roles at neighbourhood and
place, and strengthen feedback mechanisms at system level

Page 171

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 115 of 192




Joined up local teams / Neighbourhood teams

Across BSW we are developing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams in response to a belief,
both locally and nationally, that the work of different teams working in the community feels
fragmented for the patients and clients they are supporting. Historically this has been for a
number of reasons including the teams coming from a range of health and care
organisations, and sometimes the same organisation, where arrangements for the pooling
information on the support they are providing have not always been clear or simple to
navigate. The results of this have meant individuals have had to “tell their story” multiple
times to different teams or professionals, having to travel to a wide range of different
services or being visited by a range of different teams or professionals that can feel
disjointed or duplicative.

In response we are setting in place local multidisciplinary teams bringing together different
types of clinicians and professionals from a range of teams and organisations in order to
provide more joined up care and support which would be ideally in people’s homes or
otherwise as close to them as possible.

The detail of what is being developed in each part of BSW is described in the earlier Local
Implementation Plans chapter.

Primary Care:

Context

Nationally and locally, it is recognised and appreciated the incredibly hard work of general
practice during this period of sustained significant pressure. The past few years have
demonstrated the dedication of practice and Primary Care Network (PCN) teams in
innovating and responding to the needs of their populations. In March 2023, BSW General
Practice delivered 497,783 appointments, an increase of 7.4% on March 2022, 67% were
face to face appointments, a testament to the incredible work of GP teams.

The key focus for 2023/24 is on improving patient experience and satisfaction of access.
2023/24 is the last year of the 5-year framework Investment and Evolution and in 23/24
NHSE will engage widely re Fuller Stocktake with next steps towards integrating primary
care; and consult on QOF and its future form. The Delivery Plan for Recovering Access to
Primary Care (published 09.05.23) sets out how practices and PCNs can be supported to
improve access, recognising changes will require time and support — including freeing up
workforce through changes to QOF (practices) and IIF (PCNs).

From April 2023, the ICB has taken delegated responsibility, working closely with NHSE
Collaborative Commissioning Hub, to secure the provision of Pharmaceutical Services
(including Dispensing Doctors and Dispensing Appliance Contractors); General
Ophthalmic Services; and Dental Services (Primary, Secondary and Community) for our
population. Our local governance structures are still being established but will cover all
primary care contractor groups.

Page 172

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 116 of 192



ICB governance
Primary Care governance —

NHSE
ICB Board

Assurance l l Strategic direction

il
|

Quality and Finance and
Outcomes Investment
Commitiee Commitiee
o
Primary Care assurance S
Oversight and infey, stralegic drection SW Collabor aive Commissioning Hub
Assurance Group "’ Primary Care & Public Health Operational

P SW NHSE Pharmaceutical Services
Reguations Commitiee (PSRC)

Primary Care
ICB Exestive Exeative Gr
Group i SW NHSE Primary and Community Care
report | m!otm via i Programme Board
1C8 Exec Dir

report, escalate reserved decsions

[JNHSE/ Retained Professional Standards

BSW Primary | |BSW Pharmacy | |BSW Dental BSW Eye Care i mmemm————— -

Medical Care Group - Reference Group - primary ' 'é'a p‘?@"m'f&sx?h LUl Place - ICAs, Lis,
Operational pharmaceutical Group - primary | | ophthaimology are Professional Directors| HiWBs

(Group - primary | [services dental services services ! mmmosomomns

medical services | |(Avon, Wilts LPC | [(Avon, Wilts LDC | |(Avon, Wilts LOC
(MC " \ i oboen oot . )
involvement)

Potential to invite aftendance across the Groups as appropriate or set up ¢ross
cutting meetings as required/requested - NHSE invited to all

How are we organised to deliver

In order to meet the needs of our population, our 87 GP Practices are working across
BSW as 27 Primary Care Networks (PCNs). PCNs build on existing primary care services
and enable greater provision of proactive, personalised, co-ordinated and more integrated
health and care for people close to home.

Across BSW we have:

e 148 Community Pharmacies (137 are 40 hours; 11 are 100 Hours) Jan 23

e 503 Mandatory only contracts and 87 Domiciliary only General Ophthalmic Services
contracts (Jan 23)

e 122 Dental Contracts (Jan 23)

What will we do in the next twelve months
Key targets for primary care include:

Making it easier for people to contact a GP practice, including by supporting general
practice to ensure that everyone who needs an appointment with their GP practice gets
one within two weeks and those who contact their practice urgently are assessed the
same or the next day according to clinical need.

Implementing the GP Access Recovery Plan to improve patient experience, ease of
access and demand management and accuracy of recoding appointments

Continue on the trajectory to deliver more appointments in general practice by the end
of March 2024 (national)

Supporting PCN with workforce planning and recruitment to continue to recruit
Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) roles by the end of March 2024
Implement the GP Contractual Changes for 23/24

Page 173

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 117 of 192




e Working closely with NHSE and Public Health to deliver the SW Dental Development
Sustainability Plan to recover dental activity to pre pandemic levels and deliver the key
priorities from the local oral health needs assessments.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

We will have the ability to be locally responsive to population health needs and
commission services accordingly and have developed a tailored approach working with
partners to respond to health inequalities and ensure a focus on preventative care.

We will have developed our ability to integrate all primary care services into local
transformation and system working both within the place and system agendas and will
have incorporated these services more fully into a local primary care strategy.

We will have developed closer working relationships with our local Independent
Contractors across primary care which will have supported increased partnership working
at all levels further integrating care delivery in Primary Care Networks; and built a more
integrated clinical and professional leadership model which reflects the wider primary care
system.

The wider primary care services will have developed approaches to quality improvement
and support wider primary care resilience.

Monitoring Delivery

The primary care deliverables contribute to the successful delivery of:
v' Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Health & Wellbeing Strategies
v' BSW Integrated Care Strategy’s 3 prioritised strategic objectives:
* Focus on prevention and early intervention
» Fairer health outcomes
+ Excellent health and care services
v' Core20Plus5 for adults and children
v Fuller Stocktake — next steps for integrating primary care and development of
integrated neighbourhood teams

The ICB is taking on responsibility for the commissioning of primary care and, as part of
setting in place these arrangements, we are developing the necessary monitoring
arrangements to be assured of the effectiveness of our efforts.

Page 174

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 118 of 192




Urgent and Emergency Care:

Context

Despite system responses and efforts over the last few years post the pandemic, across

England hospitals are fuller and occupied by patients who are clinically ready to leave,

patients are spending longer time in A&E and patients waiting longer for an ambulance

response and pressure is taking a toll on staff health and wellbeing. This is no different in

BSW, as we had:

e Average percentage of patients seen A&E in four hours was 70.9%%, which fourth
highest in the South West which had an overall average of 70.8%

e The highest general and acute bed occupancy across the South West in 2022/23,
average 96%

e The average hospital handover time was 66 mins in 2022/23

e Non criteria to reside position was the highest in the South West, around 36%

Our BSW ICS Urgent and Emergency Care strategy is aligned to the national vision as we
set out in 2021 a 5-year plan for “Ensuring people access the right care, in the right place,
first time”.

Our delivery plan

The Delivery plan for recovering urgent and emergency care services: NHS England »

Delivery plan for recovering urgent and emergency care services outlines the expectation

that everyone should get the very best urgent and emergency care, and systems are

expected to raise the standards of quality and safety for the most vulnerable patients and

their families, including older people living with frailty, children and young people, people

with disabilities and people with mental health needs.

The plan sets out the two main ambitions set out in the delivery plan for recovering urgent

and emergency care services.

e Patients being seen more quickly in emergency departments, with the ambition to
improve to 76% of patients being admitted, transferred, or discharged within four hours
by March 2024 and further improvement in 2024/25

e Ambulances getting to patients quicker, with improved ambulance response times for
Category 2 incidents to 30 minutes on average over 2023/24, with further improvement
in 2024/25 towards pre-pandemic levels.

To meet the ambitions we will not only need to increase the size of the workforce but
create and develop career opportunities including rotational posts . Improving conditions
for staff and enabling people to work more flexibly to meet the needs of patients will be a
key commitment.

How we are organised to deliver
How we are planning on delivering them e.g., how are we organising ourselves, who is
involved

BSW’s Urgent Care and Flow Board (UCFB) has tasked the UEC tactical group to create a
system wide UEC recovery plan that will outline the plans to deliver the ambitions in the
recovery plan. There are 5 key areas of the plan.

1. Increasing urgent and emergency care capacity

2. Increasing workforce size and flexibility

Page 175

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 119 of 192


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivery-plan-for-recovering-urgent-and-emergency-care-services/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/delivery-plan-for-recovering-urgent-and-emergency-care-services/

3. Improving discharge
4. Expanding care outside of hospital
5. Making it easier to access the right care

UEC tactical group has conducted a gap analysis against the recovery plan and system
wide Winter Washup event was held on the 27" ° April to reflect on lessons learnt during
2022/23 and what further actions and decisions and priorities need to be incorporated into
our 2023/24 plans.

The gap analysis will identify which priorities will be delivered through our existing
transformation workstreams (Discharge to Assess, Domiciliary Care provision, Care
Coordination), Locality schemes, links with other boards (Virtual ward, Community
Integrated Care, Thrive Board), and our other workstreams including Ambulance
Handover, Directory of Services, Integrated Urgent Care, MIUs.

BSW’s Urgent Care and Flow board and UEC tactical group representatives from each of
BSW’s localities, including primary care, mental health, social care. UCFB will provide
monthly oversight and assurance of our delivery against the recovery plan and report back
to the Integrated Care Board and Integrated Partnership group BSW’s weekly UEC tactical
with system partners will monitor progress against schemes to achieve our anticipated non
criteria to position to deliver required bed occupancy and handover performance to
achieve Cat 2 performance aided by our Bl colleagues. On a daily basis, the BSW daily
touchpoint calls will have operational oversight of the system performance including
handover delays and system flow.

The plan should also be viewed in conjunction with the Elective Care Recovery
Programme and the GP Access Recovery plan.

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Care Coordination will be fully embedded in the system as single point of access for
999 and Care Home providers by Winter 2024

e Same day emergency care (SDEC) capacity and provision will be increased in each of
the 3 acute hospitals.

- RUH are planning on expanding their assessment space from the bed base to 20% to

support SDEC requirements including introducing new pathways, processes, and ways of

working by July 2023.

- From April 2023 SFT are planning to extend their SDEC will be 0800-1830 Monday to

Friday. Some weekend activity will also be planned based on medical workforce

cover(locum).

- During 2023/24 GWH will continue with their estates programme of work to develop an

integrated front door, increasing UEC capacity from June 2024.

e Providers will be required to implement electronic bed management systems by the
Summer 2023 and utilise A&E admission forecasting tool. SFT will be refreshing E-
Whiteboard in April 23 and will be developing a training programme for staff.

e Discharge to assess programme will continue to build on best practice interventions
and Home First initiatives to improve discharge across the system to support the
delivery of flow and reduce non criteria to reside. This will include implementation and
utilisation of A&E admission forecasting tool.

Page 176

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 120 of 192




Discharge Hubs will be rolled out in each of the 3 acute trusts 7 days week by
September 2023

Phase 2 of our Domiciliary care work programme in 2023/24 will continue to develop
the BSW strategic workforce plan for domiciliary care.

Installation of a new, permanent X-Ray machine at Paulton in April 2023 which will
reduce pressure on acute provision and support an improvement in 4-hour
performance.

Minor Injury Unit Transformation work programmes will continue and look at plans
developing to co-locate Trowbridge MIU clinicians with local GP practice to improve
minor iliness offer.

Work will continue to support the Home First approach across BSW, learning from the
successful model implemented in Swindon during 22/23. This model for Swindon
should be 7 days a week from June 2023

Care Coordination will be fully embedded in the system as single point of access for
999 and Care Home providers by Winter 2024

SWAST have 6 key priority workstreams to improve Category 2 response times, which
include Category 2 segmentation, improved call answering, improving front line
resource (Core and Private), Ambulance vehicle preparation hubs and reducing
sickness over 2023/24.

A strategic workforce plan with key priorities will be in place.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

From Spring 2024 - Mental health support will also be universally accessible through
111 and selecting option 2.

During 2024/24, expecting that system will continue to improve on A&E performance
from 2023/24 back towards the 95% target. The community services review will be
concluded and shape the direction of strategic direction of travel for our 3 local MIU
services, walk in centre service provision and identify plans for Urgent Care treatment
provision in the South of Wiltshire.

Our ambition that by 2028, Emergency departments will be for the most acute and life-
threatening conditions. With all patients being referred by a healthcare professional
and no patient will be able to walk in without clinical triage first (including those
attending community treatment centres and urgent treatment centres)

Monitoring delivery
As a system we are expecting to be assessed nationally on the following key metrics

ED Performance (Type 1) — Target 76%

Percentage of patients waiting over 12 hours — Target is to get to 0 %
Percentage of patients with 14+ LOS — Target is to be confirmed.
Category 2 response times — Target 30mins

General and Acute Bed occupancy — Target 92%

Locally we will measure all the above metrics on a weekly basis plus additional metrics
that support the delivery of key schemes such as virtual ward, 2hr urgent care response,
average handover delays.

Page 177

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 121 of 192




List lead and email address for further information

e Heather Cooper, Director for Urgent Care and Flow. Email: Heather.Cooper8@nhs.net
e Emma Smith, Head of Urgent Care. Email: esmith17@nhs.net

¢ Jo Williamson, Head of System Flow. Email: Jo.Williamsonl@nhs.net

Page 178

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 122 of 192


mailto:Heather.Cooper8@nhs.net
mailto:esmith17@nhs.net

Virtual Wards:

BSW NHS@Home (Virtual Wards) programme supports the delivery of the System urgent
care and flow priorities.

Virtual wards provide a safe and efficient alternative to the use of an NHS hospital bed and
offer a range of interventions for people in their own home or normal place of residence,
providing an alternative to admission or enabling early discharge from hospital.

Our delivery plan
We have plans to significantly expand NHS@Home (Virtual wards) capacity across
BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire over the coming years.

The baseline position as at Q4 2022/23 is 87 virtual ward beds. Table 18 below sets out
our profiled growth in capacity by Place for the coming year.

Table 18: Virtual Wards profiled growth in capacity by Place

2022/23 2023/24

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
B&NES 25 50 70 75 90
Swindon 30 45 60 75 90
Wiltshire 32 56 90 135 180
BSW ICB total 87 151 220 285 360

We have detailed implementation plans for 23/24 which include workforce expansion and
development, enhancing clinical pathways to ensure consistency of access and offer, and
improved utilisation rates. We expect through the development and effective use of the
System Care coordination Centre the capacity available in VWSs will be optimised and
used equitably across the System.

Benefits for People using virtual wards and their carers

Through the development of our integrated care record, our aim is to use patient level
data to analyse and monitor outcomes, which will allow us to use this intelligence to
address variation and adapt the operating model to better meet the needs of local
communities. The expected benefits of Virtual wards are:

e To support increased patient choice and personalised care, allowing patients to be treated in a
more comfortable home environment.

e To reduce conveyances, emergency department (ED) presentations and hospital admissions
through the provision of timely multidisciplinary care.

e That people are less likely to decompensate while acutely unwell, meaning they do not
need as much increase in care provision when they recover

e That virtual wards improve staff experience and can allow for better and more flexible use of
the existing workforce.

e That they are an opportunity for people to become more confident in use of digital
technology to manage their condition, and reduce digital inequalities through support
given

Page 179

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 123 of 192



e That they release acute hospital beds for elective/non elective procedures to support wider
recovery ambitions

How we are organised to deliver

Subject matter experts from across BSW make up our key delivery groups. Clinicians and
operational professionals from across all partners across health and care, including the
voluntary sector, have been working together to co-produce a Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) for virtual ward delivery. Alongside a BSW SOP for our NHS@Home
Virtual Wards, each ICA (Integrated Care Alliance) in BSW has developed their own
implementation plans to reflect local population needs.

< Organising to Deliver

BSW ICB
Executive

BSW
Virtual
Wards

Steering

Group
Digital Sub
group

BSW .
ICB Board

9w
sZx
o

€<
5 ®a
a3

BSW Urgent
Care & Flow
Board

Figure 24: Organisation diagram for Virtual Ward delivery

What we will do in the next twelve months

Throughout England, ICBs have committed to achieving 40-50 virtual ward beds per
100,000 population by March 2024 in the two-year nationally funded Virtual Ward
programme. This equates to 2,228 beds in the South West and 360 beds across BSW.
As detailed above we have a clear trajectory for expansion over the next 12 months.

Monitoring delivery

The delivery of NHS@Home (Virtual Wards) is overseen by a Steering group which meets
monthly, and which is supported by a series of sub groups. Individual Place oversight
takes place through local implementation groups which report into the Steering Group.
Weekly highlight reports and deep dives are produced as part of our Urgent and
Emergency Care Board governance arrangements.

Formal reporting on performance, quality and finance against the annual Operating Plan
and System Outcomes Frameworks is into the BSW Executive groups, and the ICB Board
and its sub committees.

List lead and email address for further information
Fiona Slevin-Brown (Senior Responsible Officer - BSW NHS@Home Virtual Wards
Programme) f.slevin-brown@nhs.net

Page 180

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 124 of 192




Jill Couvreur (Programme Manager — BSW NHS@Home Virtual Wards Programme)
jill.couvreur@nhs.net

Page 181

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 125 of 192



Community Diagnostic facilities:

Context
In line with government guidance on developing community diagnostic centres, the BSW
system has produced two business cases for submission for national funding for both
capital and revenue funding. The cases set out the approaches for a community
diagnostic system-based approach to meet the challenges of increasing diagnostic waiting
times, health inequalities and reflecting the impact of geography. The two cases
incorporate:

e A hub site to be located at Sulis Hospital, an established planned care site

e Spoke sites situated in Swindon (2 sites), Salisbury, and West Wiltshire (Corsham)
addressing the localities and populations with the greatest need.

RUH
- Corsham Health Centre
(spoke)
- Sulis Hospital (CDC hub)

GWH SFT
- West Swindon Health .
Centre (spoke) - Salisbury Central
Health Centre (spoke)
- Health Hydro (spoke) : 5
. . - Mobile Service
- Mobile service (InHealth)

(InHealth)

Figure 25: Community Diagnostic facilities at Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust, Great Western
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

The investments will:

e Provide additional activity over and above the diagnostic capacity currently being
delivered at acute hospital sites

e Provide some additional provision around primary care locations to fill in
geographical gaps in delivery.

e All locations will be accommodated on community sites, not acute hospitals.

e Mobile units, using independent sector capacity, will be used to deliver much of the
community activity; a number of these will be introduced on acute sites in advance
of the spoke site developments to accelerate new diagnostic capacity.

Our delivery plan

e A key feature of the development of diagnostic services is the implementation of our
Community Diagnostic Centre model, which includes a fixed hub site at Sulis
Hospital alongside additional services (including mobile facilities) for imaging,
endoscopy and physiological measurement in Swindon and Salisbury.

Page 182

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 126 of 192



e This additional capacity and standardised approach to pathways will reduce waiting
time reduce backlogs and support delivery of elective pathway waiting time
reductions in Year 1 and 2 and support the national ambitions for earlier diagnosis
in cancer over the five-year period.

How we are organised to deliver

The Diagnostic Steering Group and Elective Care Board have considered options for the
governance of CDC delivery. In order to make the most effective use of existing ‘load
bearing’ system architecture, and to support the movement of resources from acute
provision to community settings, a delivery model through the Acute Hospital Alliance
(AHA) has been agreed in principle with the ICB, as part of the business case submission
to NHSE SW.

BSW has an established AHA, underpinned by a Committee in Common, operating as
Board committees of each of the three trusts, with the requisite decision making powers.
The AHA is discussed in more detail later in this chapter.

Integrated Care Board via the
Elective Care Board

Trust Boards / AHA

Diagnostics Steering Group (5) CDC Management Board

Endoscopy Imaging Physiological
Clinical Clinical Measurement
Clinical

(1) (4)

(Mobilisation)
Development Development
Group (2) Group (2) Development

Comms and Workforce
Engagement 3)
Group (2)

Estates & Governance
Regional Clinical Networks
3xPathology / 1x Imaging ) RE— s South West 2 Imaging
1 x Endoscooy /2 x Cancer Alliances

equipment task & finish
Primary governance accountability

—_
—
Accountability

Informing & interdependent

Figure 26: Governance structure for the Community Diagnostic facilities programme utilising a delivery model
through the Acute Hospital Alliance

Each provider has their own clinical governance arrangements which flow to their
respective boards and through the ICB quality mechanisms. CDC activity will be governed
in the same way, noting that as consistent system-wide pathways are developed, these
will need to be agreed across all providers.

The CDC clinical director (once appointed) will have responsibility for oversight and
management of standardising clinical pathway arrangements. This should support and

Page 183

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 127 of 192



accelerate the desired consistency of offer for services across BSW, whilst retaining
appropriate local variation should population need require it.

To support CDCs being most effective, BSW aspires to having aligned technologies and
improved system-level interoperability with clinical staff within the CDC having access to
their local clinical information systems.

Medium term plans to improve on this infrastructure position is the introduction of a
Shared EPR across the Acute trusts and consideration of a single interface for
requesting and results for CDCs (and wider community services).

CDC activity will be reported separately, with spoke activity ‘nesting’ under the CDC hub
code, but separately identifiable by each trust (location dependent).

The current proposal is for a single patient tracking list (PTL) to be developed using Power
Bl to ensure there is a single version of the truth for diagnostic waiting times across the
ICS, including CDCs.

What we will do in the next twelve months

The following aspects of the CDC programme will go live in 23/24 contributing to
diagnostic recovery, reducing the backlog and supporting elective delivery of the waiting
time ambitions: -

- Sulis hub — MRI (fixed) April 23; CT (Fixed) April 23, Endoscopy Sept 23

- Salisbury spoke — MRI April 23

- Corsham spoke — CT April 23

- West Swindon spoke — MRI April 23

- Hydro Health spoke — MRI April 23

This will deliver 10,268 additional CT scans, 6,882 additional scopes and 11,478 additional
MRI scans in 23/24. (Activity to be rechecked with business case updates currently taking
place)

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

This investment will facilitate additional activity over and above the diagnostic capacity
currently being delivered at acute hospital sites. The proposed model is designed to
enhance the current offering of diagnostic testing services from existing, mostly fixed,
sites. The implementation of the hub and spoke model will enhance diagnostic endoscopy
services bringing them closer to people’s home in the local area and with the core
objectives being:

- Meet demand and capacity requirements of the local population — demand and capacity
planning forecasts large gaps over the next three years if no actions are taken

Improve access with focus on areas of higher deprivation

- Address and reduce identified health inequalities

- Transform and streamline pathways, enabling more personalised care and improved
patient experience delivered from digitally connected, multi-diagnostic facilities

The intent is to generate communities of practice with a networked range of diagnostic
services which are efficient and equitable in their delivery.

Page 184

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 128 of 192




The enhanced facilities will provide a multi-functional approach to design, achieving a
purpose-built, generic, flexible infrastructure for diagnostic endoscopic examinations,
which will support one stop diagnostic pathways and reduce waiting lists.

Monitoring delivery

e Activity v plan for initially mobiles and then spoke sites
e Additional activity versus 19/20

e DMO1 performance

e Reduction of waits over 13 weeks

e Uptake of diagnostics from deprived wards

List lead and email address for further information
Peter Collins, peter.collins6@nhs.net

Claire Thompson claire.thompson10@nhs.net
TBC, CDC Programme Director

Page 185

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 129 of 192


mailto:peter.collins6@nhs.net
mailto:claire.thompson10@nhs.net

Mental Health:

Context

Improving the overall mental health and wellbeing of our population is a core component of
our plan. Our three strategic priorities are reflected in our transformation ambitions, with
our intention to complete a radical change to mental health delivery over the next 5 years.
This will move us away from a provider based model of provision to an integrated service
model that is pathway based and which makes best use of our collective strengths.
Although people in BSW have relatively good mental health, pockets of deprivation (as
outlined in our prevention chapter) drive poorer outcomes for people living in our most
challenged communities. In mental health services, we remain challenged in our delivery
of core mental health standards for people across our communities. Key issues are:

e Continued challenges in delivering improvements in Access and Recovery rates in
our Talking Therapies services. Although progress has been made to integrate
services and secure additional training we still fall short of the Long Term Plan
ambition for our population. This is of particular concern given that the number of
people with Common Mental lliness is increasing across B&NES, Swindon and
Wiltshire.

e Challenges associated with ensuring early access to children and young people’s
mental health services, with a lack of consolidated early support provided by third
sector partners across B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire

e Continued high cost long term placements for people with severe mental illness,
resulting in people having to travel out of area for extended periods of time affecting
patient experience and outcomes, as well as causing financial pressure

e Although out of area placements have reduced significantly during 2022/23,
sustaining this is contingent on having adequate flow through our mental health
estate. Challenges in securing housing and ongoing care packages mean that a
high proportion of our beds (c30%) are occupied by people who do not need to
reside in an acute mental health environment.

e Pace of community services transformation, meaning that we are still working to an
historic model of community provision that is not fully aligned to Primary Care
Networks or which makes best use of the community assets and capability
available.

e Delivering an integrated and effective model of provision for older adults care that
supports earlier diagnosis of dementia, enables people to live for as long as
possible in their communities and provides intervention and support to people in
care homes/settings rather than in an inpatient mental health unit.

e Establishing a local crisis response that is enabled by better working with South
Western Ambulance Service NHS FT, taking the staff to the person and de-
escalating at scene to avoid attendance in A&E departments with consequent
impact on front door acute flow.

Our delivery plan

We will transform our services to achieve integrated and effective mental health and
wellbeing services across BSW. Children and adults will be supported to live well in their
community, with additional support offered to them at the point of need from expert third
sector partners. Where people require secondary mental health services, this will be as

Page 186

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 130 of 192



part of a wider pathway with individuals offered timely therapeutic interventions enabling
them to transfer back to community based provision as rapidly as is clinically appropriate.

Over the coming 5 years we will move away from a provider-based model of contracts to a
model of pathway-based contracts that will bring together a range of organisations to
deliver services from community to inpatient and back to community care again. This will
require a fundamental shift in the way our services are organised, the way we share
information and intelligence (through use of the Integrated Care Record and population
health management tools) and the culture of our mental health system. We believe that in
delivering this model of provision, we will make better use of community based services,
reduce reliance on costly secondary mental health services and enable more people to live
well in their communities with support from the people who know them best.

How we are organised to deliver

We have an established Third Sector Alliance and have invested in a programme of
organisational development to support their evolution from an alliance of providers to an
integrated system partner. We intend that this Alliance will lead the connection with wider
community groups, drawing in other organisations and making best use of grant based
opportunities for the benefit of our population.

Our two principle secondary Mental Health providers — Oxford Health NHS Foundation
Trust (CAMHS) and Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust are part of
the design and development of our future model. We will continue to work with them and
our Third Sector Alliance through our Mental Health Programme Board, which will have
delegated responsibility for overseeing delivery and service development.

In partnership with our Integrated Care Alliances, we will design our new model of
provision informed by local population health needs. Our ICAs will take responsibility for
working with community partners (in conjunction with Third Sector Alliance colleagues)
and primary care to increase local community-based provision.

What we will do in the next twelve months

In the coming twelve months, we will sustain our focus on addressing key challenges
associated with access to services and outcomes for people with serious mental illness.
Our priorities for the year ahead are outlined below:

Children and Young People’s Mental Health Transformation

We will focus on implementing a range of new initiatives to increase first contact with

children and young people’s mental health services. This will include:

- Increasing our digital offer to provide early help and support for children and young
people

- Commissioning a new model of service provision that integrates TAMHS, CAMHS and
Mental Health Support Teams across Swindon — this will be the blueprint for our future
BSW wide CAMHS model

- Developing a third sector alliance for Children and Young People’s mental health,
appointing a single third sector lead for each Place who will be the connector for all

Page 187

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 131 of 192




community based provision who will work in partnership with Oxford Health NHS
Foundation Trust as our secondary CAMHS provider

Working with partners in acute hospitals to appoint Mental Health Champions (in line
with NHSE mandate) to improve mental health support provided to children and young
people who present in crisis at A&E. Develop a BSW Hospital based Youth Worker
offer pilot using the funding achieved from NHSE to support young people, including
with their Mental Health.

Redesign our model of urgent response for children and young people, including
supporting the redesign of the Paediatric front door at Great Western Hospitals NHS
FT

Continuing to support the roll out of ALPINE across Paediatric Departments to support
targeted intervention for children with Eating Disorders who have physical and mental
health needs, enabling a rapid ‘reset’ for them and their families and from that
sustained recovery

Community Mental Health Services Transformation
Implementation of the new model of community mental health services, focusing on three
elements:

1.

To

Improving access to mental health support for people with Severe Mental lliness
through new access models that provide immediate advice, support and signposting to
community and secondary services as required at PCN level. This will build on the pilot
work undertaken in B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire during 2022/23 in order that we
have a pan-system access model that delivers a new model of transformed care.

. Reviewing and developing our secondary mental health service provision so that we

provide timely therapeutic interventions as and when they are needed through
redesigning our secondary mental health workforce and aligning this successfully with
Primary Care Networks and ARRS investment

Continued redesign of pathways of care for older adults, people with complex
emotional needs (personality disorders), young people aged 16-25, people who need
community based rehabilitation and people with eating disorders. This will include
developing specialist older adult focused ARRS staff, further expansion of our training
offer to all partners to support people with complex emotional needs so that we have a
fully trauma-informed provision, focusing on the key drivers of high cost out of area
placements and co-designing and implementing a new model of community
rehabilitation and making best use of third sector agencies to support people with
Eating Disorders.

support this work, we will continue to:

Work with AWP to support transfer from CPA to an alternative model of care planning
in line with the national Community Mental Health Framework mandate.

Embed new roles aligned with our workforce plan with a particular focus on developing
and increasing the number of ARRS workers, making best use of Multi-Professional
Approved Clinician (MPAC) roles and developing our healthcare support worker offer
across all providers.

Page 188

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 132 of 192




3. Integrate our digital approach making best use of the Integrated Care Record (ICR)
and agreeing access to clinical systems for staff engaged in community service
delivery across all sectors.

We expect that with the implementation of our ambitions we will increase the numbers of
people being treated within transformed services. Consequently, we anticipate a higher
proportion of contacts within third sector provided services. Pilot work carried out in
2022/23 has informed our access approach and will further inform our modelling and data
projections during 2023/24.

Eliminating out of area placements

In partnership with AWP, we have significantly reduced our out of area placement position.
This has been as a result of targeted work supported by system partners through the AWP
led Right Care Programme. During 2023/24 we will work to implement single-sex wards
across BSW mental health services, which will form part of our wider estates strategy for
mental health capacity focusing on right sizing our bed base informed by population health
needs. We will engage stakeholders and service users in this work and will align this with
our ambition to reduce admissions and support more people in the community.

During 2023/24, we will focus on:

e A pan-system review of Section 136 pathways, action plan to be co-developed with
partners from Quarter 1 2023/24 and to be delivered by Q4 2023/24

e Further development and expansion of our NHS111 offer in order that we can deliver
‘press 2 for Mental Health’

e Deployment of a mental health response vehicle to reduce conveyance to A&E and improve
crisis response. Data from early adopters (BNSSG) shows that the impact of this is significant,
in terms of both the overall ambulance pathway but also reducing the number of MH patients
that present to A&E departments.

e Continued work to implement the 10 Discharge Priorities, in partnership with AWP and
pan-system

o Development of a further Wellbeing House in Swindon and securing long term estate for
the Place of Calm in B&NES (capital funding provided by NHSE) to support admission
avoidance and improve step down provision.

¢ Review and development of our Wellbeing House specifications to provide a consistent offer
across BSW, including supporting people who may be ‘No Fixed Abode’ (NFA)

Dementia

We will continue to work with partners across our system to develop and deliver our
Ageing Well programme in line with our BSW system strategy. In mental health services, a
core component of this is the effective and timely diagnosis of dementia, with targeted
support provided by secondary mental health services delivered in partnership with
primary care and third sector organisations.

In 2023/24, we will focus on:

Page 189

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 133 of 192




¢ Aligned with population health needs, developing specialist Older People’s Mental Health
resource to work in primary care, using ARRS funding. We anticipate that this will support
improving the diagnosis of dementia and associated recording.

e Supporting primary care colleagues to record DDR in practices which is currently not
consistent.

e Developing a DiaDEM model to support improving diagnosis of dementia in care homes

As we develop our Virtual Wards programme, we will continue to work with partners to
ensure that mental health expertise is available to support those people with co-morbid
physical and mental health diagnoses and who require additional support in the
community.

Perinatal

Our current performance is above the planned trajectory for access to perinatal mental
health services. Consequently, we are not anticipating investing significant additional
resource in 2023/24. We will continue to develop the service further including:

o Establishing closer links with IAPT services in order that women identified through
Maternal Mental Health Service provision (MMHS) are directed to this where clinically
appropriate

e Considering how best to support the needs of women with personality disorders during
the perinatal period, aligned with our community services pathway development work.

IAPT

We will continue to work with NHS England partners to support the rebranding of IAPT
services to ‘Talking Therapies’. Engagement work has already started with partners across
our system.

We recognise that our existing IAPT services are not current configured or resourced to
meet the needs of our population. As a result, during 2022/23 we developed and
commenced a programme of transformation that will move from our existing model to a
new, IAPT compliant offer that is consistent across our three localities. The scale of
transformation required is extensive and will take time to implement. Consequently, we
have developed a workforce plan that delivers a stepped change in access and recovery
from 2023/24 — 2025/26.

As part of our development work, we will also consider how we can make better use of
technology to improve access using recognised digital platforms.

Our focus during 2023/24 will be:

e Implementing a consistent, BSW wide service model that is IAPT manual compliant

e Starting our first phase of recruitment to training posts, providing additional capacity in year
and beyond to meet nationally agreed trajectories (Q2 2023/24)

e Scoping digital offers and their use, with a plan to implement from 2024/25

More broadly, as we develop our access offers in response to the Community Mental
Health Framework, we will examine how we can successfully embed our IAPT offer into
this so that we make best use of not only IAPT but also wider services that would help

Page 190

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 134 of 192




meet individual needs.
Physical Health Checks for people with Severe Mental lliness (SMI)

Over the last 2 years, we have invested in additional service provision to support physical
health checks for people with SMI. We have confirmed that we will not be continuing this
funding in 2023/24, and will instead have a primary care based model for those people on
GP registers who are not open to AWP services, and for AWP to provide physical health
checks for those people on their caseload. We anticipate that this will provide a more
integrated service and will align with our community services framework ambitions. In
addition to this service change we will:

o Work with primary care to review their individual registers of people with SMI. Early
evidence from other systems (and our own) demonstrates that GP registers are not
consistently updated. Data review and cleansing during Q1 2023/24 will be carried out in
partnership with primary care — with the intention to ensure that we have an accurate register
moving forward.

¢ Review recording to ensure that we are accurately capturing those people who have had both
a full SMI check (all 6 elements) and those people who have declined parts of the check.

Long term, we will maintain our approach to providing health checks for people with SMI.
We know that mental iliness represents a key inequality in outcomes, with people with SMI
typically dying 10-20 years earlier than those who do not. Our approach will ensure that we
offer parity of esteem in primary care provision for people with SMI, and that we not only
identify health needs but also act promptly on outcomes of health checks so that we
provide wider physical health support to people with SMI.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

As outlined, our intention is that we will move away from provider based models of

provision to fully integrated, pathway-based contracts.

In five years time, we expect that:

e All direction, intervention and community based support will be personalised to an
individual's needs

e We will have a vibrant and effective model of preventative care, with social prescribers
working with third sector partners embedded in PCNs to direct people to earlier help
and support available in their communities

e People will be able to access Talking Therapies via a range of modalities (digital, face
to face, group work) in line with national standards and our recovery rate will exceed
50%

e Children and Young People will be treated in community hubs that will bring together
primary care, third sector, Local Authority and secondary mental health services. These
services will wrap around the young person and their family, working with them and
education partners to provide earlier help and advice and risk support when required in
line with the Anna Freud iThrive model

e There will be a single front door for adult mental health services, with first contact
provided by third sector partners who will support people to reach the right professional

Page 191

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 135 of 192




for their needs at the right time. Specialist provision will be drawn in as and when
required.

e We will make best use of NHS111 and other emergency response, and where people
(of any age) present in crisis their needs will be met by the most appropriate staff

e Services will use interoperable records that allow multi-disciplinary input to records and
enable supported transfers between services

e Care planning will be strengths and goals based, personalised to the individual

Monitoring delivery
Key metrics are outlined below:
- Achieving a CYP access rate (first contact) of 14,110 by 2024/25
- 21,095 people accessing IAPT services across BSW, with an overall recovery rate
of >50% by 2025/26
- 5% year on year increase in the number of older adults supported by community
mental health services (ongoing)
- Out of area placements sustained at zero by end 2024/25
- Achieving a Dementia Diagnosis Rate of 66.7% by end 23/24
- Sustaining improvements in perinatal mental health service provision

In addition, we will establish further developmental metrics using Patient Reported
Outcome Measures (PROMs) and Patient Reported Experience Measures (PREMSs) that
will evidence sustained improvement and transformation.

List lead and email address for further information
Jane Rowland — Jane.Rowland4@nhs.net
Georgina Ruddle — Georginaruddle@nhs.net

Page 192

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 136 of 192



mailto:Jane.Rowland4@nhs.net
mailto:Georginaruddle@nhs.net

Learning Disability and Autism

Our delivery plan

BSW ICB continues to make improving care, experience and outcomes for people with
learning disabilities and autism a strategic priority. We have undertaken a collaborative
refresh of this programme and our priorities for the next year include:

- Reducing the number of people who are in inpatient care. BSW ICB are the lead
organisation for the new LDA capital build for the North of the South West patch
covering the BSW, BNSSG and Gloucester footprint. This work covers the whole
end to end pathway for people with a further focus on improving and expanding
community provision.

- Delivering annual health checks for people with learning disabilities and autism.
This builds on our improvement work during the last year, which provided additional
resources for primary care and dedicated health checks in special schools.

- Implementing the Key Worker Programme and improving care co-ordination as we
collaboratively develop what future support for people looks like

- Implementing together with system partners the required changes to Dynamic
Support Registers and CTR/CeTR processes

- Ensuring robust oversight of patient pathways with an enhanced focus on
prevention and early intervention. Delivery of a centralised, consistent approach to
the management of escalations and complex cases

- Improving access across the end to end pathway including reducing waiting times
for ASD and ADHD assessments and increasing support for people post diagnosis

How we are organised to deliver
Our refreshed BSW Governance structure illustrated in Figure 27 below:

<d BSW LDA Programme Revised Governance structure

A S BSW ICB
ccountable to (Lead ICB for LDACapital Programme)

Regional LDA
Programme Board
Responsible for Oversight and Assurance (NHSE)
(Decision making remit TBC) Regional LDA

Capital Steering
Group

LDASteering
Group

North LDACapital
Steering Group

|
People, their families LDA/ND cMhZI;:Z%Isn?o
and their support Pathways support needs

Key: ==@rth Reporting = Externed=®eporting

North LDACapital
Delivery Group

Responsible for delivery of

[Responsible for Delivery
[ workstreams

Figure 27: Learning Disability and Autism governance structure

What we will do in the next twelve months

e By October 2023: BSW Key Worker programme to go live providing community based
support, early intervention and prevention for people with learning disabilities and
autism. Recruitment is due to commence by June 2023 and a hub and spoke delivery
model has been co-designed.

Page 193

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 137 of 192




e From May 2023: The revised Acute Care Pathway, Prevention and Oversight pilar will
be in place providing further consistency of approach across BSW. This includes
oversight of our plans to reduce the number of children, young people and adults cared
for in an inpatient setting.

e From July 2023: The business case for the proposed new LDA Capital building to
serve the populations of BSW, BNSSG and Gloucester will be finalised. Work on
engagement around the new facility and co-production commenced in 2022.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
People will experience more coordinated care, delivered together across partners closer to
their home and local community

Reducing inequalities requires targeted action for groups that experience poorer than
average health access, experience and/or outcomes. For CYP, our priority groups are:

We will take a trauma-informed approach to the work we do across all aspects of the CYP
Programme.

How we are organised to deliver

The BSW Children and Young People’s Programme (BSW CYPP) Board is focused on
improving our defined local priorities for children, young people and their families in
BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire

What we will do in the next twelve months

e Co-produce and develop BSW CYP Strategy

e Better hear and listen to the voice and lived experience of children and young people,
their parents and carers

e Develop workstreams to ensure sufficient focus on progress and improvement in key
areas

e Continue to support and focus BSW ICB on needs and priories for babies, children and
young people

e Continue our journey of a holistic approach to children and young people with reduced
silo working

e Improve links between maternity and babies, children's and young people

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e BSW planning for children will be embedded and will include relevant CYP data and
insights so we can better identify and deliver for the longer-term priorities and
ambitions for BSW’s population of children, young people and families

e We will have better integrated health services, social care and health-related services
to improve quality and reduce inequalities for Babies, Children and Young People

e All those in the BSW will understand that children and young people are 30% of our
population

List lead and email address for further information

Page 194

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 138 of 192




Lead: Sadie Hall, Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

Page 195

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 139 of 192


mailto:Sadie.hall3@nhs.net

Elective Care:

Our aim is to provide elective services that are accessible, responsive and sustainable for
the population of BSW Population. Over the next 2 years our approach will be framed by
the ambitions set out in the elective recovery plan, including:
e Increase activity to 106% in 2023/24, with the aim of delivering around 30% more
activity by the end of 2024/25

¢ No one waits longer than 65 weeks for elective care by March 2024; and waits of
longer than a year are eliminated by March 2025

e 95% of patients needing a diagnostic test receive it within six weeks by March 2025

e By March 2024, 75% of patients who have been urgently referred by their GP for

suspected cancer are diagnosed or have cancer ruled out within 28 days

Beyond the end of 20224/25, by year 5 our aim is to have returned performance back to
the Referral To Treatment (RTT) 18 week standard.

A summary of the elective plan is set out in Figure 28 below.

Theme Topic Workstreams Enablers

Independent Sector Networked provision with 1S
Capacity MOU with IS providers for shared waiting list

Increasing cancer activity

|

Expand

2 Additional and Sulis Elective Orthopaedic Centre SFT additional ward and theatres

protected Capacity GWH 14" Theatre

RUH and SFT Cancer Centres

A 4

Demand and capacity modelling

3 Long wait recovery

Performance support

Excellence in basics

4  Waiting list
management

Prioritise

Validation and prioritisation

Networked referral model and system waiting list Advice & Guidance

Referrals

Enhanced directaccess phases 1 and 2

I

6 0utpatients 25% reduction in follow ups, incl. PIFU, discharge DNAs

productivity Digital outpatients, incl. DrDoctor

.
4

Cancer pathway re-design

Surgical Hitting 85% theatre utilisation; and 85% day case Robotic surgery
productivity Surgical hubs and hub accreditation
Must do cancer testing — FIT, telederm, mpMRI
Other cancer testing — Lynch, CCE, Liver, TLHC, NSS

Patient communications

Transform
I

Diagnostic CDC hub and spoke model. Hub at Sulis
pI'Od UCtiVity Improve performance and productivity

[+ <]

Choice through networked referral model

Patient Choice

Mutual aid and DMAS

Use of My Planned Care platform

Empower
I I

10 Ppatient Empowerment

PEP roll out and use of NHS App

Figure 28: Elective Care plan summary

What we will do in the next twelve months

Additional and protected capacity — open a modular 5th theatre at Sulis to go live in
March 23, which will provide an increase in protected orthopaedic surgical capacity.
Implementation of eye-hub model, starting at SFT and rolling out, utilising optometrists
and ophthalmic technicians to undertake imaging and diagnostic tests, increasing
outpatient output.

Long wait recovery — sector wide demand and capacity modelling to understand
challenged specialties, and help patients choose where they can be seen quickest

Page 196

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 140 of 192



https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2022/02/C1466-delivery-plan-for-tackling-the-covid-19-backlog-of-elective-care.pdf

Referrals — developed a networked model of provision across our NHS and
independent sector providers supported by a system waiting list to maximise utilisation
of the system capacity for the population and reduce variation is access times.
Outpatients productivity — strong drive towards delivering the 25% outpatient follow
up reduction to free up capacity to see new patients, including through the use of
patient initiated follow up (PIFU)

Surgical productivity — significant increase in day case activity, including day case
arthroplasty.

Diagnostic productivity — Establish a new hub and spoke CDC, with the hub at Sulis
Health inequalities — improving data to identify patients from more deprived areas and
taking targeted actions to ensure we recover inclusively.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

e Quicker and more equal access to inpatient, outpatient and diagnostic services;

e Shorter length of stay in hospital for high volume, low complex procedures, with the
majority of people discharged on the day;

e More access to out of hospital services, including on the high street; and

e More ability to manage their conditions at home, or while they wait, including
through the use of technology.

Elective Care performance and transformation is overseen by the system Elective Care
Board. This Board currently has sub- groups for: -
e Elective Recovery (including cancer — which also has its own system operational
delivery groups)
e Outpatient Transformation
e Community Diagnostic Centres (it has been agreed to change this to a 2-part,
performance and CDC oversight committee)
e Health Inequalities (new subgroup)

The Elective Care Board will also work with the Acute Hospital Alliance, who are
developing and implementing the joint clinical strategy to ensure it support delivery of the
elective plan.

Page 197

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 141 of 192



Cancer:

Context
To deliver improvements in line with the national cancer strategy and national cancer
planning guidance for 2023/24

Our delivery plan
Achieve in line with commitments made in the BSW ICB planning submission (cancer
section)

How we are organised to deliver

Delivery through existing arrangements — commissioning lead, and GP clinical lead for
cancer, at ICB level; acute trust cancer clinical leads and cancer managers; primary care
lead for cancer at each GP Practice; linked to, and working with, SWAG and TVCA Cancer
Alliances, and quarterly assurance via SWAG Cancer Alliance

What we will do in the next twelve months
Deliverables are in line with details already provided in the BSW ICB planning submission

The key milestones for 23/24 are:
Table 19: Key milestones for cancer care delivery in 2023/24

2023/24 | Milestones

Q1 RUH — additional urology consultants, additional MRI capacity, resulting in
reduced waits. Reduced CT waits for CRC due to additional mobile CT
capacity.

SFT - Same day / next day CT Protocol finalised for Gynaecology patients.
Same day / next day CT for LGI / UGI patients after abnormal

scope. Reduced gynae waits due to pathway improvements. Reduced
CRC treatment waits due to additional consultant surgeon starts.

RUH, SFT —receive additional SWAG CA funding for 23/24 for additional
posts/equipment — RUH: gynae, CRC, breast, radiology. SFT: CRC.
GWH - once sighted on TVCA funding arrangements for 23/24 consider
viability and propose bids for funding to support cancer agenda

All trusts - submit bids through SWAG/TVCA funding processes

ICB — initiate primary care cancer projects process

Primary care — develop and submit bids for primary care cancer projects
All — data analysis to identify inequalities in access to and provision of
cancer care

Q2 SFT - Reduced urology waits due to bladder and prostate pathway
changes. PET CT on site and in use, reduced waits.

All trusts — receive funding, initiate recruitment

Primary care — deliver against agreed primary care cancer projects

ICB, RUH, SFT — support expansion of SWAG Targeted Lung Health
Checks programme into Trowbridge and Salisbury

All — agree programme of actions to address identified inequalities

Page 198

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 142 of 192




Q3 RUH - reduced gynae waits due to pathway improvements. Reduced CTC

waits due to additional capacity. Reduced CRC treatment waits due to
additional consultant surgeon starts.

All — newly recruited roles are in place and delivering

Primary are — progress report on delivery of agreed primary care cancer
projects

All — begin to implement actions to address identified inequalities

Q4 Primary care — complete projects and submit end of project reports

ICB — collate responses, circulate outcomes and learning for wider benefit
across primary care
All — continue to implement actions to address identified inequalities

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

Faster diagnosis; earlier diagnosis; improved treatment; improved support during and after
treatment for cancer; improved survival rates (1 and 5 year); reduced inequality between
different patient cohorts

The long-term vision is to achieve the following within the next 5 years:

1.

Keep the number of patients waiting over 62 days for start of treatment, to below the
levels seen in Feb 2020 (adjusted for growth).

Consistently achieve diagnosis of cancer/no cancer within 28 days of a 2ww referral
being received in secondary care.

Continue to improve the proportion of those diagnosed with cancer, being diagnosed
“‘early” (stage 1/ stage 2) towards the national aspiration of 75% by 2028 — for the
contributing factors that are within our control/influence.

Expand TLHC provision to cover full population, in line with national cancer strategy
direction of travel.

Achieve an enduring funding solution for NSS pathways whether provided in primary or
secondary care, such that 100% of BSW population is able to be referred to these
pathways.

Maintain a level of use of QFIT such that more than 80% of LGl 2ww referrals are
accompanied by a QFIT score.

. Ensure sustainable teledermatology Advice & Guidance such that there is parity of

provision pan-BSW; ideally with a single pan-BSW solution.

Continue and strengthen the use of the current network of a lead GP for cancer in
every GP Practice.

Level up, to reduce (or remove) the disparity in access to cancer care currently
experienced by those in under-represented groups across BSW, and in particular to
raise screening uptake and early presentation rates in the Swindon area to that of the
rest of BSW.

10. Expand the use of voluntary community cancer champions, as already developed in

the Swindon area, across the rest of BSW.

11.Become a consistently top quartile performer on the full range of cancer performance

measures; alongside seeing and treating a higher number of people with cancer
compared to the pre-covid baseline.

Page 199

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 143 of 192




12.Introduce new treatments as they become available and gain a reputation for high
quality provision of cancer care.

13.Provide a holistic and comprehensive support capability for all cancer patients,
incorporating primary care (CCRs and wider support and signposting), secondary care
(PC&S support including H&WB events, HNS, treatment summaries; psychological
support; links to primary care) and voluntary and community sector (signposting,
community support groups, access to advice, psychological support) -potentially
implement the Scottish model of “Improving the Cancer Journey” (currently being
investigated for consideration of implementing in Swindon area).

14.Promote the continued increased uptake of national cancer screening programmes
such that BSW is a top quartile performer nationally.

Monitoring delivery
e Achievement of deliverables within respective quarters in line with the details
submitted in the BSW ICB planning submission.

List lead and email address for further information
Andy J

Page 200

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 144 of 192




Maternity:

Context
Maternity Single Delivery Plan
Maternity deliverables are governed ultimately by the Maternity Single Delivery Plan, this is

a national, three-year delivery plan, published by NHSE which aims to guide and govern
system-based strategy such as the BSW Implementation Plan. The report was published
initially on 30" March 2023 and brings together previous maternity and neonatal national
key drivers including Better Births, Ockenden reports, East Kent Report and Neonatal
Critical Care Implementation plan. Although the initial report outlines key areas of
importance, local maternity and neonatal systems are awaiting further detail regarding
planning and implementation of the deliverables nationally and locally. The delineated aim
of the maternity single delivery plan is to make care safer, more personalised, and more
equitable. The plan uses four key themes to outline how we will achieve this within a
system approach, listed below.

« Listening to and working with women and families, with compassion

« Growing, retaining, and supporting our workforce

« Developing and sustaining a culture of safety, learning, and support
Standards and structures that underpin safer, more personalised, and more equitable

care. The LMNS BSW ICB are due to meet for a planning session on 4" May 2023
BSW Integrated Care Strategy

The integrated care strategy will incorporate the deliverables that are identified within the
maternity single delivery plan, pre-existing deliverables that are outlined in section 2.

East Kent Report
The deliverables/metrics outlined in section 2 have been informed by The East Kent

report. This has recently been published by NHSE and outlines areas for improvement
regarding maternity care, specifically in the East Kent area, however, applies to local
maternity and neonatal system practice.

Existing key metrics/deliverables

There are several key metrics that are monitored to ensure safe practice within maternity
and neonatal care, these are mentioned below. These metrics may not need to be
included in the BSW implementation plan/strategy, however, will guide local maternity and
neonatal systems. Some metrics, await further planning and discussion regarding
specifics.

Our Commitments
1. Set clear quality standards and expected outcomes when commissioning health and
care services for the population we serve

Page 201

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 145 of 192



2. Have clear governance and accountability arrangements for collective monitoring of
guality and safeguarding

3. A shared commitment to delivering seamless pathways of care where the
fundamental standards of quality are delivered — including managing quality risks,
including safety risks, and addressing inequalities and variation

4. Develop a Just Culture which is open, transparent, and supports continuous

improvement

5. Work with local communities to shape the design and delivery of services

Our Approach
Delivery of quality care in the system is underpinned by:

Quality assurance framework aligned to an agreed governance structure at place
and system level, including Swindon, Wiltshire and BaNES localities, ICB Quality
Assurance and Outcomes Committee, BSW System Quality Group, ICB Board and
Integrated Partnership Board

Key quality and safeguarding metrics that focuses on safety, effectiveness and
experience, triangulated with performance data/ intelligence and professional
insight. These metrics are understood at both integrated place and system level via
guality and performance reporting within agreed quality governance structures and
safeguarding partnerships

A focus on population health and system quality priorities across pathways/ settings
with particular emphasis on reducing inequalities in access, experience, and
outcomes. This is aligned to priorities set out within the BSW implementation plan
including elective care; urgent care, mental health, learning disability and autism
and children and young people

Role of the BSW System Quality Group in the identification of risks and issues to
patient safety and quality and strength of the mitigation at both an organisational
and system level, recognising and supporting the capability to deliver safe and
effective services

BSW Patient Safety Specialist Community of Practice and implementation of
national Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (*PSIRF) in 2023
Development of BSW EQIA panel to strengthen equality and quality impact
assessment monitoring at system / strategic level

Identification of collaborative and inclusive patient safety leadership, with a shared
vision and values, driven by continual promotion of learning and aligned to a just
and inclusive culture.

Consistent and up to date guidelines and evidence that enables continuous
improvements in quality based on best evidence

Actively promoting co-production with people using services (experts by experience,
for example, BSW Carer’s Forum), the public and staff

Page 202

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 146 of 192



Setting clear
direction
& priorities

Bringing
clarity to
quality

SEVEN

= STEP .
o0 voDEL O

improvement

Maintaining & Recognising

improving & rewarding

. uality &
quality ‘Iqear::l)r,ig

Figure 29: FIGURE LEGEND TO BE ADDED

NHS Patient Safety Strategy and the introduction of the Patient Safety Incident
Response Framework (PSIRF)

Through the introduction of the NHS Patient Safety Strategy (2019) and the aim of
continuously improving patient safety, the new Patient Safety Incident Response
Framework (PSIRF) will be implemented across all providers from September 2023, this
will replace the Serious Incident Response Framework and prioritises compassionate
engagement with those affected, advocates a coordinated data driven approach, and
embeds a wider system of improvement. Through the Patient Safety Specialists
Community of Practice, BSW will support all providers to adopt the new approach, and
continue to learn, develop, and improve patient safety across the whole system. BSW will
also ensure providers collaborate to deliver the nationally recognised patient safety
improvement programmes; maternity and neonatal safety improvement programme,
medicines safety programme and mental health safety programme, as well as supporting
safety improvement in priority areas such as safety of older people, the safety of those
with learning disabilities and the continuing threat of antimicrobial resistance.

How we are organised to deliver

What we will do in the next 12 months

1.Listening to women and families with compassion, ensuring care is personalised
and equitable

- Accelerate preventative programmes, ensuring data is accurate, timely and complete to
inform equity workstream

- Create Gypsy, Roma, Traveller, Showman and Boating Communities Pathway, ensuring
all communities can access maternity care in a way that reflects their needs

- Pilot of new role: Independent Senior Advocate to facilitate critical review/analysis of the
role at a national level to ascertain if the role will be permanently integrated at a system
level

- Reduce inequitable outcomes for black mothers and their babies by appointing and
training 20 staff across BSW to become Black Maternity Matters Champions

Page 203

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 147 of 192




- Provide Anti Racism training to 600-700 staff across BSW to improve cultural awareness
and eliminate bias; leading to improved outcomes for pregnant people and their babies

- Ongoing collaboration with the Maternity & Neonatal Voices partnership to incorporate
service user experience into pathways

- Evaluate service user experience of OCEAN Services and maternal mental health
pathway

Growing, retaining, and supporting our workforce

- Improve support offered to newly qualified staff and their supervisors in practice by
critically analysing/reviewing all preceptorship packages with the South-West region and
create a standardised template

- Aim to mitigate the risk regarding recruitment and retention through the continuation of
the workforce planning workstream to ensuring safe staffing across the system

Developing and sustaining a culture of safety, learning, and support

- Aim to reduce risk and avoidable harm to babies under 1, including unborn babies
through promotion of wider resources and campaigns

- Collaborate working across the system to ensure data/dashboard includes all high-level
metrics for reporting, ensuring this is accurate and timely to inform programme
management / system quality surveillance groups

- Provide safe assessment process via a centralised telephone assessment line

- Develop and sustain a positive safety culture by completing a Perinatal Culture Survey
and monitoring impact

- Implement PSIRF Safety Improvement plans

- Oversee quality in line with PQSM and NQB guidance ensuring that maternity and
neonatal are included in ICB quality objectives

Standards and Structures that underpin safer, more personalised, and more
equitable care

- Aim to create a standardised antenatal education package across BSW

- Create an Infant Feeding Pathway that is reflective of service user needs

- Provide oversight to Breast Milk Donation working group for birthing people with HIV
diagnosis

- Ongoing transformation programmes linked with LTP.

- Progress the maternity and neonatal digital action plans to procure system-wide
maternity digital system to incorporate personalised care and support plans

- Implement provision of perinatal pelvic health services across three acute providers
within BSW

- Prioritise areas for standardisation and co-produce ICS policies such as those for
implementation of Saving Babies Lives Care Bundle NHS Resolution Maternity Incentive
Scheme participation

- Adopt national MEWS and NEWTT-2 tools

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

Listening to women and families with compassion, ensuring care is personalised
and equitable

- Improved access to services for all, including marginalised groups

Page 204

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 148 of 192




- Enhanced positive outcomes for the population

- Improved mental health for individuals, including postpartum

- Improved learning processes for maternity services at a local, system and national level
- Reduction in inequitable outcomes for black mothers and their babies

Growing, retaining, and supporting our workforce
- Improve retention and level of competency/education for NQM r
- Improved outcomes for pregnant people and their babies

Developing and sustaining a culture of safety, learning, and support

- Deceased cases of avoidable harm to infants under 1

- Streamlined data collection, business intelligence and reporting to ensure resources can
be targeted to areas that need the highest level of intervention

- Robust triage process in place for birthing people to gain assessment; reducing
avoidable negative outcomes

- Positive safety culture to support effective escalation of clinical issues in a safe and just
environment; supporting safe service user outcomes

- Rapid identification of learning from incidents to support effective actions to reduce risk of
harm to service users and improve outcomes

Standards and Structures that underpin safer, more personalised, and more
equitable care

- Improved knowledge regarding birthing, pregnancy and parenting; resulting in improved
physical, social, emotional and psychological outcomes for birthing people, babies and
children

- Improved access to provision of essential nutrition for babies, impacting psychological,
physical, emotional and cognitive functions, leading to improved progression/develop for
babies and children

- Reduction in adverse outcomes, such as still birth, neonatal deaths, brain injury.

- Improved holistic outcomes for birthing people, partners, babies and children

- Improved information sharing across services

- Reduced short term and long term impact of untreated perinatal pelvic health conditions
associated with childbirth

- Reduced need for surgical intervention

- Improved outcomes by early identification and management of the deteriorating person

We will be working collaboratively with various stakeholders including, the three acute
Trusts in BSW, LMNS, Public Health, MNVP, HV Leads, all maternity based services, third
sector agencies, providers across BSW and regional networks.

This works aligns with existing initiatives including, Maternity Single Delivery Plan,
Integrated Care Strategy, Core 20+5, East Kent Report, Ockenden, Maternity
Transformation Programme, SBLCBv2, Better Births and the NHSE Long Term Plan.

Monitoring delivery
Please see above for key metrics

Page 205

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 149 of 192




List lead and email address for further information
Sandra.richards@nhs.net kerrie.wood4@nhs.net

Duty to Improve Quality of Services:

Quiality is a shared goal that requires system commitment and action.

System Quality will be based on these principles:

«Collaboration, trust and transparency

*Transformation

*Equity and equality

In practice this means that the system will deliver care that is safe, effective, well led,
sustainably resourced and equitable. The care experience of the population will be
positive through responsive, caring and personalised delivery.

High quality
person-centred

and equitable
care for all

Figure 30: FIGURE LEGEND TO BE ADDED

Page 206

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 150 of 192


mailto:Sandra.richards@nhs.net
mailto:kerrie.wood4@nhs.net

10. Enabling workstreams:

Delivering Against our Strategies:

Health and Care Professional Leadership

It is health and care professional leaders, working in partnership with each other and with
people in local communities, who make improvements happen. In BSW we have various
examples of excellent practice demonstrating this, but not consistently. Nor do we involve
health and care professional leaders in all our transformational work as much as we
should.

The term Health and Care Professional Leadership is intended to be diverse and fully
inclusive of the broad range of professionals who work together across BSW beyond the
traditional boundaries of health and care, such as partners across the VSCE sector,
education and housing. Even in our examples of excellent practice our involvement could
be more diverse and inclusive.

Our vision for health and care professional leadership in BSW is to:

Health and
Care

Professional ‘
Leadership in

BSW

Figure 31: Our vision for health and care professional leadership in BSW

Ouir first steps towards this vision have been to:

1. Establish a HCPL team. Led by the Chief Medical Officer, we have three Health and
Care Professional Directors, working across the system together and dedicated into
each Place. These complement the existing leadership in the Chief Medical Office
introducing different professional backgrounds representing the diversity of health
and care professionals.

Page 207

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 151 of 192



2.

Held a series of conversations with over 100 health and care professionals in the
system to understand the current picture of health and care professional leadership
(good practice and areas for improvement), to develop a shared vision for the
future, and to gather ideas of the steps needed to achieve this vision.

Started to embed the HCPL team in key governance structures including Integrated
Care Alliances, Transformation and Nursing/Quality.

Started to engage in key transformation programmes and to lobby and build the
expectation for greater involvement of a more diverse range of health and care
professional leaders.

The output from the conversations is supporting the next steps towards this vision:

1.

By September 2023 there will be a system map, a platform and directory of contacts
from which to build the network of health and care professional leaders.

By October 2023 there will be a programme of regular, large scale engagement
events for existing and future health and care professional leaders.

By March 2024, following extensive engagement, there will an ICP approved
Statements of Intent and associated Action Plan to deliver aligning to the ICS
Strategy, the vision and commitments for Health and Care Professional Leadership
in BSW.

By March 2024 aligned to the Integrated Care Strategy there will be the instigation
of annual reportable outcomes of impact of HCPL against: Focus on prevention and
early intervention, Fairer Health and wellbeing outcomes and Excellent Health and
Care Services.

In addition, we will work closely with other ICB teams to support enablers that can
accelerate progress including:

Access and use of the integrated care record for direct patient care and population
health management to enable transformation.

Development of and uptake of leadership development opportunities developed by
the Academy.

Developing opportunities and encouraging uptake of involvement in transformation
programmes.

Looking forward, in 5 years’ time, the People of BSW will receive high quality, effective
health and integrated health and care provision, led by health and care professional
leaders who are confident in working and leading differently in systems. Their
Personalised care will be focused on prevention and early intervention, as health and care
professional leaders lead services with a focus on population need and tackling health
inequalities. The services will be accessible, timely and sustainable, enabled by the
dedicated development and time for current and future health and care professional
leaders to work effectively as system leaders.

Lead and email address for further information

Nicola Hazel — Health & Care Professional Director (B&NES) nicola.hazle2@nhs.net

Page 208

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 152 of 192



Lucy Heath - Health & Care Professional Director (Swindon) lucy.heath10@nhs.net

Gina Sargeant - Health & Care Professional Director (Wiltshire) gina.sargeant@nhs.net

Financial sustainability and Shifting funding to Prevention:

BSW has a strategic intention to focusing funding and resources on prevention rather than
treatment of healthcare conditions. There are significant pressures facing all health and
care services at present. As a health system the organisations within BSW has had a
substantial underlying financial deficit and exited the 2022/23 financial year with the
position further deteriorated.

To address this, BSW System has committed to deliver a substantial system wide financial
recovery programme with a structured approach to drive delivery. The financial recovery
plan is part of a sustainable system wide transformation strategy and this approach brings
together productivity and efficiency improvements under one umbrella.

The system recovery plan sets out a focused two-year Transformation and Cost
Improvement Programme with the target of bringing the BSW health system into financial
balance by March 2025. This is not a traditional organisational strategy but a developing
approach to working collaboratively together as a system to resolve significant issues to
create a sustainable health system for the population of BSW.

We have developed a financial recovery action plan that includes a focus on restoring
underlying productivity aligned to our system transformation programmes. Ten existing
areas have been prioritised including UEC, Elective Care, Workforce, Medicines
optimisation and community transformation. The scope, actions required, resources,
timeline and delivery impacts of each programme with SROs will conclude in April 2023.

BSW System Recovery Board will ensure the programmes are delivering at pace and
resolve any cross-system issues. The board will be chaired by a CEO and to include
CEOs, CFOs, clinical and technical input. The board will initially meet fortnightly from April
and will report into the system board. The purpose of the recovery board is to act as a
dynamic working committee, ensuring financial recovery and overall sustainability within
organisations and across the system, while it proactively drives delivery forward,
unblocking issues and facilitating solutions.

In parallel, BSW will develop a longer-term financial strategy which will emphasise a
population health management approach to take a longer-term view of new investments.
This will underpin moves to prioritise future funding increases towards community and
primary care and self-care and over time, achieving a shift in the overall balance of funding
towards prevention.

Page 209

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 153 of 192



Workforce:

A system wide workforce plan

Improved outcomes in population health and healthcare are one of the fundamental
purposes of integrated care systems (ICSs). To achieve this, partners from across health,
social care and the third sector must come together to plan and develop a workforce that
integrates and connects across all parts of the system to deliver personal, person-centred
care to their local populations now and in the future.

To deliver on this aspiration, the ICB will firstly work with their NHS system partners to
develop plans to meet the national objectives 23/24 set out by the NHS in the priorities and
national planning guidance. Central to this process is the drafting of detailed 5-year
workforce plan for all NHS provider Trusts, primary care providers and mental health
provider organisations.

System plans are required to be triangulated across activity, workforce, and finance, and
signed off by ICB, partner trust and foundation trust boards.

The second phase will ensure the workforce plan captures the wider ICS workforce and
includes Social Care partners, independent/private providers and third sector and charity
provision, where appropriate. Using data and intelligence from Skills for Health, NHSE
and other sources, we will develop the detailed ICS workforce plan, and this should inform
the workforce interventions required to deliver on our ambitions as a system.

BSW Workforce Priorities 23/24

To identify and agree collective system wide workforce priorities for 23/24, the BSW

People Directorate led by the Chief People Officer undertook a series of diagnostic

sessions to collaboratively discuss and understand the workforce ‘problem’ trying to be

solved. The output of these sessions has identified specific priorities to be taken forward

as an ICS:

1. Older care workforce — consensus to focus on a pathway to enable a multi-
disciplinary and person-centred approach rather than traditional workforce models.
The ambition is to identify workforce and skills shortages and opportunities as part
of the patient pathway. The approach enables the full involvement of all partners
and agencies involved in the care of the patient in our system inclusive of academic
partners. A more detailed diagnostic exercise, employing a quality improvement
methodology will be undertaken to further refine the scope, actions and measures
of success. The pathway approach will employ an integrated approach to workforce
planning looking at ways to develop, introduce and deploy new roles, skills and
supply routes. Learning from the pathway workforce approach will be undertaken
able to be applied to future workforce planning activities.

2. Domiciliary care — Domiciliary care continues to be a core area of challenge
affecting both hospital discharge flow and, more importantly, being able to keep
people well and at home. BSW workforce projections have identified a growing
demand for domiciliary care with raising rates of frailty and dementia against a
backdrop of high staff turnover and decreasing numbers of people applying for care
worker roles. In 2022/23, partnership work led by Local Authorities across BSW

Page 210

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 154 of 192



6.

have developed a domiciliary care workforce modelling tool and a detailed analysis
of the workforce with a number of recommendations to be taken forward in 23/24.

Leadership and Management — Development of our system leaders and
managers is essential for organisational success and the delivery of high quality,
safe and effective health and care services. The aim is to co-develop and
implement a collaborative offer for all partners building on efficiency and reducing
variation across our partners and staff groups. It is expected that the initiative will
also look for enhanced opportunities for leaders and mangers to increasingly work
and move across organisational boundaries.

Early career attraction — Recognition that attracting a future workforce that engages
and attracts young people is fundamental to the success of all partners. Aim to work
together for innovative, positive approaches for promoting and raising the overall
profile of careers available across BSW and with a focus on attracting more young
people. It will take into account how employment can also help address health
inequalities so that employment offers and access to skills becomes increasingly
inclusive. The scope will include working with schools, colleges and education
providers and local community groups.

Retention — Retention relates to the extent to which an employer retains its
employees and may be measured as the proportion of employees with a specified
length of service (typically one year or more) expressed as a percentage of overall
workforce numbers. Reducing turnover and improving retention is essential to
stabilise the workforce, increase efficiency and reduce cost. The BSW turnover rate
currently stands at 14.3% (month 12 22/23) which is a declining position so further
work will be undertaken to look at the underlying causes of higher turnover themes
and hotspots. Suggested areas to include:

Collective marketing and attraction for health and care careers in BSW as a system
Health and wellbeing initiatives

Recognition of interdependencies across partners

Links between leadership/management and retention

Exploring available schemes able to further support retention such as deployment,
NHS and Care ambassadors and housing solutions

Bank and agency usage

Ensuring BSW work collectively to reduce agency spending across the NHS to 3.7% of the
total pay bill in 2023/24 which is consistent with the system agency expenditure limits for
2023/24.

7.

Maximising Apprenticeships

Overall recognition that apprenticeships offer opportunities for up skilling and developing
new supply routes. However, the overall investment model for staff backfill often remains
as a core barrier for taking forward. Commissioning and collaborative working aim to
explore possible efficiencies and consistency.

Page 211

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 155 of 192



The identified system workforce priorities will be further refined to identified programmes of
work working closely with the BSW System Recovery programme for workforce. Timelines
will be agreed for when they will take place recognising that work will need to be prioritised
according to importance, impact and resources available to enact them. Progress will be
reported through the BSW Strategic Workforce Group which reports into the BSW People
Committee.

International recruitment

The ICB has established a centralised international recruitment team held at ICB level that
will specialise in hard to recruit roles. It will work closely with all providers to support
programmes that will benefit from a system level response. The first programme has been
looking at sourcing mental health nurses from India and the delivery of an integration
course delivered in-country. We have just recruited the first 52 nurses for AWP.

BSW Academy

The ICS has a BSW Academy that brings together agreed workforce development and
transformation priorities across all our health and care partners. The BSW Academy is
formed around the core pillars of leadership, inclusion, education, innovation and
improvement that form a collective programme of work. As part of the governance
organisational teams such as education and training leads are brought together to share,
discuss, and work on agreed collaborative projects coalesced around the integrated
workforce plan. Examples of these workstreams are expansion of clinical placements for
increasing supply routes, apprenticeship programmes / levy sharing, preceptorship, work
experience, pass porting of training, new development/skills pathways, coordination of
CPD programmes and leadership/inclusion training interventions.

Working in an integrated manner has enabled education to be increasingly to the benefit of
all partners aiming for consistency and scalability in a ‘do once and do well’ philosophy.
For example, an increasing focus on social care offering both new and integrated training
models aimed to enhance supply and retention of a known workforce priority in BSW.
Education and training will be applied as part of our transformation priorities both
enhancing supply routes but also offering new skills and models of education necessary
for staff engagement and proposed new models of care. Examples of this application can
be evidenced through career /competency pathways for new ways of delivering care such
as virtual wards and addressing health inequalities.

The BSW Academy also enables an increasingly strategic approach to education
partnerships with our providers such as colleges, universities, and skills funding
opportunities such as the Local Skills Improvement Plans. Moving forward a stronger
emphasis will be placed on a ‘grow our own’ model of training that works with local
communities and builds accessible career pathways.

Our People Strategy will focus on four ambitions:

1. Creating inclusive and compassionate work environments that enable people and
organisations to work together
2. Making BSW an inspiring and great place to work
3. All staff feeling valued and having access to high quality development and careers
Page 212

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 156 of 192



4, Using resources wisely to reduce duplication, enhance efficiency and share
learning.

Page 213

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 157 of 192



Technology and Data:

Making the best use of Technology and Data
Digital solutions give us the potential to work differently, facilitating better, safer care and
more efficient and effective use of resources.

Through our BSW Digital Strategy we have identified three strategic priorities in digital and
data:

1. Information Sharing

2. Development of our digital workforce via a portfolio of projects

3. Ensuring contemporary cyber security is in place

Our commitments include:
e An Electronic Patient Record
e Working toward a shared infrastructure across BSW
e Digital design principles — an agreed system wide approach to the use of
technology and digitally enabled transformation that is relevant for all professionals

How we are organised to deliver

Digital strategy across BSW is set by the BSW Digital Board. This comprises digital
leadership representatives across our acute, mental health, social care, urgent care,
community, carer, hospice and primary care partner organisations. Sub groups report to
the Digital Board on clinical and professional leadership, cyber and a technical design
authority, business intelligence, Shared Care Records, ICS use of N365 and the Digital
Board reports to the Finance and Investment Committee.

What we will do in the next twelve months

Table 20: Technology and Data twelve-month delivery plan

Project Objective Major Milestones Measure
Delivery of Single Deliver a single, Q1: FBC approved
EPR (AHA) shared EPR across

3 acutes in line with | Q3: Contracts

NHSE EPR signed/NHSEI

Convergence approval of

approach to level up | FBC/implementation

digital maturity resources in place

across acutes

Development of Enhance capability | Q2: Benefits review | Patient record views
Shared Care and usage of the completed and and staff access
Record BSW Shared Care usage to reach 40k | levels

Record (ICR) to records per month

release efficiencies, Efficiency savings

improve care and Q4: extension of quantified

patient experience ICR across 3 Local o
Qualitative

Page 214

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 158 of 192



Project Objective Major Milestones Measure

Authorities patient/user stories
Remote monitoring | Introduce a Q1 Sign off of Patients monitored
for Virtual Wards consistent digital specification

solution to support
virtual wards
through remote
monitoring
technology

Q3 Implementation
of solution

Robotic Process
Automation

Introduction of RPA
across
organisations
building on
successful service
in place in GWH

Q1 Processes
automated in ‘new’
organisations

Q4 Business case
for sustainable
delivery model

Efficiency savings

Use of patient facing
digital tools

Increase capability
of patients to enable
easy patient access
to key information

Q1 Pilot use of
maternity app about
care choices during
pregnancy

Q4 Increase
functionality of Dr
Doctor in acutes to
enable appointment
management for
patients

Number of users

Building upon ICS
wide cyber strategy

Creation of long-
term ICS wide cyber
lead and ICS cyber
risk register

Q1 Banded JD
Q1 Finance agreed.

Q2 Post in place
and chairing Cyber
TDA.

Q3 ICS wide cyber
risk register and key
KPIs

Q4 Development of
ICS wide cyber
projects and

ICS wide Cyber
Risk register
created.

Improvement in
KPlIs created.

Reduction in
Microsoft MDE risk
scores

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 215

Page 159 of 192




Project

Objective

Major Milestones

Measure

workplan in line with
cyber strategy.

TBC GP IT Delivery
in BSW

Completing plans
put in place pre-
Covid to In house
into ICS from CSU
GP IT delivery
across BSW. New
service to be
delivered by the ICB
in conjunction with
ICS partners
building on exiting
teams and strengths

Q1. Draft Operating
model and costing.

Q2. Approval Go
ahead

Q4+ implementation
(NB due to requiring
network migration
implementation
would be at least q
12month program
on a ramp up ramp
down approach

April 2025 —
Migration to new
service full complete

Saving from current
23/24 CSU quote of
£2.4M.

% of GP IT estate
fully public cloud
hosted (no on site
servers)

Business
Intelligence — Data
and Infrastructure

Develop an
infrastructure which
facilitates ICS

Ql+2
- Initial phase of
ICS Data Platform

More data held
centrally sets

Workstream business - Enhance our Wider access to ICS
intelligence. linked data set and | data and reporting
Includes roll-out major PHM /
development of a HI reports Some functions
shared data - Co-develop ICS centralised
platform at ICS plans for Power Bl
level, linked to the and SharePoint Reduced cyber risk
regional SDE. collaboration
Q3+4
- Further progress
data platform, linked
to SDE and FDP
- Deliver joint plan
on Power Bl and
SharePoint
Business Assess the existing | Ql + 2 Workforce plan
Intelligence — analytical skills - undertake LKIS developed
Capability and across the entire Skills Mapping
Capacity ICS. Map against across the ICS Demonstrable
Workstream future requirements | - Develop next closure in identified

and develop a
workforce plan to
close gaps, partly

steps following
Mapping
- Begin to map the

skills gaps in BSW

More advanced

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 216

Page 160 of 192




Project

Objective

Major Milestones

Measure

through closer
working

skills of non-
Analysts in using
data and information
- Establish more
formal links to
neighbouring
systems

Q3+4

- Begin deliver of
workforce plan,
focusing on shared,
system-wide
advanced analytical
skills

analytical outputs

Business
Intelligence —
Insights Workstream

Improving the way
data is utilised by
the system to make
more effective
decisions. Making
data and information
easier to access
and clearer for
those using it.

Ql1+2

- agree a formal
approach to
analytical
collaboration
between orgs at
system and place

- review and agree
a better approach to
analytical requests
Q3+Q4

- Embed changes
to the way insight is
generated across
the system via
agreed action plan
developed in Q1/2

Usage of reports

Staff confidence
working with data

Embedded decision-
making framework

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

1. Patient experience will be enhanced by empowering patients with digital tools to
manage their own health and well-being.

2. Operational efficiency will be increased by adopting digital solutions that streamline
processes and reduce administrative burden.

3. The quality of care will be improved by using data and analytics to inform decision
making and drive evidence-based practices.

4. A greater culture of digital innovation will be developing by encouraging staff to
embrace technology and continuously look for ways to improve patient care.

5. We will be collaborating with healthcare providers and other stakeholders to develop a
comprehensive digital ecosystem that supports the delivery of integrated care.

Monitoring delivery

Our digital governance framework will ensure that the ICB remains accountable and
transparent in its use of digital technology.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 217

Page 161 of 192




We will regularly review and evaluate the effectiveness of the digital strategy and make
necessary changes to ensure that it remains relevant and effective. The Digital Maturity
Assessment offers the opportunity to baselines, benchmark and assess improvements
over time as to the progress of our digital aims with regard to national and local priorities.
Our Business Intelligence plans are assessed against the Intelligence Functions self-
assessment tool, which regular review of deliver through our system Bl Oversight Group
and the Digital Board.

List lead and email address for further information
Jason Young Assistant Director of Digital Transformation, jasonyoung@nhs.net

Population Health Management

In BSW Population Health Management (PHM) is an intelligence and insight solution that
utilises local health, care and other wider data sources for analysis, segmentation, and risk
stratification to inform and support decision making; to make the best use of collective
resources; and to get the greatest impact in improving health for people and communities.

The ambition is to enable individuals, communities, professionals, teams, alliances/places,
localities, and systems to maximise outcomes by working cooperatively on what matters to
those individuals and communities. PHM challenges layered assumptions that have
prevented a system measuring and working on what is valued, as opposed to what can be
counted.

PHM promotes prevention and personalised care approaches as well as the use of
incentives to target interventions to the areas of greatest need, to tackle health
inequalities, and to move from reactive to proactive care.

Following the experience of the NHSE funded Optum Programme, PHM has become a
key driver in the ICS journey as it has enabled the system to understand the population
through their data and local intelligence and increased the opportunities for operational,
strategic, and clinical decision makers to work together in an integrated way.

There are currently 5 pilot projects using PHM principles involving a number of PCNs and
Swindon locality.

A suite of tools is already available to many organisations across the ICS. Using the
Graphnet ICR care-giving organisations can access patient-identifiable information on
cohorts of interest to intervene.

The ambition for the ICB is to create in house a linked data set and PHM tools available for
use by the wider system to help clinical, operational, and strategic decision makers
understand population health as well as health inequalities with a view to assist them to
drive action.

The application of PHM principles to Health Inequalities has resulted in the development of
a new automated tool using power Bl: the BSW Health Inequalities Dashboard. The tool,
now available on a SharePoint platform and can be accessed by clicking on this link,
draws from a pool of data from primary and secondary care sources and provides an
overview of health inequalities across BSW system and the three Places.

The tool is at the beginning of its development and the ambition is to increase the number
of automated reports on population focusing on activities, deprivation, age, ethnicity and
conditions.

Page 218

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 162 of 192


https://app.powerbi.com/links/sSO52C5hSS?ctid=37c354b2-85b0-47f5-b222-07b48d774ee3&pbi_source=linkShare&bookmarkGuid=afc08d46-992b-4605-ac3b-40c9a2bf7dbd

Another key advantage of this tool is that it has been created and developed in house
ensuring the highest degrees of control and flexibility. In line with the health inequalities
mission to support clinical, strategic and operational decision makers accessing better
data, this tool has been instrumental in providing insight and evidence base throughout the
process of allocation and prioritisation of the Health Inequalities Funds.

The implementation of PHM is overseen by a number of system boards: the Digital Board
oversees the technical side whilst the Population Health Board oversees the actual
application and deployment of PHM tools.

PHM is already a key component of a number of programmes and strategies.
ICP Integrated Care Strategy.

‘ ‘ ICS Innovation & Evaluation Strategy

., ’ Health Inequalities Programme and Strategy

ICS Business Intelligence Programme*

PHM Solutions

Figure 32: Population Health Management is a key component of a number of programmes and strategies

The road map to embed this key enabler into every activity of the ICB will include the
following actions:

Table 21: Actions and milestones to embed Population Health Management into every activity of the ICB

Actions Milestone

Health Inequalities Dashboard — Demos including ICAs April — June 2023
and Providers

ICS Business Intelligence Programme implementation plan | June 2023 — April 2024
Delivery PHM key component in analytics Capacity and
Capability skills and Generating Insight

Review of the Optum pilots June 2023

Development of the Innovation Strategy June-August 2023

Further Refinement of the Health Inequalities Dashboard June-October 2023

Page 219

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 163 of 192



PHM solutions embedded into the Prevention Programme

September-December
2023

PHM solution embedded into the Transformation
Programmes

October 2023 — April 2024

Page 220

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 164 of 192




Estates of the Future:

Context

The Integrated Care System (ICS) aspire to have high quality estate across Bath and
North East Somerset, Swindon, and Wiltshire (BSW) with seamless IT connectivity across
locations, designed for maximum efficiency. Our ICS infrastructure strategy will set out our
approach to achieving this, by ensuring the key enablers such as digital, equipment and
estates an integral consideration linked to service redesign.

Estate is one of the key enablers to deliver the truly transformational changes that BSW
ICS wishes to achieve to deliver outstanding care and support healthy communities.

How we are organised to deliver

The way we use estate needs to change and become more flexible to the changing needs
of services and service deliver, which will be supported by technology to enable us to
deliver care at the right place for the needs of our population.

Our vision as an ICS Estates Board is ambitious and will require commitment from us all to
work differently. It will also require significant resources, in terms of capital and revenue
investment into the estate, informed by our ICS estate strategy.

The Estates Board, which meets monthly and considers capital investments in the system
and recommends new building investment decisions into the BSW Director of Finance
Group have already started to look at how we can work closer together to achieve this
transformation and will be doing more work in the future to look at how we structure
ourselves across organisations to better align the use of resources.

Modernised, fit for
purpose and safe,
with minimal
critical
infrastructure risk

An enabler for the
BSW Health and
Care Model,
meeting population
health needs

Cost-effective,
operationally
efficient, well-
utilised and ‘right
sized’

The
BSW
Estate

Fully aligned to new
ways of working,
supportina an

Figure 33: BSW Estates’ vision

Environmentally
sustainable and
achieving

Net Zero Carbon
targets

Digitally driven,
maximising the

We are also working with NHSE to develop a national estates toolkit. The aim of the
Toolkit programme is to produce a clinical and activity driven ICS Estates Planning
Framework Toolkit that is evidence based and:

Page 221

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 165 of 192



= Supports clinical pathway redesign and left-shift care delivery in line with the
System’s Out of Hospital Strategy and

= Helps to define the requirements for estate of the right size, in the right place, of the
right type, which is of high quality and well utilised.

The work will support the ICS and other systems who use it to drive cost efficiencies which
can be realised to support wider prevention and early intervention agendas to improve
health outcomes.

Our Delivery Plan
Our estate will be flexible and provide sufficient access and capacity in the right place, with
the highest standards in sustainability, with a low carbon footprint.

Estate is our third largest cost after workforce and medication, so it must be financially
sustainable and utilised well. We are improving the way we use space by removing
organisational barriers that used to allocate rooms to individual organisations or services
to one based on sharing space and increasing utilisation across all settings to maximise
the use of our investments.

What we will do in the next twelve months

Table 22: BSW Estates' actions and milestones for 2023/24

Actions Milestone

Initiate PCN Toolkit Phase Three April 2023
This involves modelling the BSW estate to
inform future investment / dis-investment
decisions

Agree the BSW Estates Board work plan for | April 2023
2023/24

Development of BSW Infrastructure Strategy | January — June 2023

Approval of BSW Infrastructure Strategy July - September 2023

Conclude review of existing community September 2023
estate utilisation

Initiate planning for BSW Estates Strategy October 2023

Collate outputs from PCN Toolkit Phase March 2024
Three

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time?

« Our future estate will be shaped and informed by the changes to our care model, to
deliver better patient, staff and visitor experience and to significantly improve the way

Page 222

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 166 of 192



we deliver services in the future enabling us to dispose of ageing buildings no longer
required and investing in new solutions, such as technology and buildings, utilising the
existing wider public, community and third sector estate, where necessary to delivery
this at system, place and neighbourhood levels, which we continue to develop.

* Technologies will allow patients to access sophisticated diagnostics within community
settings as part of an integrated service. Virtual spaces for virtual consultations with
professionals reducing the need to come into buildings, physical spaces for face-to-
face consultations in different locations where these are necessary, including the
patients’ own home, which will help to transform service delivery.

* Funding constraints inevitably create risks to achieving this vision, but it is important to
have a clear aspiration for the future BSW estate.

» Our workforce will be able to work across different locations, consolidating back-office
functions and changing the way that we work, reducing unwarranted variations in
provision of estate services and automating manual processes.

Note that the above list reflects the current position at the time of publishing. It is likely that
additional projects / schemes will be identified following the BSW Estates Board work plan
review in April 2023.

Page 223

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 167 of 192




Environmental Sustainability:

BSW Green Plan [2022-25]

The BSW Green Plan [2022-25] published in July 2022 sets out how we will begin to
reduce the environmental and carbon impact of our health and care estate, services, and
wider activities over the next 3 years, with a view to achieving net zero by 2040 for direct
emissions and 2045 for the emissions we can influence. Aligned to the BSW ICS vision,
the Plan supports our ICS strategic priorities by improving the health and wellbeing of our
population so they can age well and reducing health inequalities caused through poor
environments.

Our delivery plan

BSW has made a series of system wide commitments to improve our environmental
sustainability over the coming years. These are aligned to the following focus areas:
e Sustainable care model

e Workforce and leadership

e Estates and facilities

e Travel and transport

e Supply chain and procurement

e Medicines management

e Digital transformation

e Adaptation

e Food and nutrition

Delivery of our commitments is supported through a work plan, which outlines key actions
for the system to undertake.

How we are organised to deliver
The delivery of the BSW Green Plan [2022-25] is supported by a robust programme
management approach.

A Greener BSW Executive Leadership Group exists to provide strategic leadership and
direction, support delivery, and hold the Greener BSW Programme Delivery Group to
account. The Executive Leadership Group comprises of Senior Leaders from partner
organisations, across the BSW system, to ensure appropriate board-level oversight and
ownership. The group meets on a quarterly basis.

The Greener BSW Programme Delivery Group brings together a wide range of partners
from across health and care to collaboratively drive change. The Programme Delivery
Group meets monthly and focuses on the delivery of our Green Plan commitments, along
with priority actions.

What we will do in the next twelve months
A selection of actions for delivery by our partners (within the scope of the Green Plan
requirements) to deliver tangible reductions in emissions are highlighted below:

Page 224

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 168 of 192



Table 23: Examples of actions for delivery by BSW partners to result in emission reductions

Focus Area

What do we want to do?

How will we achieve this?

Workforce &

Inform, motivate, and empower staff to
make sustainable choices at the

- ICB Board to undertake sustainability
training.

Leadership workplace and home, and enable them - Staff are made aware of the relevant

to live a sustainable, healthy lifestyle. Green Plans (ICS/Trust) via training /

inductions / comms.

Travel & Reduce the enviropmental impact of our _ NHS Trusts signed up to cl i

travel by encouraging sustainable low- _TUStS signed up o clean air
Transport . hospital framework.

carbon and active travel.

Reduce the environmental impact of our
Medicines prescribing activities and the use of - All NHS Trusts to reduce use of
Management medicines by reducing use and switching desflurane in surgical procedures to <5%.

to lower carbon alternatives.

Note that additional actions for delivery over the coming years are outlined in the BSW Green Plan [2022-25]
across all focus areas.

What will be different for our population?

+ Climate change threatens the foundations of good health, with direct and immediate
consequences for individuals, our infrastructure, and public services. Addressing
climate change is important in helping us to meet our system-wide goals of developing
healthier communities, improving health outcomes, and addressing the wider social
determinants of health that can lead to health inequalities.

« Climate change requires collective action across the system. If we fail to take a
coordinated approach, then we are failing to address the biggest health risk that we
face as a society. In recognition of this, we will continue to work collaboratively with our
health and care partners, local authorities, VCSE and the public to drive sustainable
change and achieve a sustainable future for our population, and future generations to

come.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 225

Page 169 of 192




Our role as Anchor Institutions & supporting wider social and economic
development:

Context

The concept of anchor institutions has been understood within the NHS for a number of
years, and pre-dates the Covid-19 pandemic, but the imperative to address health
inequality triggered by the differential impacts of Covid has given this new impetus.

Anchor institutions are large, typically public sector organisations, rooted in place (hence
the term ‘anchor’) and by the nature of their role and scale are uniquely placed to positively
influence the social, economic and environmental conditions of local communities. The
long term sustainability of these organisations is inextricably linked to the health and
wellbeing of their populations and so there is a ‘virtuous circle’ in the role of these
organisations leveraging their ability to impact on the wider determinants of health locally.

Given the role of our Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) in improving the health and well-
being of individuals, we want our constituent organisations and partnerships to play this
crucial role in supporting wider social and economic development, acting as anchor
institutions that contribute to the economic and social development of local communities.

As noted in the infographic below, we have the potential to stimulate economic growth by
creating jobs, investing in local infrastructure, and supporting local businesses. Our
organisations provide a range of services, such as health care, social care, and community
support, which contribute to the social and economic well-being of our local communities.

Community engagement and civic Workforce, employment and skills

action Being a good employer, paying people
Collaborating with communities to Q the real living wage and creating
help address local priorities and build opportunities for local communities to
on their energy and skills. 8 8 develop skills and access jobs in health

and care.

Working with local anchor Pmumg:,erg:,::i:gs 5:::;:
partners ‘ ‘ organisations which
Collaborating with other 6 ways that consider their
anchors anC('jDarllﬂ?fS to : health anchors can environmental, social and
:"Cﬂl?lase and scale impac consciously use resources economic impacts in the
EABY to benefit their communities local area.

Reducing environmental impact Estates and infrastructure investment

Tak_ing action to redu_ce carbon 3 Widening access to community spaces,
emissions, consumption and reduce f working with partners to support
waste and protect and enhance the [@ high-quality, affordable housing and

natural environment. supporting the local economy.

Figure 34: Six benefits where health Anchor Institutions can benefit their communities

Our ICP also supports wider social and economic development by seeking to reduce
health inequalities. Health inequalities are a significant issue in many communities, with

Page 226

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 170 of 192



people from disadvantaged backgrounds often experiencing poorer health outcomes. We
can help to address these issues by delivering integrated health and social care services
that are tailored to the specific needs of our communities. This can include providing
culturally sensitive services, addressing social determinants of health, and working with
community groups to promote healthy lifestyles.

Our delivery plan

As noted in the infographic above, there are a range of measures organisations and
collaborations can take to act as anchors. Our aim is to share best practice through the
BSW Academy, ICAs and provider collaboration, to ensure that individually and collectively
our partners are using their inherent capacity to create improved conditions for healthy
lives.

There is a clear link in between deprivation and life outcomes, in Swindon for example
those that live in deprived wards have lower life expectancy for both men and women,
42% of children living in poverty located in the most deprived wards and poor educational
attainment. The most deprived 20% of areas within Wiltshire have repeatedly poorer
outcomes than the least deprived 20% and similar patterns are seen in Bath and North
East Somerset. Smoking rates (Swindon already has a significantly higher rate than the
national average) and substance misuse are higher in deprived areas as are higher levels
of severe mental iliness. Rates of hospital stays for instances of self-harm are significantly
higher across all parts of BSW compared to the England average.

In Swindon, GWH have considered all the ways in which they can use their anchor status
to improve health outcomes for their local population. Some examples of this are outlined
in the infographic below against 5 key areas. Given that the majority of their spend is on
staff costs, it was determined that their role as an employer would be the most significant
contribution they could make initially, and so they have focussed a programme of work
around widening access to employment and development opportunities, and working with
their partners at New College to target training and recruitment opportunities at those most
in need of a foothold to a stable career.

Page 227

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 171 of 192



Case Study: Swindon — Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
(GWH NHS FT)

A snapshot of Swindon in 2019 is outlined in the diagram below.
Factors affecting health outcomes:

@ On average, men in Swindon’s most

14,000 children live in poverty,

Our environment Social economic

10 0/ factors deprived areas live up to 14 years with 42 percent living in the
o o

housing quality 40 A) education, less, and women up to 12 less, than most deprived areas.

and our built employment, income,

environment family/sodial support, people in other areas of Swindon.

community, safety

32,128 people (15.4 percent) are lin G adults smoke and two

fromaiblackionminority.cthnic thirds are overweight or obese.

Health care Our behaviours P

20 0/ 30 0/ background, with significant
0 being O smaking, differences between areas.

able to access good diet, alcohol use,

quality care poor sexual health

Key focus from Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA):
= QObesity/diabetes

Agreed Integrated Care Alliance workstreams:

= Building Capacity & Resilience

: g/alslty = Developing New Models of Care / Left Shift of Care
= Tackling Health Inequalities
= Cancer

= Alcohol-related harm = Strength Based Approach

Q(?\

R
25%
under 16

e
<« f’"]

= 14,000 children live in

16%

- @
L)

1/7 provide unpaid care

22%

of Swindon'’s
population is
retired

over 65

= 1/6 smoke

poverty, 42% are located in = 2/3 of adults are overweight = 7in 10 have a long term
the most deprived wards / obese condition
= 72 teenage pregnancies = 421 hospital alcohol = 1/3 over 65 and 1/2 over 80
= 1in 20 15 year olds smoke admissions fall at least once

= 3.5 children (per 1,000) die
under the age of 1

= Chocking, suffocation,
poisoning, burns and .
drowning most common
cause of death in under 5s

1/2 over 65 and almost 9 in
10 over 75 are socially
isolate

1/6 have dementia

= 17 substance misuse deaths

42% ¢

Growth in Swindon
population from %
2001 to 2031 —

= Deprivation is most severe in the education, skills and training measure
where Swindon is the 47t most deprived out of 152 local authorities — the
driver appears to be children and young people’s indicators

= 1in 8 people born outside of the UK and =
2,296 report that they cannot speak
English well or at all

As an integrated provider, we identified five key areas where they were able to make a positive
difference. The diagram below outline some of the initiatives that have been taken forward over the last
twelve months.

Our position in the community
gives us an opportunity to
work to reduce health
inequalities and improve life
chances

The five areas where we can make a

. e . w king with different it
difference as an anchor institution © are working With cifierent community groups

to better understand the barriers to accessing
healthcare and how we can ensure our services
reach and benefit everyone.

Use data to ensure we accurately understand the
protected characteristics and deprivation profile
of those we serve

Clinical prioritisation to support the most
vulnerable.

* We can also make a difference
through our procurement,
supporting local businesses and
social enterprises and placing a
higher value on social responsibility
when designing tenders.

As an employer of choice,
we're developing a strategic

partnership with New College
Swindon to support entry
routes in to the Trust. One of

Through
procurement of
goods and services

Through
service delivery

our firstevents was attended
by health and social care
students to discuss
opportunities to work for us.

Through bricks
and mortar

Through corporate
and civic
behaviours

Expanded volunteer workforce.
Use apprenticeships to maximise
training opportunities.

Provide the SEND community with
inclusive opportunities.

We attend disability confident job fairs and through a scheme
called Project Search we have 9 students with disabilities joining
the Trust this year, gaining valuable skills and experience which will
help prepare them for employment.

Working with local charities, such as The Harbour Project, we have
recently welcomed 15 people seeking asylum or who have recently
been granted refugee status, to our diverse team of valunteers.

Our most recent site
developments created
44 local jobs; our long
term vision for our
expansion land
includes the creation
of community assets.
+ Asasignificant land and property owner, we are
looking at how we can share our spaces with
community groups.

«  Linking with the civic university
network and through the BSW
Academy with other anchor
organisations; our sustainability plan
delivers health and Net Zero

Figure 35: Case Study - Great Western Hospital as an Anchor Institution

Page 228

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 172 of 192



How we are organised to deliver

Across our Acute Hospital Alliance, we are working together to not only bring benefits from
each organisation but to also release the potential of a collaborative approach, as together
we can have a bigger impact.

At Place level each Trust is also working closely with the local authority to ensure that we
consider the wider determinants of health and work together on opportunities to reduce
inequalities and improve the health and wellbeing of local communities.

What we will do in the next twelve months
See appendix 1 and 2 — needs expansion / examples outside of Swindon.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

« We know that where people live is a big contributor to their health — your health,
life expectancy, and the opportunities you'll get are different depending on which part of
Swindon you live in.

« While Covid-19 has really highlighted inequalities, it's also brought communities
together and brought us closer to our community — not just through the lives we’ve
touched, but through the closer working relationships we’ve forged with partner
organisation in Swindon. We now have a golden opportunity to continue and build upon
that spirit and make the most of community participation and engagement.

 We can’t achieve our ambitions alone. We’re stronger working with others, and
together we can make a real difference to people’s lives.

*  We want to better the lives of people in our communities — working
collaboratively to share what we have and provide opportunities for people to
improve their health and life chances and benefit the whole of Swindon and
surrounding areas.

Monitoring delivery
- Reduce inequalities in life expectancy
- Reduce hospital admissions, particularly from worst performing wards

List lead and email address for further information
Claire Thompson, Chief Officer of Improvement & Partnerships
claire.thompson10@nhs.net

Duty to have regard to wider effects of decisions:

Context

As ICS partners we are committed to using our scale and finances in a way which support
the social and economic development of our three local authority areas. With an annual
budget across the partnership of £2bn and an employed workforce of 35,500 our
organisations can have significant influence beyond our core role as health and care

Page 229

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 173 of 192




providers. Through our work on the wider determinants of health we recognise that the
delivery of health and care services represent only one element of how we can positively
support the wellbeing of the local population.

Our Green Plan is at the heart of our commitment to making BSW a prosperous and
pleasant place to live. With initiatives targeting the employment opportunities that are
available to local residents, the quality of the air that local people breath and our drive to
embed local organisations in our supply chain, we are taking a holistic approach to
developing our roles as anchor institutions.

Our delivery plan

Initiatives such as apprenticeship schemes and joint recruitment activities between partner
organisations reflect our focus on developing rewarding careers for local people. This will
continue to develop during 2023/24.

Partners are also working together on how best to utilise the physical estate that we
directly manage with the intention of making our investments drive the maximum value for
the local area. Increasingly, we expect to operate out of shared premises and to locate
these in places that offer both easy access for our population and support the regeneration
of communities.

How we are organised to deliver

Our work on wider social and economic development is being coordinated by different
teams across the ICS, but ultimately will be overseen by the Integrated Care Partnership
as part of its work to quantify and measure our impact on the health and wellbeing of the
local population.

What we will do in the next twelve months
Specific dates for initiatives around workforce, the Green Plan and our estates plans are
set out in the relevant sections of this plan.

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

In five years-time our partnership will be able to understand and monitor how we are using
every £1 of the resources we have in BSW to achieve the maximum return on investment.
This will be achieved by our organisation working ever more closely together and
recognising that value is not driven by cost alone but must be judged on a wider set of
social impacts.

Monitoring delivery

Monitoring social impact is not straight forward and we need to learn from others both
within and outside of our ICS on how this can best be achieved. Over the next 12 months
we will work with partners to identify a range of metrics to help us better understand the
social return on investments that we are achieving.

Page 230

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 174 of 192




Appendix

1 Recruitment Initiatives led by Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Table 24: Recruitment Initiatives led by Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

organisations

Area What we are doing Future opportunities
Engaging with - Partnership working with our - Link in with other
local local Job Centre including local authorities

delivering training to their
careers coaches on NHS
roles available

- Actively supporting local
community initiatives -
Kickstart (6 roles) & Prince’s
Trust (18 candidates
employed through this route)

Ensuring
applying for role
in the NHS more
accessible

- Use of language in adverts
including a section referring to
‘applicants welcomed from
underrepresented groups’

- Advertise in accessible
formats and wide range of
outlets (disability confident)

- Recruitment process removes
specific information from
applications to avoid bias

- Flexible working more widely
spread, specific goals to open
up more jobs to be quality part
time and flexible working.

- Explore values-based job
descriptions

- Obtaining feedback
through our EDI Network
from our wider
communities on
advertisement/ language

Targeted local
recruitment
campaigns

- Encourage applications from
our most deprived
communities through our
advertising

- Attending local events such as
PRIDE, Swindon Careers Fair,
Local Armed Forces events

- Different approaches to
marketing (utilisation of
leaflets to underrepresented
areas in March - HCA).

- Working with local colleges
and universities to promote
career pathways.

- Advertising through our social
media such as Facebook,
Twitter etc.

- Linking in with specific
feeder organisations for
health, social and admin
care careers.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 231

Page 175 of 192



Run tailored
interview skills

sessions for the
local community

- Utilising our microsite to inform | - Hosting webinars on how
candidates on how to apply to complete an application

- Providing advice to candidates | & interview best practice.
on interview best practice /
completing applications via
telephone.

available

Non pay benefits

- Promotion of NHS benefits - Exploring benefits that
e.g. blue card, discounts, would support the local
annual leave etc. community.

- Salary sacrifice schemes.

- Pension.

2 Early Years Careers Support in Swindon
Table 25: Early Years Careers Support in Swindon

SEND STUDENT SUPPORT:

Crowdy’s Hill | KS4 /KS5 | To promote entry level job roles / myth busting

School Career gender stereotyping / emphasising all the job roles
Assemblies | are equally as important / hidden heroes of NHS —

Sept 22 / Careers Fair attendance

Horizon’s KS5 Careers Fair / Mock interviews planned for July 23.

College

New College | KS5 SEND/NCS - Project Search starting in the Trust

Swindon from Sep 2023: 9 young people with learning

difficulties and disabilities have been offered an
internship. This will be in conjunction with New
College who will provide a tutor and SBC who will
provide a job coach to support the students. In
addition, SERCO will support with placement
opportunity promoting a partnership employer.
Project SEARCH is a program that provides training
and education for people with disabilities to gain and
maintain competitive employment and involves an
11-month unpaid internship, where participants rotate
through different jobs and receive support and
guidance.

YOUNG CARERS /CHILDR

EN IN CARE:

Swindon YEET The apprenticeship team are now working

Borough collaboratively with SBC to recognise pathways into

Council employment with 2 of the largest employers of
Health/Social care. In addition, we are reviewing
National Initiatives (Princes Trust, introduction for
Healthcare T Levels) and sharing project plans to
encourage and support our local community and
influence apprenticeship opportunity.

Swindon Introduction email sent to see how we can support —

Carers ongoing Apr 23

Page 232

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 176 of 192



Send family
voices

Introduction email sent to see how we can support —
ongoing Apr 23

NEET:

Kickstart

16 — 24 yr.
olds

The Kickstart Scheme is a new programme launched
by the government to deliver funding for employers
offering new job roles for 16-24 years olds who are
currently in receipt of Universal Credit. The
programme is aimed at preventing young people who
are currently unemployed facing long term
unemployment.

Princes Trust

11-30 Yr.

olds

To help vulnerable young people get their lives on
track. It supports the unemployed and those
struggling at school and at risk of exclusion. - We
participated in the “Get into” programme in October
2022 and were able to identify apprenticeship
vacancies within the Trust at the end of the
programme. Of the 4 applicants that applied for the
role, 2 of which were shortlisted for interview, but
unfortunately were not successful for appointment.

NHS Cadets

14 — 18 yr.

olds

It is aimed at young people aged 14 to 18 who are
from communities currently under-represented within
the NHS and St John Ambulance -This means that
this project aims to reach a diverse range of young
people who have barriers to entering health
volunteering and/or a health care career.

T-levels

16-17 yr.
olds

To support industry placements for T-Level students
from our local colleges (New College Swindon and
Cirencester College).

To support their progression to health care careers.
Students will complete their clinical placements;
complete care certificates and any ESR training
modules required.

Stem
ambassadors

Life-changing impact for young people, delivered by
STEM professionals in classrooms and communities.
STEM subjects are brought to life by over 37,000
volunteers, available across the UK, all free of
charge. Inspiring communicators and relatable role
models - Aspirations raised, careers illuminated and
learning supported.

NEET / SEND

support:

EOTAS
(Educated
Other Than
At School)

14 — 18 yr.

olds

Careers fair — Riverside / Oakfield / St. Luke’s /
Horizons College / Crowdy’s School / St Joseph’s
Careers Talks — To all EOTAS schools Nov 22.

SEND WEX

14 — 18 yr.

olds

A virtual WEX programme for SEND / NEET students
within our local community.

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 233

Page 177 of 192



Building 14 — 18 yr. | Catch — up meeting arranged to discuss how we can
Bridges olds support each other going forward.

School and 14 — 16 Yr. | Connections made with our feeder schools to offer
College olds small group presentations / apprenticeship talks —
SEND / guestionnaire sent to schools.

NEET

support

Green 16 — 19 yr. | Work closely with SBC to support particular learners /
Labyrinth olds traineeships. GWH volunteer team to also support.

Primary School support:

Meet a doctor
day

KS1

Dates booked in for the summer term / working with
our CTF’s to create half day workshops for our
feeder primary schools.

Secondary Sc

hool support

2022 / 2023:

Mock Year 10 Support with Year 10 mock interviews

Interviews

Careers Fairs | KS3/KS4 | With Covid restrictions easing we are pleased to
have attended 10 physical careers fairs this year
along with the support of our CTF's. This is a great
opportunity for us to showcase job roles not only to
students but to their parents / carers

Careers KS3/KS4 | Virtual presentations to either whole Key stages /

Presentations year groups or tutor groups — adapted to each
audience to highlight all careers and the entry routes.

Virtual Work | KS4 A virtual work experience programme for students

Experience within our catchment area

6th Form / College support 2022/2023 academic year:

Mock Year 12 We have interviewed Health and Social Care

Interviews students from our local feeder colleges

Careers Fairs | KS5 Showcasing job roles not only to students but to their
parents / carers

Careers KS5 Focusing on different job roles and entry

Presentations requirements

T-Level KS5 27 T-level student placements secured at GWH from

Students our feeder colleges

Virtual Work | KS5 A virtual work experience programme for students

Experience within our catchment area

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Page 234

Page 178 of 192



11.Monitoring performance and delivery

A key element in providing assurance on the delivery of the strategy is how we monitor
and report on progress with the plan. This is still being worked through and arrangements

will be set out in the final version of the plan.

Page 235

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 179 of 192



12. Appendices

Duty to obtain Appropriate Advice:

The ICB duty 14738, to obtain appropriate advice states:

Each integrated care board must obtain advice appropriate for enabling it effectively to
discharge its functions from persons who (taken together) have a broad range of
professional expertise in—

(a)the prevention, diagnosis or treatment of illness
(b)the protection or improvement of public health.

This plan outlines the ICB’s strategy for seeking any expert advice it requires, including
from local authority partners and through formal governance arrangements and broader
engagement.

BSW ICB will follow this approach in seeking advice:

1. Clearly identify the issue requiring advice with specific objectives outlined for the
advice being sought.

2. Determine the type of advice needed most appropriate for the objectives and issue,
whether in prevention, diagnosis or treatment of iliness, or the protection or
improvement of public health. That could be legal, financial, technical, strategic,
clinical or other types as required.

3. Determine the potential sources of appropriate advice, drawing from experts either
inside or outside the system.

4. Work to understand the most appropriate advice source from those selected based
on expertise, experience, credibility, and alignment to the ICB vision.

5. Establish formal contact with sources of advice against a clear brief, explaining the
issue. Following ICB procurement practices where applicable, asking for
experience, expertise, qualifications, availability, any conflicts of interest, and rates
where any of these are unknown.

6. Evaluate advice received, determining the relevance and applicability, together with
the effectiveness in addressing the issue.

7. Consider seeking second opinion or further advice as appropriate.

Advice may be deemed ongoing or on-demand. On-going advice may be incorporated in
permanent representation to governance mechanisms associated with ICB as required, for
example with particular clinical advice.

BSW ICS is fortunate to feature clinical networks, alliances, public health, social care,
clinical senates, academic institutions, as well as having access to regional networks
including NHSE SW.

All ICBs have varying demographics, and it is therefore important for BSW ICB to be able
to seek the most appropriate advice for its partners and population.

Page 236

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 180 of 192



Duty to Promote Innovation:

Innovation and Evaluation Strategy
A solution focused approach to continuous improvement

The ICB in partnership with the BSW Academy, AHSN, and the Dragon’s Heart Institute
are co-producing a robust strategy to promote Innovation and Evaluation across BSW both
at System and Place level.

The strategy is underpinned by the following legislative requirement:

e Each ICB must promote innovation in the provision of health services
(including innovation in the arrangements made for their provision).

e The plan should set out how the ICB and work with academic health science
networks and other local partners to support the identification and adoption of new
products and pathways that align with population health needs and address health
inequalities.

The strategy will promote and guarantee the highest degree of inclusivity and participation
by creating a fertile, accessible, and supportive place for innovative, evidence-based, and
impactful ideas from the ground-up to be implemented and scaled across time. Through
the implementation of this strategy BSW will promote local innovation and build capacity
for the adoption and spread of proven innovation. Using the following process:

Adopt, Scale,

Evaluation Spread, &
Embed

Making
Changes

Proposal

- »

Review the project
and assess
Deliver the project, milestones,
product, solution, etc. outcomes, Successes,

Project / Programme and lessons learnt
Planning Qualitative & !

Business Case to secure

omilise) L LI funds & organisational

new concept, product, SUe
Aresih Sulds, Factor in micro or small

[Drug s, i scale innovation projects
Understanding the (minimise paperwork)

Replicate the
successful project on
a wider scale —
transition to business
as usual (BAU)

Decision Making
process

Adoption and Spread

Continuous
Improvement

problem Mapping the Process
Problem Solving Modelling Impact and

Change Management Quantitative
i evaluation
benchmarking

Collecting and
understanding Data

Building Consensus
Develop a fully costed

Developing and Business Case
managing networks Peer review

Local evaluation

Communicating
results

Figure 36: Process for promoting the adoption and spread of innovation

The approach will be grounded on the following 5 principles or pillars:

. Culture: Creating a culture in which Innovation and Evaluation are embedded in
clinical, operational, strategic decision-making processes.
. Connections & Community Engagement: Promote Collaboration across the system

to maximise the use of limited resource through innovation.

Page 237

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 181 of 192



. Capacity & Capability: Empower, Train, mentor, support workforce with shared
knowledge, infrastructure, and opportunities to drive Innovation.

. Patient Experience: Deliver innovative evidence-based care that reflects the needs
of the population and tackles health inequalities.
. Continuous Improvement: Deploy evaluation as an approach to positively challenge

the status quo and drive change through innovative solutions.

The key enablers for the successful delivery of this strategy have been identified in Figure
37 below:

INHS|

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire

I c P B oa rd Integrated Care Board
(Oversight) o
Dragon’s Heart BSW Academy

Conleliy (Organisational
(Scale & Spread) Development)

The Enablers in BSW

Innovation
&

Transformation Evaluation
Programmes

(Test & Adopt)

Establish in partnership with

AHSN

(Innovation
Exchange)

key stakeholders a system
wide federated and integrated
approach to address current
and future NHS challenges

Workforce which will facilitate and Universities
- - tain th isational
(Ideas, SOIutlonS, sustain the organisationa

- and cultural changes required
and pllOtS) to embed innovation and (ResearCh)

evaluation

Figure 37: Seven key enablers for delivery of the Innovation and Evaluation strategy

Roadmap

Table 26: Innovation and Evaluation strategy roadmap
Actions Milestone
Strategy blueprint presented to ICB Executives March 2023
Preparation of a programme of work May 2023
Creation of a Multi-Disciplinary Innovation Group with task to May-June 2023

develop the strategy and the evaluation framework

Strategy and Evaluation Framework Ratified by the ICB Board | August-September
2023

Establishment of a centre of excellence for innovation TBC working BSW
Academy and AHSN

Page 238

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 182 of 192



Duty in Respect of Research:
This ICB duty 14740, Duty in Respect of Research, states:

Each integrated care board must, in the exercise of its functions, facilitate or otherwise
promote:

(a) research on matters relevant to the health service, and

(b) the use in the health service of evidence obtained from research

This is a significant step change from the research promotion function required of a former
CCG, as ICBs are now required to facilitate. This is an important chance to embed
research into the heart of the NHS. For BSW ICB this is a unique opportunity to help
support and facilitate research across the BSW ICS to the benefit of our population,
capture and share learning from successful research elsewhere, and to disseminate
successful research within BSW into the wider NHS.

The economic benefits suggest research is a sound investment, with research supported
by the NIHR CRN generating an estimated £2.7bn PA of gross added value, and 47,500
FTE jobs in the UK (NIHR, 2019). For each patient recruited onto a commercial trial
supported by NIHR CRN, on average NHS providers in England received an estimated
£9,200 from life sciences companies, saving an estimated £5,800 per patient. The
approximate cost saving to the NHS is around £30m per year.

Research in this context includes all research benefitting health and care outcomes such
as advancing health and care operations, management, and leadership, as well as clinical
trials.

Our Delivery Plan
Some of the ways in which the ICB will support research include:

1. Fostering collaboration: Identifying all partners connected to BSW ICS which are
either involved, aspire to be, or would benefit from connection with research.
Bringing together health and care professionals, researchers, and patients to
collaborate and understand contemporary issues, facilitating a more integrated
approach to research. This includes collaboration with academic institutions to
support research.

2. Enabling funding: ICB can help to coordinate the enablement of funding to support
research projects. This can help to incentivise researchers to conduct studies
aligned to system priorities and can help coordinate necessary resources to carry
out effective research.

3. Providing and supporting with data collection: BSW ICB can provide support for
data collection and analysis. This can help researchers to access the data they
need to conduct their studies and can ensure that data is collected and analysed in

Page 239

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 183 of 192



a consistent and reliable way. This could include anonymised patient records to
identify trends and patterns.

4. Encouraging and facilitating patient involvement: BSW ICB can work to involve
patients in research projects, mindful of existing inequalities evident in the conduct
and application of research. This can help to ensure that research is focused on
areas that are important to patients and can help to ensure that research is
conducted in a way that is respectful and ethical, as well as addressing research
needs of BSW’s diverse communities.

5. Supporting research governance: BSW ICB can play a key role in ensuring
research is conducted in an ethical and transparent manner. We can provide
guidance on research governance, including obtaining ethical approvals and
managing data.

How we are organised to deliver
Recent guidance from NHSE entitled “Maximising the Benefits of Research” will inform the
next steps for action. These will be achieved by establishing an ICB Research Lead within
the Medical Directorate working with colleagues in the BSW Academy. The Lead will work
to support development of the five areas above within BSW ICS to help cocreate the BSW
System Research Strategy based on the NHSE guidance, also helping to systematically
use evidence from research when ICB is exercising its functions. The Research Lead will
also work to understand research workforce challenges and ensure this supports
organisational workforce planning. The Research lead will continue to strengthen and
develop ICB’s collaborative relationship with its local NIHR networks. The System
Research Strategy will span across boundaries horizontally and vertically in BSW to
support a comprehensive multidisciplinary approach to research.

What we will do in the next twelve months

1. Appoint an ICB Research Lead — by August 2023

2. Facilitate the co-creation of the ICS Research Strategy — by October 2023

3. Facilitate dissemination of the ICS Research Strategy — by November 2023

4. Support the early adoption of the strategy and initial actions resulting from the
cocreated approach — from November 2023 to March 2024

5. Establish reporting and monitoring progress of the above — by August 2023

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time

BSW ICB can support ICS research by working with system partners, researchers,
academic institutions, industry partners, and patients to facilitate access to resources,
expertise, and data.

One of the outputs from this would be a system led research strategy and a system-wide
research network. By fostering a collaborative approach to research, BSW can help to
improve patient outcomes and better leverage research potential to deliver the ICS
strategy. In 5 years’ time the system should see a more effective, aligned (as section 3.2
of the guidance), systematic and comprehensive approach to research.

Page 240

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 184 of 192




Monitoring Delivery

One of the aims of the ICS Research Strategy will be to enable a systematic monitoring of
research progress with regular updates. As the strategy is developed and partners agree
monitoring mechanisms these will be replayed into the Joint Forward Plan reviews.

Lead and email address for further information

Dr James Whitehead — james.whitehead10@nhs.net

Page 241

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 185 of 192



Addressing the particular needs of victims of abuse (including Serious Violence
Duty)

The ICB Safeguarding Team is located within the Nursing and Quality Directorate. The
ultimate accountability for safeguarding for the ICB is with the ICB Accountable Officer.
The Chief Nurse is identified as the Responsible Officer for Safeguarding, supported in this
role by the ICB’s Safeguarding Designated Professionals and the Associate Director for
Strategic Safeguarding. Safeguarding reports to the Quality and Outcomes Committee
which has Director level representation and the ICB Board.

There are three Safeguarding Partnerships across BSW ICB. All three bring together the
work of the Safeguarding Adults Board, the Community Safety Partnership and partnership
activity in relation to Safeguarding Children.

BSW ICB Chief Nurse and the ICB safeguarding team are representatives on all three
safeguarding partnerships, including the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) in BaNES locality
and Swindon and Wiltshire Community Safeguarding Partnership. Community Safety
Partnerships (CSPs) and VRUs have an explicit role in evidence based strategic action on
serious violence and these partnership meetings will be the driver for delivering the serious
violence duty (SVD) and safeguarding Statutory Duties.

Domestic Abuse prevention is an important aspect of the SVD and each of the LAs across
BSW ICS have domestic abuse partnerships which feed into the CSPs. There is expertise
within the safeguarding team around domestic abuse with participation in the domestic
abuse partnerships. BSW has in place information sharing across providers and primary
care to MARAC/MAPPA/PREVENT.

The team also works closely with NHS providers, Police and the LAs to support continuous
education and updates in this evolving workstream. This includes Female Genital
Mutilation, forced marriage and violence against women

and girls, PREVENT and Multi Agency Public Protection arrangements.

Over the coming year specified authorities will need to have prepared their joint local
strategy, which should contain activity to prevent and reduce serious violence based on
the needs of their area to do this.

Recommendations for data sets include anonymised hospital and primary care data on
serious violence injuries. Information is currently collected on an individual and case by
case basis from health services. It is likely the development of consistent gathering of data
will be a large focus of the strategic delivery of SVD across all agencies and practice. The
new duty strengthens the requirement for cross agency data sharing to enable localised
and national timely prevention and response strategy developments to reduce serious
violence.

BSW ICB are well placed to enable the safeguarding team to carry out the development of
the new duty during 2023 — 2024. However, the duty implementation will no doubt mean
an increase in specific workstreams. These will include information sharing and data
collection and extensive education programmes for our health and partner agencies. As

Page 242

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 186 of 192



understanding of the duty becomes clearer further analysis of compliance will be
undertaken.

Page 243

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 187 of 192



Duty to enable Patient Choice:

Context
The ICB duty 14737, in regard to patient choice states:

Each integrated care board must, in the exercise of its functions, act with a view to
enabling patients to make choices with respect to aspects of health services provided to
them.

Patient choice is currently underpinned by two separate sets of regulations. These are :

National Health Service Commissioning Board and Clinical Commissioning Groups
(Responsibilities and Standing Rules) Regulations 2012 (“the Standing Rules”)

National Health Service (Procurement, Patient Choice and Competition) (No. 2)
Requlations 2013 (“‘the PPCCRs”).

Part 8 of the NHS Standing Rules places obligations on commissioners in relation to
patient choice, including enabling the legal rights to choice of provider and team. The
rights apply when:

1. the patient has an elective referral for a first outpatient appointment (new episode of
care)
the patient is referred by a GP, optometrist or dentist into secondary care
the referral is clinically appropriate as determined by the referrer
the service and team are led by a consultant or a mental healthcare professional
the provider has a commissioning contract with any ICB or NHS England for the
required service.

abkwn

This plan outlines the ICBs compliance with patient choice.

Our delivery plan

Our plan is to remain compliant with the legal regulations for choice whilst also developing
the elective strategic ambition to network our provision for best deployment to reduce
waiting times and reduce inequities in access and associated inequalities.

We will also develop our approach to reducing harm of urgent referrals that are not
converted in a timely way by patients and explore integration opportunities with booking
and validation activities in our providers.

How we are organised to deliver

The BSW Referral services currently comprise of two services: BSW Referral Service and
SARUM Referral Service - a separately commissioned referral services for SARUM area
(South Wiltshire) GP Practices.

Teams comprise administrative and clinical team members with the core functions based
on supporting GPs to make referrals to secondary care to the appropriate services with the

Page 244

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 188 of 192


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/500/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/500/contents/made

necessary information regarding the referral, and guiding patient choice of appropriate
local providers.

BSW referral services interface between GP practices and secondary care, to facilitate
patients making informed choices about where to go for consultation and possible
treatment. The main objective of the service is to provide a smooth journey from referrer
to provider and ensure that patients are offered appropriate patient choice of healthcare
provider ensuring that they are seen in the ‘right clinic, first time’.

This process therefore reduces the burden on both referrers and providers and supports
the patient journey.

Interface between referrer and onward referral

> EFR
In addition to the above, the Referral Service enables and supports the technical
connection between the EFR team and providers, meaning that a request for funding can
be converted to a referral without being returned to the referrer for onward referral.

» Community Providers
The same process is followed to enable a connection between a number of triage services
such as MSK, Dermatology and Urology and providers. This connection enables a referrer
to submit a referral once only.

» Ophthalmology
BSW Referral Service also provide the interface between Community Optometrists and
providers for elective referrals. This connection means that an Optometrist can refer a
patient via email and the Referral Service will convert the referral to e-Referral, including
provision of clinical triage by Optometrists within the service.

Other benefits

> Patients

e Referrals are received by the referral service or provider through direct referral
instantly removing a possible delay created by a patient not activating their referral
and ensuring that referrals get to the right place first time

e Patients are provided with choice even when RAS services are in operation locally.

e Point of information and queries for public, providers and referring organisations.

e Provision of single patient queries service, avoiding need for multiple patient phone
calls.

» General Practice/ referrers

e Single process via use of RAS’s

e Provision of GP Query line

¢ Point of information and support regarding technical aspects of the referral service,
via both monthly drop in sessions and ad hoc support as required

Page 245

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 189 of 192



» Referral Process

e Emphasis on adding value and reducing workload for the system as a whole

e Processing of referrals using the most efficient method possible, such as use of
clinical triage only where it adds identified value

e Supports cross system communication and working

e Maximising use of clinician resource within the service

e Follow up of referrals not booked, to reduce the risk of a patient not actioning a
referral

e Specialist technical knowledge of referral process systems, including service
creation and smartcard role assignment

Patient choice is promoted and publicised on the ICB website.

What we will do in the next twelve months

1. Review pilot to directly book where a choice has not been acted upon and a referral
has not been converted to ensure that urgent referrals are converted, reducing risk of
harm to patients — July 23

2. Investigate opportunities for integration of referral support services with other system
“front end” administrative processes — Oct 23

3. Review the Sarum service and potential in-housing to ensure common service offering
to the whole system.

4. Review the operation of right to change provider after 18 weeks alongside the digital
mutual aid system — Jul 23

What will be different for our population in 5 years’ time
It is anticipated that NHSE will integrate eRS into the NHS app over the course of the next
two years which will add further direct control of choice to patients.

Monitoring delivery
e Number of referrals processed daily and weekly (no target)
e Number of choice offers not converted, weekly (no target)

List lead and email address for further information
Mark Harris
mark.harrisé@nhs.net

Page 246

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 190 of 192



mailto:mark.harris6@nhs.net

Procurement/Supply Chain:

Context:

The BSW Acute Hospital Alliance Procurement Service created in April 2021 delivers procurement
and supply chain services as a hosted model to the three Acute trusts in the region as well as
Wiltshire Health and Care and is hosted from Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust on behalf of the
region. The team also work collaboratively with the ICB to provide a professional procurement and
supply chain service across the region. Through establishing a single procurement service,
opportunities to gain greater security of supply, process efficiencies and economies of scale have
been created to improve the patient experience.

Our Delivery Plan

The procurement service is a key enabler of each of the strategic objectives through ensuring good
governance, timely delivery and value for money in the consumables and equipment which it
purchases for clinical care. Full details can be found in the procurement annual Planning
Template 23-25.

Financial Stability

Through the aggregation of demand across the ICS and consolidation of expenditure, working with
NHS Supply Chain and Partners, the Sourcing Team will be able to achieve economies of scale
and maximise efficiencies. The Supply Chain Team will build on this consolidation work to create
further operational efficiencies and to reduce wastage.

Environmental Sustainability and an Anchor Institution

The procurement of goods and have processes which can be designed to support local business
opportunities, recirculate wealth and bring community benefits — while still getting buyers the right
price and quality, and often improved supplier responsiveness and relationships. The
procurement team is working with government directives to allocate a minimum of 10% of the
award criteria to social value, net zero and sustainability issues. Full details can be found in the
ICS BSW Procurement Alliance Procurement Policy!.

BSW Procurement Alliance will make an impact in Local supply chains through:

* Monitoring spend with suppliers across the region

* Helping SMES with cash flow by insisting that our suppliers pay subcontractors promptly, and by
splitting big contracts into smaller lots to make it easier to bid for them

« Communicating with potential local suppliers so they know what opportunities are coming up,
how to bid, and what you expect of them (for example: A minimum of 10% weighting within tenders
will be given to environmental and sustainability issues and all suppliers awarded with a contract
value greater than £5m will be required to submit a carbon reduction plan)

* Identifying key areas of spend where there are no or few local supply options and see if new
enterprises or groups of local firms working together can close them.

* Including wider criteria such as social/community, health and environmental impacts and benefits
and include clear criteria and goals on these

» Monitoring and enforcing the implementation of the actions that contractors said that they would
deliver, and track and share any wider good practice by suppliers.

Forward Look

Page 247

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 191 of 192


https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en%2DGB&rs=en%2DGB&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fnhs.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2Fmsteams_7289bf%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F41a29d6fbfc644888e38c63bd9114c1f&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=8700ADA0-B0C1-6000-7922-E9160C029AA7&wdorigin=ItemsView&wdhostclicktime=1682517500861&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=0c29cb18-7d65-4fc1-98ad-b9b979c58fb6&usid=0c29cb18-7d65-4fc1-98ad-b9b979c58fb6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Normal&ctp=LeastProtected#_ftn1

The BSW ICS procurement strategy found include hyperlink in May following approval....... but
short term objectives are as follows:

e Develop a business case for a central warehouse and distribution centre to reduce
carbon footprint for supplies, with plan to be in place during 2024/5

e Standardising and aggregating of consumables held across the ICS for economies
of scale and greater supply chain resilience and to reduce wastage for the benefit of
patient care

e Common platforms and ways of working across the ICS for greater efficiencies and
resilience, using technology as appropriate

e Implementation and development of the Procurement People Strategy

BSW ICS Director of Procurement & Commercial Services: Rob Webb
E mail: rob.webb3@nhs.net

[11cs BSW Procurement Policy will be found on each Acute Trust’s Website

Page 248

NHS Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) Page 192 of 192


mailto:rob.webb3@nhs.net
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en%2DGB&rs=en%2DGB&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fnhs.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2Fmsteams_7289bf%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F41a29d6fbfc644888e38c63bd9114c1f&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=8700ADA0-B0C1-6000-7922-E9160C029AA7&wdorigin=ItemsView&wdhostclicktime=1682517500861&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=0c29cb18-7d65-4fc1-98ad-b9b979c58fb6&usid=0c29cb18-7d65-4fc1-98ad-b9b979c58fb6&sftc=1&cac=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&rct=Normal&ctp=LeastProtected#_ftnref1

	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	18 Public Participation

	6 Public Health Nursing Services - Update
	7 Healthwatch Wiltshire Priorities
	8 Better Care Fund
	Wiltshire BCF 2022-2023 End of Year Template

	9 Draft BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan
	Draft BSW Implementation Plan


